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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

Lori A. Shibinottc 29 HAXEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Conimissioncr 603-27M501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fnx: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov
Dircclor

June 9, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute (VC#161611-B001), Bow, NH to continue
providing a broad range of support services across, a number of public health programs, by
increasing the price limitation by $132,000 from $4,336,959 to $4,468,959 with no change to the
contract completion date of June 30, 2021 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 49%
Federal Funds. 51 % Other Funds (Governor Commission Funds).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, Item #51
and was subsequently amended as approved by Governor and Council approval on February 21,
2018, Item #8, as amended and approved by Governor and Council on April 17, 2019, Item #19,
as amended and approved by Governor and Council on October 2, 2019, Item #14 and most
recently amended with Governor approval on May 29, 2020.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because Amendment #2 increased the total price limitation
by more than ten percent (10%) of the original contract value.

"The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to evaluate the interventions undertaken by
Regional Public Health Networks and assess how they are building community resilience to the
health impacts from severe weather and climate change. Funding for the Home Visiting program
has been modified across funding streams, in order to expand access for the program and also
expand access to on-line developmental screening for children to support access to appropriate
services. For the HIV Prevention program, the Contractor will procure, manage and self-testing
HIV kits and other prevention supplies to individuals and develop and maintain an online ordering
system to request these items. . The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention is encouraging
states to pilot in-home, self-testing initiatives in response to COVID-19 and its impact on patient's
ability to be seen in person for HIV testing.

The Dcpartmciil of Health and Human Scruices' Mission is to join cominunUics and families
in providing opporhiniljes for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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The Contractor will providing increased services for the Maternal and Child Health.
Climate and Health Adaptation, and HIV Prevention. For Maternal and Child Health, the
Contractor will be providing technical assistance to agencies providing developmental screening
to support access to online screening tools for families. In addition, the Contractor will provide
logistical and planning support for a semi-annual conference for Department staff that will focus
on children and families. For the Climate and Health Adaptation program, the Contract will be
providing training for the Department and local partners on tick-safe practices. As a part of the
training, materials and guides will be provided to the participants. For HIV Prevention, the
Contractor will be developing and maintaining an online ordering system for NH residents to
request prevention and self-testing supplies.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  A minimum of 85% of conference planning committee member's rate conference
logistical support for conferences as not less than Very Good' in evaluation
sun/eys.

• A minimum of 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as not less than Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request there will be reduced access
to online developmental screening for young children. In addition, without access to HIV
prevention there is a potential for increased rates of HIV due to a decrease in access prevention
and testing.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.070, 93.870, 93.840, and 93.268FA1N # UE1EH001332.
X10MC33595, NU62PS924538 and H23IP000757.

in the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS. 74% Federal, 26% General

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $245,000 $0 $245,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000
Sub Total $590,000 $0 $590,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS, 100% Federal

SFY
-■'-Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc • 90077700 $20,000 $0 $20,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $20,000 $0 $20,000

Sub Total $180,000 $0 $180,000

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $95,000 $0 $95,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $95,000 ($15,000) $80,000

Sub Total $320,000 ($15,000) $305,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES, 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $183,800 $0 $183,800
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $133,800 $0 $133,800
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $250,000 $0 $250,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $250,000 $0 $200,000

Sub Total $767,600 $0 $767,600
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05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HNS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,450 $0 $18,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub Total $66,450 $0 $66,450

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
TRACKING, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount
2018 102-500731. Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $50,000 $0 •  $50,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000

Sub Total $260,000 $0 $260,000

05-95-90-901510-7936 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $44,670 $0 $44,670
2021 102-600731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $37,760 $20,000 $57,760

Sub Total $82,430 $20,000 $102,430

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $36,000 $0 $36,000
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Sub Total $86,000 $0 $86,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $9,000 $0 $9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000
Sub Total $49,000 $0 $49,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $155,190 $0 $155,190
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub Total $195,190 $0 $195,190
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $111,795 $0 $111,795
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub Total $151,795 $0 $151,795
Sub Total $481,985 $0 $481,985
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05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, HOME VISITING
XiO FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2010 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90083200 $221,990 $0 $221,990
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083201 $247,569 $0 $247,569
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083203 $221,000 $0 $221.000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083204 $221,000 ($131,000) $90,000

Sub Total $911,559 ($131,000) $780,559

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH, 48% Federal/52% General

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018' 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

Sub Total $96,000 $0 $96,000

05-95-90-903010-1835 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES. EPIDEMIOLOGY LABORATORY
AND CAPACITY, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90183504 $30,000 $0 $30,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90183504 $30,000 $0 $30,000

Sub Total $60,000 $0 $60,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE, 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount
2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9.000 $0 $9,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9.000 $0 $9,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $18,000
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05.95-90-902510-7536 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $100,000 $34,000 $134,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $100,000 $34,000 $134,000

Sub Total $275,000 $68,000 $343,000

05-95-90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY, AND PERFORMANCE,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $15,000 $0 $15,000

95-042-421110.29780000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF ECONOMIC AND HOUSING SUPPORTS, ADMINISTRATIONS FOR CHILDREN
AND FAMILIES, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42117708 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42117708 $0 $0 $0

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42117708 $0 $50,000 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 42117708 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $0 $50,000 $50,000

05-95-092-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIOIRAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR
COMMISSION FUNDS, 100% OTHER FUNDS

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0" $0

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $140,000 $140,000

Sub Total $0 $140,000 $140,000
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05-95-90-902510*7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS
RESPONSE, 100% Federal

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Numl>er

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 30 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $56,546 $0 $56,546

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 $6,389 $0 $6,839

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $150,000 $0 $150,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $212,935 $0. $212,935
TOTAL $4,336,959 $132,000 $4,468,959
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Public Health Professional

Support Services Contract

This S"' Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as 'Amendment #5"^ is by and t>etween the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. (d/b/a Community Health Institute) (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Massachusetts
nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 501 South Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council,
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51), as amended on February 21, 2018 (Item #8), as amended on April 17.2019
(Item #19) as amended on October 2, 2019 (Item #14), and subsequently amended, as approved by the
Governor on May 29, 2020, under the authority of Executive Order 2020-04, as extended by Executive
Orders 2020-05. 2020-08, 2020-09, and 2020-10, the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,468,959.

2. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment #2. Scope of Services, in its entirety.

3. Add Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2
Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs. Paragraph 2.2.5 Maternal. Infant
and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and Child Health Section (MCH),
Subparagraph 2.2.5.1, Part 2.2.5.1.4 to read:

2.2.5.1.4 Technical assistance, which may include creating a written manual for using online
developmental screening sites, creating standardized letters and providing training.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3. Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2
Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs, Paragraph 2.2.6 Environmental
Public Health Tracking (EPHT), Subparagraph 2.2.6.3 to read:

2.2.6.3. The Contract shall utilize current train-the-trainer curriculum for tick-safe practices
when providing training sessions to target audiences in six (6) regions of the State,
ensuring each session has a maximum duration of three (3) hours. The Contractor
shall:

2.2.6.3.1 Develop and apply a set of adult learning principles to ensure target
audiences understand information.

2.2.6.3.2 Utilize an array of delivery techniques for different learning styles and
processing skill sets.

2.2.6.3.3 Set up classrooms In a manner conducive to adult learning.

2.2.6.3.4 Meet participant needs, as appropriate.

2.2.6.3.5 Provide learners with opportunities for feedback.
JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Amendment 1^5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Departrnent of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

2.2.6.3.6 Provide learners with a variety of coaching skills to utilize for future
trainings.

2.2.6.3.7 Adapt existing educational materials, as approved by the Department,
from Tick Free NH. the Department, the Centers for Disease Control
(CDC), or other sources in order to meet the learning needs of target
audiences.

2.2.6.3.8 Evaluate all training programs to measure competencies of participants.

2.2.6.3.9. Provide participants with teaching materials that Include an instructor
guide; slide deck; tick spoons; tick ID cards; insect repellants; storage bin;
and other materials, as needed.

5. Modify Exhibit A. Amendment #3. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2
Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs, Paragraph 2.2.7 Climate and
Health Adaption, Subparagraph 2.2.7.2, Part 2.2.7.2.1, to read:

2.2.7.2.1. Focused on community resilience, including outcome and process metrics for public
health impacts, which may include, but are not limited to. injuries or mental health.

6. Add Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.2
Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs, Paragraph 2.2.7 Climate and
Health Adaption, Subparagraph 2.2.7.2, Part 2.2.7.2.4 to read:

2.2.7.2.4. Presented to an audience of peers at a professional in-person meeting or via remote
video sessions, ensuring the findings are available in a written report and as well as
by verbal presentation.

7. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.3
Provide Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups,- Paragraph 2.3.6
Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child Health
Section (MCH), Subparagraph 2.3.6.1 to read:

2.3.6.1. RESERVED

8. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3
Provide Logistical Support for Conferences. Meetings and Planning Groups, Paragraph 2.3.6
Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and Child Health
Section (MCH), Subparagraph 2.3.6.2, to read:

2.3.6.2 RESERVED

9. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3
Provide Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups, Paragraph 2.3.6
Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child Health
Section (MCH), Subparagraph 2.3.6.3, to read:

2.3.6.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support. Including evaluation, to
semi-annual conferences-learning exchanges for up to 55 staff at MIECHV contracted
sites. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.3.6.3.1. The spring 2021 training focuses on Healthy Families America required
content training for continued certification.

2.3.6.3.2. The fall training 2020 shall focus on relevant topics and based on findings
from the current needs assessment.

2.3.6.3.3. Monthly meetings are convened with Children with Special Healthcare
Needs (CSHCN) staff to monitor contract progress.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment#5 Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

2.3.6.3.4. Monthly meetings are convened with the Watch Me Grow (WMG) steering
committee.

10. Delete Exhibit A, Amendment #3. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.3
Provide Logistical Support for Conferences. Meetings and Planning Groups. Paragraph 2.3.6
Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child Health
Section (MCH), Subparagraph 2.3.6.4.

11. Add Exhibit A. Amendment #3 Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work. Subsection 2.4
Provide Technical Assistance. Paragraph 2.4.1 Public Health Emergency Preparedness.
Subparagraphs2.4.1.2. to read;

2.4.1.2 The Contractor shall provide professional staff to support the Department's COVID-19
response based on requests from the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS).
including but not limited to:

2.4.1.2.1 ensuring that staff deployed attend all trainings requested by DPHS.

2.4.1.2.2 Conductingan After Action Review of the initial DPHS response from December
2019 to March 2020.

2.4.1.2.3 Submitting an After Action Report and Improvement Plan based on the After
Action Review.

2.4.1.2.4 Conducting disease Investigation and contact tracing.

12. Add Exhibit A, Amendment #3 Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.4
Provide Technical Assistance, Paragraph 2.4.1 Public Health Emergency Preparedness,
Subparagraphs 2.4.1.3, to read:

2.4.1.3 The Contractor shall ensure that the professional staff:

2.4.1.3.1 Have the appropriate licensure. certification, and skills to meet the request
made by DPHS.

2.4.1.3.2 Work the minimum hours requested by DPHS.

2.4.1.3. Submit all documentation regarding hour's svorked and other documentation
requested.

13. Add Exhibit A. Amendment #3. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.4
Provide Technical Assistance, Paragraph 2.4.3 Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home
Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child Health Section, Subparagraph 2.4.3.2, to read:

2.4.3.2. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to agencies that provide
development screening services by providing support to online screening tools
accessed by families.

14. Add Exhibit A, Amendment #3, Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.6
Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans, Paragraph 2.6.3 Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood
Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and Child Health Section (MCH), Subparagraph
2.6.3.3, to read:

2.6.3.3. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the implementation of the MIECHV
Continuous Quality lmprovenr>ent Plan by community based agencies, which includes,
but is not limited to, individual community based agency reports

15. Add Exhibit A. Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8 Maximize the Efficient
Use of Resources, Paragraph 2.8.2 Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services
(IDPICSS), Subparagraph 2.8.2.3, to read::

/<C^
JSi Research & Training Instilule. Inc. Amendmenl #5 Conlractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

2.8.2.3 The Contractor shall procure, manage and disperse prevention and self-testing
supplies for NH residents, as directed by the Department.

16. Add Exhibit A, Amendment #3. Scope of Services. Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.8
Maximize the Efficient Use of Resources, Paragraph 2.8.2 Infectious Disease Prevention,
Investigation & Care Services (IDPICSS). Subparagraph 2.8.2.4, to read;:

2.8.2.4 The Contractor shall develop and maintain an online ordering system that enables NH
residents to order prevention and self-testing supplies.

17. Modify Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Climate and Health, Program
SPY 2021 Amendment #3 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #5, Budget for
Climate and Health. SPY 2021 v^ich is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

18. Modify Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - CDC. SPY 2020
Amendment #3 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-1 Amendment #5, Budget for HIV - CDC,
SPY 2020, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

19. Modify Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - CDC. SPY 2021
Amendment #3 by replacing In its entirety with Exhibit B-2 Amendment #5, Budget for HIV - CDC,
SPY 2021, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

20. Modify Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SPY 2021
Amendment #3, by replacing in Its entirety with Exhibit B-3 Amendment #5. Budget for Home
Visiting. SPY 2021. which is attached hereto-and incorporated by reference herein.

21. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #5, Budget for Home Visiting, Govemor Commissioner Punds SPY
2021.

22. Modify Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting - MCH Block
Grant, SPY 2021 Amendment #3 by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B-5 Amendment
#5Budget for Home Visiting - MCH Block Grant, SPY 20215, \which is attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein.

23. Modify.Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Immunization Program. SPY
2021 Amendment #3 by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B-6 Amendment #5 Budget for
Immunization Program. SPY 2021, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein...

JSI Research & Training Instilule. Inc. Amendmenl #5 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in full force' and effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale \Arrltten below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

tOJ-
6.5.20

Name: Katharine Robert
Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 10. 2020

Date Name:
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved was approved by the Govemor approval
issued under the Executive Order 2020-04.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

JSI Research & Training tnslitute. Inc. AmetxJment #5
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Climat« and HeaRh Piogram Exhibit B-1. Amendment tfS

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Corttractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2021

KiU=3£istyt»;£:sa3a.^Tolal Prognun Costix:r.^.<:ta;«cnMrs.«s?st

Ui« asaaa DIract ser=!5S2ir5:iS Indirectii«*u>iXisafib*Te<al

1. Total SataryTWaoes S  12.032.48 8 8  12.032.46

2.. Emplovee Benefits $  4,572.32 8 8  4.572.32
3. Consultants s 8 8

4. Equipment; $  380.97 8 8  360.97

Rental s 8

Repair and Mantenattce s $

Purchase/Depreciation s 8 8

S. S(9pGes; S  842.27 8 8  842.27

Educational S 8 $

Lab 8 8 8

Pharmacy 8 8 8

Medical 8 $ 8

Offwe 8 8 8

6. Travel 8 8

7. Occupancy 8  1.203.24 8 8  1.203.24

8. Ctarent Expenses S  962.59 i 8  962.59

Telephone 8 8 8

Postaoe 8 8 8

Subscriptions 8 8

Audit and Legal 8 8

Insurance 8 8 8  .

Board Expenses 8 8

9. Software 8 8 8

to. MarKeting/Communicatlons 8

It. StaffEducabonandTrainlnq 8  240.65 8 8  240.65

12. Subccntraas/Agreements 8  20.000.00 8 8  20.000.00
13. Other (speotic deteils manoatory); 8 8 8

Curriculum Development S Logistics 8  15.500.00 8  15.500.00

8

lalomaoon Hystems 8661.78 8  661.78
Hft 8360.97 8  360.97

tianfiOnn 8 8360.97 8  380.97
r'ayro" ano Mccounuiiy i 8661.78 8  661.78

TOTAL 8  65.714.50 8  2.045.50 8  57,760.00

indtrectAsAPercentofOirect 3.7%

The federaly approved Negotiated indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc Includes
fringe benefits (38% of sajcuy) and other general operating costs to support project activities Including occupancy, equpcrterrt.
general ofBca supplies, teteconvnunicalrons and other current expenses. Information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources arxl s^ deveiopmert. and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for appfication of the NICRA Is
on saiatyfwages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSt Research Training InstltiRe. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP.20ie-C»>HS^W\iSLIC- AOS

Contractor Initials
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HIV.COC EjMM 8-2. Amendmertt *9

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name; Rteurch & Tralnng Institute, inc.

BudQcl Request foe Pubic Health Professional Support Services

Sudeet Period: Pr20

!nfjri-3»j*5i^23Sca!3»3rc»Total Program Costeassm^vsix^iJ—»2cs4

Dfract wS^gagwa Indirtct .^•csfUi^iAasvTolal TiesxsA'.

t. Total SaiaryfWeges %  25.675.69 S S  25.675.69

2. Employee Ber^eftts S  9,756.75 S $  9.756.75

3. CoimSianu t s

4. Equipment: 5  770.27 s $  770.27

Rental . s

Repair and Maintenance s 5

PurdiBseiVeprecieiion $ $

5. SuptAes; S  1,797.30 5 $  1.797.30

Educational 5 $

1 ah S $

Pharmacy $

Medical S t

Otace S i $

5. Tiavei $ 5 $

7.- Occupancy 5  1567.57 5 $  2J67.57

8. Current Evenses 5  2.054.05 S $  2.054.05

Tel^none 5 $

Postaoe S $

Subscriptions $ 5 $

Audil and Leoal t * $

Irtsuranct S

Board Expenses s

9. Scflware 6 $

10. MerketinofCorTununications 5

11. Staff EducatioiT and Trafriino $  513,51 6 $  51351

12. Subconfracis/Aoreements S S

13. Other (speciSc details mandatory); $ t 5

Prevention Suopilet 5  40.000.00 5  40.000.00

Capacity building, marlcedng. artd evenu $  46.500.00 5  46,500.00

$

infcrmatton Systems 51.412.16 $  1.412.16

HR $770.27 $  770.27

GenAOntn s $770.27 $  770.27

Peyroa ano Accounang i $1,412.16 $  1.412.16

TOTAL S  129,655.14 $  4,364.86 $  154,000.00

The feoersBy approved NeeodMed IndirM Cost Reie Agreement <NICRA} for JSl Research ervl Trtfning institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits of salary) end'other general opersdng costs lo support proiect activities irtduifttg occupancy, equipment
general ofRcs sippties. tefecommirications and otTier ctfreru esqienses. information systems, accounting and payroO. human
resources vid staff develcpment. and general admJnisfrailvs support costs. The approvsdbasisfor appScalionof IheNlCRAis on
safaryAveges only inctuding holiday, sick and vacation.

JSl Research Training instXute. Inc. d/bfa Community Health Instiiute

RFP-201MIPHS-OWUBIIC/

Hh/'CDC

Page t ol 1
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HW-COC EjiNbit B-3. AmendmeM «5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSl Restarch a Training Instituta, Inc.

Budgtt Raqutst for. Public HtaJth Prof*s»ional Support Sor^Hcas

Budgat ParloO: FY21

— Program Cost yacmvs >.idA>r~caae!aet

Directers sKaatara^gei tr>dtractawetigs»r::i.iamUTotal vr

1. Total Salary/Wages i  2S.67S.69 i $  25.67S.69

2. Employee BerteSts i  9.756.75 S $  9.756.75

3. ConsiJtants 5 S S

4. Eouipmenl: i  770.27 5 $  770.27

Rentd 5 S

Repair and M^enance S $

PirchasafOepraciation s $

5. SiMHies; S  1.797.30 $ $  1.797.30

Educatlorxal s

1^ s s $

Phamtacv

■ Medical s i

Office $ s

6. Travel % $

7. OccuparKY S  2.667.57 s $  2.567.57

8. Currera Ejoertses fi 2,054.05 s S  2,054.05

Telepttena J S

Postage $ J s

Subscriptions s % s

Audit !snd teoal t s $

Insurance $ s s

Board &Q>enses s 5 s

9. SoQaare i $

10. MartietinofCommunications i

11. Staff Education and Trairm S  513.51 S $  513.51

12. Subfcoraads/Agreements 5 $

13. Other (specific details nwidaiory): 5

Preveniion Supplies S  40.000.00 S  40.000.00

Caoacity txddirto. martcelirra. and events S  45.500.00 $  46.500.00

$  -~ •

intormttnn Systtm $1,412.16 $  1.412.16

HP $770.27 $  770.27

GMAdm/n $ $770.27 $  770.27

t'symt and Accouneng i $1,412.16 $  1.412.16

TOTAL $  129.»3fi.14 $  4^.M $  134.000.00

tnObaci A* A Pareattt of Ciract 3.4%

Tt>e feoeraOy approved Nagottated Infract Coal Rate Agreement (NtCRA) for JSl Research ar>d Training mstrtute. Inc. Inciudas
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to nppon pro|aci activities IndudinQ occupancy. eqiiprTtanI,
general office aippSes. ideccmmutricaSons and other ctrrent expenses, information systems, accoiviting artd payroll, human
tesourcas and staff development, and gerteral adnSristraUve support costs. The approved tiasis lor application of tteNlCRA is on
salaryhMges only including holiday, sidt end vacation.

JSl Research TrtirWtg Institute, inc. dJbfa Community Health Institute

RTP-Z01&DPH&43-PUeUC/

Hr/-coc
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Ho<n« N^sMng Pwgfxn
Fonnula Grant Funds

EidtM B-4. Amendment «S

New Hampshire Department of Health and Hufnan Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY2t

saitsSe^^r^gsM^EahTotal Program CoattscsaeZ'iefSRxssekn

Line ftam tiggr-r yy-v;ea-r>:j«03 «r*s'»e«r(>lrartM«^*^?r^v"Alndlrecf*mV'iiea'«i.'ra>rv>iTr>fal' irjir
1. Total Salarvrwaoes % . 21.081.08 5 S  21.081.08
2. Employee BeneCis $  8.010.81 S S  S.010.81
3. Consukanis S s
4. Eouloment: S  632.43 $ * S  632.43

Rental s s S
Repaf* and Maiiienance s s s

Pircnase/Oepfedston s

5. Supplies: i  t.475.88 s S  1,475.68
Educalional $ s S

Lab s s

Pharmacy $ s
Medical 5 s
Office $ s

6. Travel S  2.500.00 $ S  2.500.00
7. Occupancy S  2.108.11 $ S  2.108.11
8. Current Expenses S  1.686.49 5 $  1.666.49

Telephone S S

Posiooo $ 5 s

Subscripiions 5 $ s

AudH and Leoai $ S s

Insurance 5 s

Board Expenses s $ s

9. Sofhwara S s

10. Markedrio'Communications s $ s

11. Staff Education and Training %  421.62 s S  421.62

12. Subccnlracls/Agreements s s

13. Other (specific details mandatory): 5 s

Learrang Excnanges S  6.000.00 S  6.000.00

Core Trying $  20.000.00 S  20.000.00
CO! S  2.500.00 S  2.500.00

HFA Traantrtg & Supports S  20.000.00 S  20,000.00
friAvmeSdn Systems SI.159.46 S  1,159.46

HR S632.43 S  632.43

Gen Adman s S632.43 S  632.43
Pay/M and Accounting s $1,159.46 S  1,159.46

TOTAL S  86At6.22 S  3^.78 S  90,000.00

InOlrect As A Percent of Direct 4.1%

Itte federally approved Negotiated mtfrcct Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) (or JSI Reseercfi and Training Institute, frxu includes
fringe bene^ (38% of salaiy) and other general operatirtg costs to support project activities including occupancy, eguipment.
general otTce suppUes, lelecomxnunicalforts end other ourreni expenses, Infomialion systems, accounting and payroO. human
rasoi.rces and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for appBcation of the NICRA is
on saiaryAvages only Induoing hoBday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Inslilute. Inc. d^ Community Heaiat Institute

RFP-2016-DPHS-03-PU81IC/

Home Visiting Program
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Home Visitino Program
Governor Commission Funds

EimSMiB-5 Amendinenies

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Profossfonal Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

d«4fties:5««?a.T»'»s*7Pi>Totel Pregnm Coetr.sts.'jws.^-iwssr'tnsofr^CT

Line Mam Direct *>c*-!.*«ra-TotaJ7^rf?7vi
1. Total SalaryAVaoes S  75.675.68 $ $  75.675.86
2. Emptoyee Beneffis S  28,756.76 s $  28.756.76
3. ConsuBants $ $
4. Equiomenl: »  2.270.27 s $  2.270.27

Rental s $ s

Reoar and Maintenance s $ 3

Purchase/Deoreobtion s s s

S. Supplies: 5  5.297.30 $  5.297.30
Educational s s )

Lab i 5 $

Pharmacy $ * $

Medical s 3

Office s 3

8, Travel $ 3

7. Occuoancy S  7,567.57 $ $  7.567.57
8. Current Expenses S  6.054.05 s $  6.054.05

Telephone s 5 3

Posiaoe S 3

SuOschpdons s i 3

Audit end Leoai % t 3

insurance I i 3

Board Expenses $ s 3

9, Software $ s
to. MareeiinQ/Communicaiions s s
11. Staff Education and Tralittna $  1.513.51 s $  1.513.51
12. Subcontracts/Agreements %
13. Other (specffic detads mandalofv): S t 3

3

3  '
3

3

tntotmaHon Systtms $4,162.16 S  4.162.16
HR $2,270.27 $  2.270.27

GenA^min 5 $2,270.27 $  2.270.27
HayroU kM ACcPvrrbn^ S i4,161li $  4.162.16

TOTAL $  127,135.14 $  t2.8$4.86 $  140.000.00

10.1%

The (ederaOy approved Negotiaiad mrSrecl Cost Rate Agreemeni <NICRA) (or JSI Research and Training institute, inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating cosu to support project acthriUes including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other currant expenses, infomvation systems, accounting and payrot. human
resources and staff developmeni. and general administrative support costs. The approved bash for appfcation of (he NtCRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sidi and vacaSon.

JSi Research Training instituie. Inc. d/b/a Community Health institute

RFP-2018.0PHS-03^UBLIC/

Home Veiling Program
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Horn* Visaing Program
OEMS Funds

Gimibii B-6. Amondmeni fS

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research t Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for Putillc Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Lfeie lta<?'niUSs3»r'J5c<-
l#3i^**iy«e<2a=c^<e.C£U*Totil Progrvn

vsaoifsf Direct cscr»rn«3tS3«y lndlrwct?igc?iia3Stir$*TotaliF<s*irr^
1. Total Safary/Wages S  25.94S.94 S $  25.945.94

2. Emptoyee Benefits 5  9.859.46 5 $  9.859.46
3. Consukams s S g

4. Eouipmenl: t  778.38 s $  778.38
Rental s $

Repair and Maintenarrce s %

Purchase/Depredation s s

S. Supples: S  1.816.22 s S  1.816.22
Educational s $ %

t.8b s s s

Pharma^ $ s s

Medical s $
Office s $

S. Travel s s

7. Occupancy $  2.594.59 5 $  2.594.59
6, Current Expenses $  2.075.68 i $  2.075.68

Telephorw i

Postaoe s s

Subscrtptions s s s

Auddand Leoal s s S

Insurance s s $

Board £)9>enses s s $

9. Software s 5 s

10. MarlcelingfCommunications $ S $

11. Staff Education and Training S  518.92 $ $  516.92
12. Subconiracfs/Acreemenis s s

13. Other (speciTic detals mandatory): $ $ $
Meetinfi Expenses $  2,000.00 $  2.000.00

$
$

lrtl6rm*tion S/sfems $1,427.03 $  1.427.03
HR $778.38 $  778.38

Gea Admin i $778.38 $  778.38
yayioa ana Accounong s $1,427.03 $  1.427.03

TOTAL S  45.S89.19 $  4.410.81 $  50,000.00

Indiract As A P«rc*nt of Oiract 9.7%

The federaSy approvad Nagodaled Indlradf Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) lor JSI Research end Training Institute, fete, incfcides
fringe ocnefits (^% of salary) and other general operating costs w support prpiect acd^s irtciudfcig occupancy, equipment,
general office suppGes. telecommunications and other current e;q>enses. fetformatlon systems, accounting and payrot. human
resources and staff development, and general adminlstralhre support costs. The approved basis for appUcabon of the NiCRA Is
on salary/wages only including hoGday. sick and vacation.

JSl Research Training Instilute. kK. iSlbIz Community Health Instlute

RFP-2018-OPHS-Ci^^Bl.lCf

Home Visiting Program
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Immunization Proorem ExMiii B-7. Amendmert «S

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research a Trainiisg bntltuta, Inc.

Budget Request for PuMk HaaRh Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

eaeeisiijcyt^scswyfMMrTettl Pregram Cost *5?'35'r'e«;c«oSvsr*»».

Line itemi -h inULj gejsaaOlractoa>CiL>^r3ja.lftdtraet<a'^aasa»aa3saTotalaw.j.»-

1. Total Saiarn/Waoes S  37.650.76 9 S  37.656.76

2. Emplojwe DeneCts S  14J09.S7 9 9  14.309.57

3. Conscttants $ s

4. E^spmera: S  1.(29.70 9 S  1.129.70

Rental s 9 9

Repair and Mtinienance 9 9

PurchasefOepredation 9 9

S. Stpplias: S  2.635.97 9 9  2.635.97

Educet>or«l 9

Lab 9 9

Pharmacy 9 9

Medicd s 9 9

(Office 9 9

6. Travel 9  335.00 9 9  335.00

7. 0cci.98ncy 9  3.765.66 9 9  3.765.68

S. Ctfreni Etpenses 9  3.0(2.54 9 $  3.012.54

Teieohone 9 9 9

Postage s 9 9

Subscdoeons 9 9

Audit end Leoal 9 9

Insurance 9 9

BoerdE^enses 9 9

9. Softvrara 9 9 $

10. MarksiirxVComm'jnrcaflbns 9  5.000.00 9 S  5.000.00

11. Staff EducMion and Trairina 9  753.14 9 9  753.14

12. SubeontraasiAgreements 9 9

13. Other (speciAc oetaSs mandstorv); 9 9

Coherence 9  5.000.00 $  5.000.00

9

9

9

In/vmabon Hystem* iij)71.12 9  2.071.12

HU 91.129.70 9  1.129.70

(miAOmm i $1,129.70 $  1.li4.70
^^^yr6a And AcdOunlmg 9 92J)71.12 9  2.071.12

TOTAL 9  73.996.39 9  9.401.64 $  60,000.00

TM r»(je(8ly epproveti NcgotiBteti IraSfeci Cost R«ts >^re«meflt (NiCRA) for JSI Reseorcft and Training Insiiluta. Inc bxfudas
fringe benencs (3m of caisfy) and cKhtr gtncral opefBting eo$i« to aivport project aciviGes ircluiSng ectt«ancy. equpment
general office Sigpfieo. telecomminications and other cuneni ei^enses. infonnaSon eyalerm, accogndng and payroB. human
resources and staff oevetopment. and general admWstra&ve iivpon costs. The approved basis (or appfcaiion of the ̂ ffCRA is on
sataryTwages only kxJuding hofiday. ̂efc and vacation.

JSI Research Ironing InstiiUe. Irtc. d/Va Comnwity Health Institute

RFP-201W)PHS-<».PUBLIC/

Immixuaaon Piograw

Pagaloff
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New l-lampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY MIZALTI I

INSTITUTI: is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to iransaei business in New Hampshire on April 12, 2016. I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrclar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this ofllcc is concerned.

Business ID: 742096

Certificate Number: 0004883373

u.

IN TI:STIMONV WHI-KI-QIs

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Sea! of the Stale ol" New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Sccrciarj' of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccrctar)- of Stale of the Stale of New Mampshire. do hereby certify thai JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachiisclls Nonprofit Cor|X)ration registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17.

2016. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Sccrctarj- of State's ofTicc have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Ccniflcaie Number: 0004883368

o

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afll.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2020.

W-

William M. Gardner

Secrctar>' of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

I, Joel H. Lamstein. of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby
certify that:

1. I am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community

Health Institute:

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

■Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dared October 24. 2008:

RESOLVED: Appointment of Katherine Robert as Director of the Community Health Institute
with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of June 5lh, 2020

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute.

Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute this 5th day of June 2Q20

el H. Lamstein,^Rresident

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this St da v of June 2020 bv Joel H. Lamstein.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires:
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DMEANEY

DATE (MMrt>D/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.
458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382

CONTACT Judy Yeary

rA/c.NVExn; (781) 447-5531 wc.no1:(781) 447-7230
Ir^lllsss-jyea'Y^niasoninsure.com

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC0

INSURER A: Great Northern insurance Co. 20303

INSURED . . ...
John Snow Inc.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
World Education, Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street

Boston, MA 02210-1206

INSURERS:Federal Insurance Comoanv 20281

INSURER c: Executlve Risk Indemnltv 35181

INSURERD :

INSURER E :

INSURERF;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL

INSO
SUBR

WVD POUCY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

(MM/ODAfYYYl
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL 6E NERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR 35873320 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
s  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED j  1,000,000

MED EXP (Anv one oerson)
S  10,000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY
5  1,000,000

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
j  2,000,000

X

POLICY 1 1 LOG
OTHER: Agg $10M

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
j  Included

s

B AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

73546634 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 5  1,000,000

X

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
rros

BODILY INJURY (Per nerson) %
O'MJEO
AUTOS ONLY

Al^lPs ONLY

X
sc
AL BODILY INJURY (Per eccWenl) %

mm?
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccldenti %

%

B X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE 79661066 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  20,000,000

AGGREGATE
J  20,000,000

DEO RETENTIONS '

s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y ̂ ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE I 1

If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIOHS below

N/A

71733182 9/9/2019 9/9/2020

V PER OTH-
^ STATUTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
J  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
J  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE ■ POLICY LIMIT
5  1,000,000

C

B

ERRORS & OMISSIONS

DIRECTORS & OFFICERS

82120859

81595534

11/30/2018

11/30/2018

11/30/2019

11/30/2019

GENERAL AGGREGATE

EACH OCC/GEN AGG

2,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddltlontI Remarks Schaduta, may be attached II more space Is required)
Blanket Additional Insured status is granted to the Certificate Holder with respect to Commercial General Liability ONLY IF required In written contract and per
the terms and conditions of Chubb CGL form 80-02-2367

NK Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

,

ACORD 25(2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

The Communiiy Health institute's mission is to supjjort and strengthen New HamjDsliire's
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,
statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social scr\nces
for all New Hampshire residents.
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INDKPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
JSI Researcli and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Consolidated Finaiicial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fihahcial statements of JSI'Research and
frainnig Institute, Inc. and Affiliate (lioth non-profit organizations), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2018, arid the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes.to the consolidated financial statements.

Mahagcmcntfs Responail)iMt>' for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation- and fair pre.sentation of these consolidated,
tmancial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally.accepted in the Uniied
Slates ol America; this mcfudes the design, implenientatipn,.and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the pi-cparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements tliat are free
irom material misstalemenl, whether-duc to fraud or error.

Auditor's Rcsponsibilitj''

Oui responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements.based on
our audit We conducted our audit In accordance witii auditing standards generally acceplcd in
the United States of America and the slandards applicable to financial audits coniained in
Gowrnmcnl Auditing Suinclanis, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audilTo obtain reasonable assurance about
whether thc.conSohdalod llnancial statements arc J>ee of niaterial misslalemehl.
Ah audit involves perfcrming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
discipsures in the consolidated Imancrai slatemerits.' Tire pfocedures selected depend on tiie
auditor s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated .financial statements, whetiter due to fraud or eiror.' in making those risk



assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial staleinents in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in. the circumstances; but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion' on the
effectiveness of the entity s internal control. Accordingly, we.express no such opinion. An audit

■also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies, used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as-well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the.consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for Our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the finaheial position of .IS! Research and Training laslitule, Inc. and . Affiliate
as ol September 30, 2018, tind the ciianges in Ihcir net assets and their Gash Hows fo,r the year
then ended in accordance with accouhting principles generally accepted in the United vStates of
America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a vyiiole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as
required by Titje 2 U,S. Code of Federal Hegulatiom- Part 200; Uniform Adminislrative
Reqmremenis, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal A\\xirds,. \5 \ixtsc\\\c<i for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such inlormalion is the responsibility of management and was derived Irom and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such, information directly.to the underlying accounting and„olher records used to
prepare the consolidated fihancial statements or to the consolidated financial .statements
themselves, and other additional proeedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United S.lates of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly staled, in all
material respects, in relation to UjC ^dhsolidated financial statements taken as a vyhdie.
Report on Sumniqrized Comparative information

Wc have prcyiously audited the JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
consolidated fmancial siatemcnis, and we expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited
iinancial statements .in our report dated April 23. 2018. In oiir opinion, the summarized
consolidated comparative information presented herein as of and Tor the year, ended September
30, 2017 IS consistent, in ail malerial respects, with the audited consolidated financial slateiiients
fipni Vvliich it has been derived.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing

In accordance with.Gove/v?/;?^/?/ Auditing Sumc/ards, we have also issued a report dated May 1,
2019, on our consideration of .iSI Research.and Training Institute, Inc. and Amiiate's internal
contibl over financial reporting and on Opr tests of their compliance with certain provisipns of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, the purpose of that report
is to describe the scope oJ our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral parl ofan audit performed in accordance with Government
Aycliling Standards- .'in considering JSI Research and 'iVaining Institute, Inc. and Affiliate-s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Duxbury, Massachusetis
May 1,2019"



JSI.Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivaleius
Receivables for prograni work
Field advances - progmni
Bmployec advances

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment:
Furniture and ccjuipineiil
Leasehold improvemeiils

Less: Accunuilated depreciation

Net Propert}' and Equipment

Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

$  76.856,647

20,895,129

631,877

190,734

3,807

98,578,194

679.098

30,355

70,9,453

(671.2481

38,205

146,741

2017

$  74,642,976

19,782,268

1,697,407

190,500

67,950

96.381,101

679,098

30,355

.709,453

(65L4231

58,030

I  19,888

S  98,763,140 % 96.559,019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

"CiuTciit Liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll wiihhoidings
Accrued vacation

Advaiiccs for program work

Loans payable - related party
Notes' payable

Contingencies

■fotfli Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted
'fern pdfari ly restricteci

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

16,128,795
1,810,950

27,130,737
369,577

45,440,059

53,065,872
257,209

53,323.081

1 1,678,687
1 ,920,9^4

35,095,465
^196;828

48,891,944

47,467,027
200,048

47,667,075

$  98^63,140 S 96,559,019

See notes to con.solidatccl rinancial statenyents.



JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Eticied September 30, 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

2018

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Public Support and Revenue

Public Support:

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government

Comnionweallh of Massaciuiselts

Other grants and contracts
Program income

Contributions

In-kind project coiUributions"

.Interest income

Total Unreslricled Siippoil and Revenue

Expenses

Program Services:

internationnl programs

Domestic programs

"i'olal Program Services

Supporting Scr\'ices:

Management aiid General

Timd raising

'Total Supporting Services

Total Expenses

lncrease,(Decrcasc) in Unrestricted Net Assets

2017

253,443,526

6 J 04,553

67,653,412

148,646

3.802,515

2,600,580

.359.495

334,1 12,727

274,067,835

20,894,935

294,962,770

33,264,070

229,881

33,493,951

328,456,721

5,656,006

$ 271,426,627

5,258,877

57.926.89.1.

99,859

332,613

14,444,516

I2U:I68

349,610,551

293,709.946

19.65,3,5.91

313,36.3,537

33,327,219

149,914

33,477,133

346,840,670

2,769,881

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Program restricted net assets

[ncrea.se (decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets
32.840

3^840

Increase (decrease) in net a.ssets

Net AsseLs at Beginn ing of Year

Net Assets at End of V.ear

5,656,006

47,667.075

$  53323,081

2,802.721

44,864,354

$  47,667,075

See iidtes to' consolidated financial statements.



JSl Research and Training-institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEiMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Ye^ Ended September 3^0^. 2018
(With Comparative Totals for 2017)

PROGR/\M SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES

TOTAL

EXPENSES

international

Programs

Domestic

Programs- Total

Management

And General Fundroising Total 2018 2017

•Salaries

Consultants

Coopcraiirig National

Saiaries

Travel

Allowance & Training

Sub-con tnicb;

Equipinciit. Maicna! and

.Supplies

Other Costs

Iri-kind project expenses'

Depreciation

25;490.8I9

15.089,802

48;29r.700

M.'852.184

10.944.826

109.851.141

9.786.037

4p.J60.746

2.600.580

8.391.315

5.292.500

340

874.172

63.463

4.499.510

164.421

i.609.214

33.882.134

2.0.382:302 "

4S.292.D40

12,726;.>56

I i-.608.289

114.350.651

9:950.458

4L769.960

2.600.580

6.151.025

1.688,340

567.964

467,576

143.043

18.35!

220.300

23.987:646

19.825

140.554

5.250

141

22.438

61.498

6.291.579

1.693.590

567.964

467:717

143.043

40.789

220.300

24.049.144

19.825

40.173.713

22.075.892

48;860.064

13:194.073

1 1.151.332

114:39 i.440

10.170.758

65,819.104

2.600.580

19.825

40.871.378

22.364.241

36.6.10.98.1

.14.094,230

10.422.764

127.851.455

14.425.484

65.738.817

I4.444.516

16.802

TOTAL EXPENSE S  274,067.835 20.894.935 S" 294.962.770 33,264,070 229,881 33.493.951 S 328,456,721 S 346,840,670

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

OS



JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. and Affiliate
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended September 30, 20 r8
(With Gomparative Totals for 2017)

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Increase (Decrease) in tict assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
•  cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in receivables, for program work
(liicrcase) Decrease in field advances - program
(Increase) Decrease in employee advances
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid cxpetises
(In.creaiie) Decrease, in other assets

Increase (Decrease) jn accounts payable and
payrdli withlipldings

Increase (Decrease) in accriied vacation

Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work

Net Cash Provided (Used) 13y
Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Iriycstiiig Activities:
Loans made

Loans repaid

Acquisition of properly and equipment

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Investing Activities

Net Increase (Pecreasc) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

$  5,656,006 $ 2,802,721

19,825 16,802
(1.-1 12,861) (1.284,050)

1,065-530 (26,655)
(234) -85,513

64.143 • ("67,950)
.  (26,853) ;(10,830)

4,450,108 804,812

(1 10,014) '96,527

(7,964,728) 4,4.53,041

2,040,922.

(196,828)

369,577

172,749

2,213,671

.74,642,976

6,869,93

(1,001,492)

196,828

(42,606')

(847,270)

6.022.66

68,620,315

S  76,856,647 S 74,642,976

Sec notes to, consolidated financial statements.



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2018

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and 1 raining Institute, inc. was incorporated in the Commonwealth ofMassachusetts
on April 11, 1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the United Stales and abroad
Current funding is principally from the-United States Agency for International Development and
the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS).

JSI Research and fraining Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. (Affiliate)
with such powers as arc typically accorded to a .sole member including the power of appointment
and removal of the World Education, inc. board .of trustees, the right to approve amendments to
the bylaws and certificate of incorporation of World Education, Inc., and the right to approve any
merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of World Education, Inc.

World Education, Inc. (AiTiliate) was loiinded in 1951 and incorporated in the stale of New Jersey.
Working in partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and
the United States, it provides professional assistance in the design and impjementaiion of non-
formal adult education programs. These programs integrate functional education with relevant
prpblem-sblving aspects of individual growth and national development such as health, nutrition,
family plajihing, childcare, refugee education, agricultural practices, literacy, and income
generation.

JSI Research and I rmning Institute, Inc, and its affiliate arc tax exempt organizations under 501
(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and .file separate uncohsoliclated tax returns.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated llnancial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. nnd World Education, Inc., its airiliate, (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant ihtra-entily accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accouhting
1 he consolidated financiai statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing thc-accrua!
basis of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and its
affiliate in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.



JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO COiNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements hi conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires managenient to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may
differ from those estimates.

Fair Value

The Organization values its quaiifyihg assets and liabilities under a l^iir value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The hierarchy consists of three
broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active .markets for identical
a.ssets and liabilities and have the highest priority, Level .2 inputs consist of ob.servable inputs other
than quoted prices for identical assets, and Level 3 inputs bave the lowest priority. The
Organization uses, appropriate valuation techniques based on ihc available inputs to measure the
fair value of its assets and liabilities. When available, the Organization measures fair value using
Level 1 inputs bccati.se they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.

Cash arid Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates
of three months or loss to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates fair value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments.

Irivestmcnts

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and a|l investments,in
debt securities (marketable investnients) are measured at fair values based on quoted market prices
in the consolidated statement offinancial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
.statement of activities.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated depreciation.
Acquisitions of property and equipinerit in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the, book value of the respective
assets over their estimated useful lives (5 - 7 years) of the related assets.

Revenue Recognition
The piajofiiy of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements,
and grants with U.S. government agencies, primarily the United States Agency for International
Development and the United Sl:ate.s Department of l-leaitli and l-luman Services. Revenues arc
recognized when the Organization incurs qualifying expenditures tiiat are reimbursable under the
terms of'the contracts, agreements or grants, of in accordance with the grantor's restriclions.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affdiatc
NOTES TO CONSQLlbATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMM ARV OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Revenue Recognition - continued
Unrestricled and restricted contributions are recognized as revenue at the date the pledge is made

. or the gift is received, whichever is earlier.

Cohtributmns

CoiUribulions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restriciions.
Contributioiis are reported as temporarily restricted supporl and are then feclassified to unrestricted
net assets upon expiration of the lime restriction. Temporarily restricted support, whose
restrictions are met in tlie same reporting period, is shown as;unrestricted support.

bonatcd Materials and Sendees
Donated materials and sendees are recorded as in kind .project contributions at their estimated fair
market value-as of the dale of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated
statement of activities. Donated services are recognized if the services received, create or enhance
non-nnancial assets or require specialized skills that are provided by individuals po.ssessing those
skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation.

Incoitic Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is not a private fpundatipn as described in Section 509. Accordingly,-no provision for
income taxes is included in the accompanying consolidated financial staterhents.

The Organization has evaluated its fax positions and believes that there would be no malefial
changes to the results of its.operafions or flnancial.position as a result dfaii audit by the applicable
taxing authorities, federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required returns
in a timely manner including as permitted allowed extensions. Following administrative practice
of the taxing .authorities, the tax years 2015. 2016, 2017 and 2018, reinajn open yeai's subject to
examination and review.

JSI Research arid Iraining institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. (AflHiate) file separate
imconsolidatcd tax returns. JSTResearch arid Training Institute, Inc. files lax returns based on a
September 30"' year end and its alTiliate files tax returns based on a June 30"' year end.

Functionjil Allocation of Expenses
(he costs oi providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the consolidated statement of actiVitie.T Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

10



JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial Statement Presentation

In accordance vvith accounting principles generally accepted in tlie United States of America, the
Organization reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three
classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets based upon the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions. For the
year ended September 30, 2018 there was no activity in permanently restricted net assets.

Prior Year CofnparaHvc Totals .
The financial statements include prior-year summarized comparative information in total. Such
information does not include sufficient detail to. constitute a presentation in confomiity with
accounting principles generally accepted in. the United Stales of America. Accordingly, such
information should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements for the year
ended September 30, 2017, from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassification

Ceilain amounts ibr 2017 have been rcclassified to confonn to current year presentation.

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand.deposits and money market funds at financial institutions.. At
linies, certain balahce.s held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United Stales
Government. The uninsured portioiis of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the
assets of the financial institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a
financial loss to the Organization. However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these
accounts in the past and management believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

Fair Value

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization values its qualifying assets aiid liabilities .under a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs and assumptions used to measure fair value. The three levels of the fair value hicraj-chy
are as follows:
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDAI ED FINANCIAL STATKMFNTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS - continued

Fair Value - continued

• Uvel 1 - Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets Qr liabilities at the measurement date. '

•  Lcvej 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for the asset
either directly or indirectly, Including inputs from markets that are npt considered to be
active.

•  Level 3 - IJnobscrvable inputs which reflect the Organization's, assessment of the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability including
assumptions about risk.

A qualifying asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any
input that is signiricaht tO the fair value measurement.

I he .follo.wins's a summary of fair values of investments which are measured on a recurring basis
using Level 1 inputs as recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at September
30,2018:

CuiTcnt assets;

Cash and cash equivalenls (invested) $ 63,194,532

$  63,194,532

No assets or liabilities were measured at Level 2 or Level 3.

The following schedule summarizes the investhient return and its classification in llie Consolidated
Slalemehf of Activities for the year ended Septeni.ber 30,2018:

Unrestricted

Interest ihcpme $ 3.59.495

Total investment return S 359,495
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDA'I ED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a
provision tor bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment
of the CLirfeht status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off througlva charge to the valuation allowance
and-a credit to accounts receivable. The allowiince for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2018
wasSO.

Receivables for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2018:

U.S. Agency for International Development $ 12,911,645
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 716.214
U.S. Depailmenl of Slate 2 219 003
Commonwealth .of Ma.ssachuseUs 847,669
Other - non-govcmmenlal 4,200,598

S 20,895,129

NOTE 6 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - RELAI ED PARTY

Loans receivable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans, due on demand,
from .lohn Snow, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on the loans! The
loans receivable balance.at September 30, 2018 is $0.
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JSI Research and Training institufc, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CQNSOLTDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances are as follows:

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment $ 679,098 $ (64b;893) $ 38,205
Leasehold improvements 3Q»355 (30,355)

S  709,453 S (671,248) S 38,205

Depreciation expense was $19,825 for the year ended September 30, 201,8.

NOTE 8 - OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist.of the followirig at September 30, 2018:

Deposits $ 109,79.6

Artwork, - donated , '36;945

$  146,741

Donated artwork is recorded at a discounted appraised value at the dale of gift.
(

NOTE 9 - ACCRUED VAC ATION

in accordance with formal i^plicics, vacation was accrued at September 3.0, 2018 as follows:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. $ 1,546,016

World Education, Inc. (Alfiliate) 264,934

S  1,810,950
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. arid Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIOATEP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FQR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2018:

Other - non-governmental
Partnership for Supply Chain Management, inc. (related parly) $ 91.723
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation 20 858 284

6.180.730

$  27,130,737

NOTE 11 - LOANS PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

Loans payable - related party consist of various unsecured short-term loans^ payable on demand,
Irom John SnOw, Inc., a related party (See NOTE 17). No interest is charged on (he loans. The
loans payable balance at September 30, 2018 is $369,577.

NOTE 12 -NOTES PAYABLE

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has a revolving line of eredit established February 3, 2004 vvjth
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts vyith a borrowing limit ofup to $500,000, The revolving line of
credit was renewed on September 10, 2018. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is charged
by utilizing a lluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line ofcredit
remains in effect until May 31, 2019 and ahhually Ihereafier contingent upon performance. The
loan is collateraJized by a first priority interest in a|l the assets of World Education, inc. No funds
were borrowed during the year and as a result, as of September 30, 2018, the outstanding balance
is $0 aiid no intercsT.vvas incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 20,18.

John Snow. Inc:

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) has an unsecured revolving line of credit established September
1, 2007 with John Show, Inc. (arelatcd party) with a borrowing limit ofup toil,000,000. The
loan was renewed ph July I ; 2016. ,Interest is charged by .utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the
current prime rale plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, in iiny event, on or pripr to
June 30,'2.018. Ihe loan is.not collaleraiized. No funds were boiTowed during the year and as a
iesult, as of Septcinber 30,.2018, the outstanding balance, is $0. No interest vva's incurred on this
loan duringtheyearcnded September 30, 2018. (SeeNQTE 17)
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2018

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

in accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the
Organization, are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingehtly liable fof any
disallowed costs. Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an
audit, would be Immaterial.

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. is a co-borrower (with a-rclated parly) ofa demand loan
with no balance due at September 30, 2018. Management believes.lhat.the co-boiTOwer is.curreiit
on the loan and that its collateral exceeds the balance due. (See NOTE 17)

Provisional inciirecl "cost rates are negotiated with the United States Agency for Intefnationai
Development (AID) on an annual basis. As of September 3.0, 2018, actual indirect cost rates have
been approved by AID for JSl Research and Training Institxite,^ inc. through December 3.1, 2012
and World Education., Inc. thfOiigh June 30, 2015. Based on fjworable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead fates, if any,- would not be material to
the financial statements.

NOTE 14 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net.assels are restricted by donors as follovvs at September 30,.2018;

"  Program Services $ 257,209

During the year ended September 30, 2018. $5,000 of temporarily restricted net assets were
released from donor restriction by dccurrclke of events specified by the donbr.

NOTE 15 - SURPLUS REVENUE RETENTION

In accordance \vilh the Massachusetts Division of Bureau Services, Regulation 808 OMR 1.03(7),
"if, through cost savings initiatives implemented cohsistcril with programmatic and contractual
obligations, a non-profit Contractor accrues an annual net surplus from the revenues and expenses
associated with services provided to Departnienls which are subject to. 808 CMR 1.00, the
Contractor hiay retain, for future use, a portion of that annual surplus not (o exceed 20% of.said
revenues. .Surpluses may be used bythe Contractor for any of its established charitable purposes,
provided that no portion of the surplus may be used for any nbh-reinibursable,c,bsi set forth in 808
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JSt Research and Training-Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NdXES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 15 - surplus REVENUE RETENTION - continued

OMR 1.05, Ihe free care prohibition cxceplccl. Operational Services Division shall be responsible
for determining the amount of surplus that hiay be, retained by each Contractor in any given year
and may determine whether any excess surplus shajl be used to reduce future prices or be
recouped."

for the year ended September 30, 2018, the organization did not have an annual net suiplus.that
e.xceedcd 20% of relevant Massachusetts revenues.

NOTE 16-COMIVIONVVEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

Tlic following is a-schedule of e.xpenditures with the Commonwealth of Massnchuseifs:

Receivables Irom program work at October 1,2017 $ " 584,391
Receipts (5,841,275)
Disbursements/expenditures 6,104,553

Receivables from program work at September 30, 2018 $ 847,669

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snowline.
JSI Research and 'J'raining Institule, Inc. (an exempt organization) iind .lohn Snow;, Inc. (a non-
exempt corporation) purchase consulting sendees from each other. Mr. Joel Lamstein is President
and Director of both organizations, and is the sole stockholder of John Snow, Inc. The two
cpmpahie.s bill each other at the.same rales that they bill the fcderal and slate governments.

During the year.ended September 30, 2018, John Snow, Inc. billed JSI Research,and Training
Institute, Inc. $30,676,239 for consulting services (technical support). This amoimt is rellected
under the program services - consulting line itein ($16,769,197) and program services - other costs
Ime Item ($13,907,042) on the statement of functional expenses. In addition, JSI Research and
Training institute. Inc. performed consulting .services (technical support) for John Show In'c
totaling $7,179,908. ■ '

1 lie two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2018, JSI Research and Training Insiilutc, Inc. incuiTcd $26,038,286 of overhead
expenses (supporting services), of which $10,220.-583 was its share of John Snow, Inc. incurred
costs.
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JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 17-RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS-continued

John Snow, Inc. - continued
JSI Research and Training institute, inc. is a co-borrower with John Snow, Inc. on a commercia!
demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration date of May 31. .2019, which allows for
borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collnteralized by a security agreement with a first
posilipn lien on all .corporate assets of JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc. and John Snow,
Inc. including assignment of promissory notes, and security documents between the two
companies, interest is charged by utilizing a fluctuating rale based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus
two percent (2.00%) payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30. 2018 vvas 4.176%. At
September 30, 2018, a balance of $0 was outstanding on the loan. Management believes the loan
payable will be extended, when due, under similar tenns and conditions.

s

During the year, the Company had various loans receivable due from, and various loans payable
due to John Snow,-Inc. At September 30, 2018, the loan receivable balance is $0 and the loan
payablc'balance is $369,577.

World Education, Inc, (Affiliate) has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc.
will provide-administratiye and technical support as decriicd necessary by World Education, I'nc.'s
Board of Trustees. Transactions with John SnoW, inc. for the year ended September 30. 2018 are
summarized as follows:

Administrative and technical support $ 1.549,343
Other direct charges (including rent of $892,543) 1,276,616

S  2,825,959

y

The agreement is on a year-to-yeaj- basis and can be terminated by either party upon ninety days
written notice to the other.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured line of credit with JohnSnow, Inc. with a borrowing limit
of up to $1,000,000. (See NOTE 12)

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc.
Partnership for Supply Chain Management^ Inc. (PSCM) (an exempt organization) was
incorporated on February 14, 2005 by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management
Sciences for Health, Inc. Each.organization has 50% control.

PSCM has been awaided a U.S. government contract to procure and deliver life-saving medicines
and-medical supplies to treat HIV/AIDS paiiem.s worldwide. The contract for the Supply Chain
Management System project was awarded through the U.S. Agency for the International
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JS! Research anil Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOUPATEI) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 17 - related PARTY TliANSACTIONS - continued

Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. - continued
Development as part of the U.S. gbverriment's $15 billion President's Ememehcy Plah for AIDS
Relief.

Mr. .Ipel Lamstein, President and Director of .181 Research and 'fraining Institute, Inc., is President
arid Director of PSCM.

During the year ended September 30,2018, JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. billed PSCM
$6,504,555 for services performed.

Other
The Organization has an agreement, with a certain related company to purchase ser\'ices.
Transactions with this company were charged Iq su'b-cohtracts expense and are as follows:

Tlie h4anofl Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation;
40% bvvncd by John Snow, Inc.) $ 539.027

$ ' 539,027

NOTE 18- RETIREMEN T PLANS

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc. has a defined contribution profit sharingMOl (R) plan
covering substantially ah its employees. Employee contributions are voluntiu-y. As of June 30,
2018, employer contributions were based on a percentage (1,0% - 15% depending on length of
service) of salary. As of July 1, 2018, the Company contributes an amount equal to 7% of the
employees mpnthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, einployees will
receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to their reiifemeht accoiint. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account will automatically .be
enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. The Plan was effective April 11,1979.
Pension expense was $4,363,861 for the year ended September 30, 201.8.

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) provides reliremcnt benefits to substantially all employees under
a plan. World Education, Inc.'s contribution's of 7 percent of employee salaries are used to
purchase individual annuities. Additional voluntary contribution.s may be made by thc emplpyees.
Participants of the plan ai'e luily and immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension
costs incLined by World Educatioii, Inc. were $357,246 for the,year ended .September 30. 2018.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

" September 30, 2018

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases
The JSI Research and Training insliUile, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from TO 19 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to 5 years.

During the year ended September 30, 2018, rentals under long-term lea.se obligations were
$539,4.64. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's Ipng-teim leases as of
September 3.0, 2018 arc:

Year Ended

September 30,

201,9 $ 2,594,650
2020 2,777,736
2021 . 2,888,057

'niercaller 1.481,270

$  9,741,713

World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent
expense for the year ended September 30. 2018 was $892,543.

NOTE 20-CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various
departments and agencies of the Federal government.

I he. Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources
for the year ended September 30, 2018:

Income Vo of

Received Total Income

U.S. Agency for International Developmcrit $ 199,317,085 59.66%
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2018

NOTE 21 - IN KIND PROJECT CONTRIBUTIONS

The Orgahization r.eceives donated materials and sen'ices consisting orc.omhiodities, facilities and
equipment, and services for use in its programs from overseas collaborative private voluntary
organizations and from foundations providing grants directly to a project. Donated materials and
services totaled $2,600,580 for the year ended September 30, 2018, arid are reflected as In .Kind
Project Contributions On the Consolidated Staternent of Activities, and in Kind Project Expenses
on the Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses.

V

These contributions satisfy part of the matching requirements needed to obtain full funding on
certain iJ.S. Agency for International Development grants. During the year ended September 30,
2018, the following donated materials and services received by the Organization have been used,
to fulTjll matching re.quiremerits on active giants:

36697 SPRING $  180,342
36800 Advancing Partners 524,822
36895 ■ Mozambique M-SIP 14,403
370'24 Tanzania CHSS 267,610
37095 Myanmar UNCF-MM-QOC 45,638,
-37134 Timor Lesle RBHS .25,241
37162 Ghana HI V/AinS 139,034
37.186 Madagascar'GClT. ... 169,507

37260 Ethiopia CBNC 3 • 18,354
,37265 Ethiopja TRANSFORM 262,587
631 14 Uganda 57,043
64057 Ziriib.abwe -242,586
64062 Uganda 41,226
64071 OUTCOMES 308,063

64074 Mozambique. 304,124

%  2,600,580

NOTE 22 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

the Organization has cvalualed subsequent events through May 1, 2019, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, there were no
subsequent events that require adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.
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.]$! Research »nii Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or Fedenil Passed

Federal Grantor/Pass-lhrough Grantor
Progrnni Title

Pass-through

Number.

CFDA

Nuniber

Through to

Subrccipients

Federal

Expenditures
1

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT:
i

Direct Grants:
1

i

36521 - Uganda MIV/AIDS/TI3 6I7-A-00-09-00007-00 98.001 $ $  151

36697 - SPRING AID-OAA-A-I l-OOO.H 98.001 - I0,076,.548 ,
i

367,02 - Nepal Ct iX Cord Care AID-OAA-A-1 1-00073 98.001 - 235,961
i

!
36800 - Advancing Partners AID-OAA-A-I2-OOO.I7 98:001 22,766,072 46,458,820 1

36845 - Pakistan HSSP Ali:)-391-A-l.V00002 98.00! (437) 1,973,985

36895 - Mozanibiqiic M-SlP * All>6.56-A-l3-00()06 98.001 - 1,584,313 i

36991 - AIDSFREE .AID-OAA-A-14-OO.na6 98.001 36,748,664 62,188,777
1

37024 - Tanzania CHSS AII.)-62!-A-l4-Cl0004 98.001 65.0,551 '5,75.5,790 J-

37129 - Zambia Discover Health ' AID.6I l-A-16-000.04 98.00,1 1,569,350 22,602,34 i
1

(

37134 - Tinier Leste RBHS AID-472-A-l6-000()l 98:001 - 1.432.785

37162-Ghana MIV/AIDS A1D-641.A-I6-00007 9^001 1,234,077 .  3,75.6,222 i

'37186 - Madagascar GCJ-! AID.687-A-I6.0000I 98.001 ■ 348.946 6,506,222

37356 ?• Building ilealihy Cities AH)-()AA-A-17-0d02X 98.001 181,987 651,121
\

37360 - Pakistan IHSS - SD AID-391-A-I7-00002 98;001 1,007.706 3,094,096
>

37437 -OKDACB 720[-DAl8C;Rdn039 98.001 - 44,792
1

37462 - USAID Advancing Nujillion 7200/\AI8C00070' 98.001 - 156,413
J

\

Total Direct Grants- CFDA «98.06l .  64,506,916 166,518,337
k

\

Pass-through Grants:
'

Passed thrdiigh Partnership for. Supply Chain
V

1

Management, Inc. (PSGM):

36519/36524/37034/37053/37150 - Supply ;

Chain Management System GPO-l-00-(:i.5-00032-00 98.001 - 4,424,1 12
i

Parsed through Johns Hopkins University: i
i

■37099 - Ethiopia SBCC AID-66.TA-I5-0000I 1 98.001 - (6.382)
i

Passed through Ralhilnder International:

37265 - Ethiopia TRANSFORM ' AID.663AI700002 98.001 - 7,423,425
j

Passed through Prograni for Appropriate technology 1

in Health: •

37301 - Open LMIS- Phiisc I AID.2I34-1)15557I6-CR 98.001 - 698
37434 - GOFR Connect AlDOAA-A-16-00084 98.001 - •  17,020

Pas.sed thrpugh The National Cooperative Business , •  i

Association:
i

37375 - Senegal ITFCpltNi 720685 laCAOOOO! 98.001 - 281,712
i
1

Sec nptcs'lo Schedule of Expenditures of rederal Awards. 22



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Fcdcriil Grnntor/Pass-throiigh Grantor

•  ProgrnmTitlc

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

Pass-through Grunts (continued):
Passed through Baylor Gollcge of Medicine:

37408 -Baylor SZ MIS
■pnsscd ihrougii Uniicd Naijohs Foundation:

37464 - DIAL Open GMIS

A!r)-67

Agency or
Pass-through

Number

=LA-I !fj.0003

AID-OAArA-)4-00067

Total Pass-through Grants - CFDA #98.001

Total - CFI>A.#98,0.01 - USAII) Foreign
Assistance for Prograins Overseas

TOTAL - U:S. ACENGY FOR INTERNATIONA L
DEVELOPMENT

Federal Passed
CFDA Through to Federal

Number .Subrccinients Expenditures

98.001

98.001

134.703

204

12,275,492

64,506,916 178,793.829

S 64;566,9I6 $ 178,793.829

U..S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Direct Grant:

37087 - Adolescent HiV/AIDS Prevention MAIAMOOpOO)
Total'CPDA #93.057 - Nallohal Resource Center

for HIV Prevention Among Aildle.sccnts

Pa.ss-through Grants;
Passed through Connecticut Dept. of Public Hcalih:
37160 - CT Ql Asthma Program

Passed through Slate of Vermont:
37212 -VTMPDP Evaluation

Passed ihrough Rhode Island Dept. of Health:
37344,-Tick Free RI Branding

Passed ihrough New Hampshire Dept. of HHS:
37429 - NH Consiilliiig

Total CFDA #93.070 - Environmental i^ublic
Health and Eiiiergcncy Response

i.og# 2016-0099

Conlnicl t/31786

N/A

Agrcomcnl@ 6/13/18

93.057 $

•93.070
J

93.070

93.070

93.070

283,156.

283,156

25,827

27.836

10.826

2.497

66,986

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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J$I Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Federal GrantoiVPass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

U.S. DEPARTMENT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:
Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Stale of New Hampshire:

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrcciplcnts

Agreement @2//20/l 8

UI-SMC26845-0.'>-00

U.10C.S29366

N/A

€1)0-18-2215

37407 -NOW-MERC

1 dtfli CFDA ̂93;074 - Hospital Preparedncs.s
Program

Direct Grant:

36967 - Healthy Start

Total CFDA //93.110 r Maternal and Child

Health Federal Consolidated Programs

Direct Grants:

37103 -HITEO

37363 - CHCACr UDS 2017

Total CFDA #93.129 - Technical and

Non-Financial Assistance to Health Centers

Pass-through Grant:

Passcd'ihrough State ofMaine:

37376 -ME DHHS i-iPSA

To.tal CFDA #93.130 - Cooperative Agrcehicnls

to States/Territories for the Cdordinntion
and Dcvel. Of Primary Care Offices

Pass-through Grant:

Pas.sed through Boston Medical Center:

37397 - Project RECOVER Evalualioh n/a

Total CFDA #93.137 - CbhuYiunlty Programs
to Improve Minority Health Grant Program

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Partniouih '1 oxic Mcials:

37297 - Parlmoulh.Arsenic Site AIAV/l)TMSIilV4 17 17
Total CFDA #93.143 - NIEHS Superfiincl

Ha/ardous Substances-Basic Re.search and Education

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through State of Vermont.:

37212 - VT HPDP Evnluaiioii

Total CFDA #93.184 - Disabilities Prevention
Cijiiinici S.^i786

93.074

93.110

93.129

93.129

93.130

93.137

93.143

93.184

Federal

Expenditures

5,059

5,059

136,940

136,940

949,607

3.158

952,765

47,755

47,755

3]i047

31,047

10.083

10,083

3,803

3,803

See notes to Schedule oriixpenditurcs of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or Federal Passed

Federal Crantor/Pa.s.s-through Grantor Pnss-throiigli CFDA Through to Federal

ProKram Title Number Number Subre'cipicnis Expehditures.

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AMD HUMAN SERVICES- CONTINUED;

Pass-through Grants; .

.37163 - FaniPlan Data Systems KYI6 Agreement @3/1/16 93.217 . 7,166

37255 - UMASS Data Extract N/A 93.217 _ 489

37281 - FamPlan Data Systems N/A 93.217 . 83,374
37313 - ABCD FP System FY18 APW/Al.tCD/5.3l.l7 93.217 - 47,904

37387 - NYS FP Training DpH()|.C.3.^22966-345U0 93.217 - 102,544
373.90 - NH FP'Data Systems FY 18 05-95-90-902010-5530 93.217 . - 7,485
37420 - FamPlan Data Systems Agrcet.neiit @3/1/18 93.217 - 68,704

37450 - Ri FP Data Systenis FYj9 Agreement @ 5.1.18 93.2)7 - 12,778
Total CFDA W93.217 - Family Planning Services

. ■ 330,444

Po.ss-through Grants:

Passed through Gommunily flcalth Institute and

Harbor Homes, incr:

37042 - Flarbor l-iomes Irie. 93.243 . 3,085
Passed through State of Rhode Island:

37107 -PFSII 3426881 93:243 . 74,803

Passed through State pfNew Hampshire:

37133 - FlCpC Evaluation Agrccmeni @10/01/15 93:243 - 32,898
37151-NFlpMHCiienl-Survcy

Pa.ssed through State oF Vermont:
Agreement @ OI/l3/t6 93.243

. 74,71.2

37212 - VT HPDP Evaluation eon!nicl#3]786 93.243. 22,224
Passed through Savannah State, Uniycrsitv':

37286 - HS Atlanta CpnsiiltiiVg l-imil 7/28/17 93.243 . 1,057
Passed through Substance Abuse Center:

'37300-RI Healthy Trans 93.243 34
■37463 - NHIS - @MCHC Uuhch Agreement @9/5/18 93.243 - 965

Total CFDA #93.243 - Substiin'cc Abuse aiid
Mental Health Scr>'lce.s Projects of Regional
and National Signincnncc

- 209,778

Direct Grant:

37223 - Family Planning National Training Center
for Service Deliveiy.lmprpvemcnt FP.TPA006028 93.260 1.085,862 4.35.0,177

Total CFDA #93.260- Family Planning- '

Personnel Training 1,085,862 4,350,177

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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jSi Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENOIl URES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Entlctl September 30, 2018

Federal Cranlor/Pass-ll>rough Grantor
^  Program Title

Agency or

Pass-th rough

Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrecipients

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES- CONTINUED:

Direct Grant:

3732] -HRSA.RRMO UH5IIA3()789

Total CFDA #93.266 - Health Systems

Strengthening and HIV/AIDS Prevention,
Care and Treatment under the President's

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief

Pass-through Grants:

Passed thrqugh Nafragiinsctt Prevention Partnership:
37148 - NPP Lvajim'tion

Passed through City of Franklin, NH:

37290-FMDTFDFC l-val

37419 - FMDTF Iival 17-18

■ 37429 - NH Consulting

Passed through Mary lliichcock Memorial Mos'pilal:
■37324 - Upper Valley'DFC Eva!

Totiil CFDA #93.276 - Drug-free Communities
Support Program Grants

'Pass-through Grants;
Passed through State of Vefmont:

3721.2 - Vt HPDP Rvalufiiion Contract 1^31786
37229- VTOHC Support 32307

Total - CFDA #93.283'-.Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention - investigations
a nd Tee h n lea I Assista hoc

Dirccl.Crant:

36891 - PPHF2013 -OSTLTS Partherships IU38GTOOOI88
Total - CFDA #93.292 - National Public Health

Improvement Initiative

Agreement @ l-O.l-lC

APW/CO,F/!.5.17

Agreement 1/3 l/IX

Agreement @ 8.21.18

Agrccincnl (VTJ 3-29-1.7

93.266

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

93.276

91283

93.283

93.292

Federal

Expenditures

673.717

673,717

I !,9I9

2,500

5.399

L089

9.460

30,367

4,821
12.236

17,057

77.068

77,068

See notes to Schedule of E.xpenditiifes of .Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and TrainingInstitute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Crantor/Pass-lhroiigh Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Nn niber

Federal

CFDA

Number Subrecipicnts

Passed

Throiigli to Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUF,D:

Pass-through Crant.s:

Passed through Vennont Depanmcnl of l-lcalih:

UI-i'-20l8-Dl'HS-l8-TO»AC

Ri-I'-20I8-DI'MS-26.WPRKI-

Agrccmcnl 5/18/18

37212 • Vermont Health Evaliiatiph Conimci m786

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of Healtli and
Human Services:

37435 -ENDS SFYI8

37436 - Workforce Development

Passed through National Jewish Healih:

37438 - Tobacco 19 QuitNow - NH

Total - CFDA #93.305 - Nat. Slate Based

Tobacco Control Program

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Hampton University:

37442 - Hampton University N/A

Total - CFDA #93.307 - Minority Health and

Health Di.sparitics Research

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Gpimcil of State and Ten itorial

Epidemiologists

37453 - CSTE Assessments

Total - CFDA #93.424 - Building Capacity of
the Public Health .System to Improve

Population;Henlth through National

Nonprofit Organizations

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through New Hampshire Dept. of Heallh and

Human Services:

37295 - .MCH & Tobacco ISundle

Total - CFDA #93.505 - Affordable Care Act

(ACA) Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhodd
Home Visiting Program

Agrccmcnl @ 7/2

93.305

93.305

93305

9.3.305

93.307

3/18 93.424

93..505

70.381

61,873

30.252

8.301

170,807

7,894

7,894

28,846

28,846

182.720

182,720

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Ycar Endeii Scptcniber 30,2018

Agency or Federal Passed
Federal Grant6r/Pass-(hrough Grantor Pass-ihroiigh CFDA Through to Federal

Title N"niber Number Subrecipicnts Expenditures

47,536

13,507

226,481

U.S. DEPARTiVIENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Department of Mcalili

and Human Services:.

37326-HHPS rV 18 Agrccmcni (Si 6.21,1.7 93.539
37452 - PHPS FY19 Agreeincni @ 6.21.17 93.539 _ - 12,605

Total - CFDA m539 - PPHF Capacity
Butlding Assistance, to Strengthen Public
Health Immunization Infrastructure ^ 60,141

Pass-tlirdugh Grants:

Passed through State of Maine:

37288 ̂ MECDG CHW/DBTS CDC-17-3073 93.624
Passed through Rhode Is.land Department of Health;

3741 1 - III BH Workfdrcc Dev F.YIS N/A 93 624
Total - CFDA #93.624 - ACA - .Slate Innovation

Models: Funding foi* ModelDesign and !
Model Testing Assistance - 239 988 =

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through the University of Colorado: !
37270-tG'PI Pac-0(I5K4 93.638 - 93710 J
37399-TGPI Practices PSC-0U584 93:638 - gg/K)^ j

Total - CFi>A #93.638 - ACA Transforming J
Clinical Practice initlntiye: Practice •
Transformation Nctworlis (PTNs) . ] 1 l.ms i

~  .. .j

Direct Grant:

37015 r.Tobacco Use Prevention N1J58DP00533K 93.733
Total - CFDA #93.735 - State; Piiblic Health

Approaches for Ensuring QuItlinc Gapaelty . 60 457

Pass-through Grants: '

Passed llfroiigh New l-lampshirc Dcparimenl of licaltit
and Human Services:

37326 - PHPS FY 18 Agrcomciu @ 6.21 .■17 93.753
37452 - PI-IPS FY j9 Agreement @ 6.21.17 93.753

Total -CFDA #93.753 -.Child Lead Poisoning •
Prevention Surveillance Financed in part by '

60,457

23,544
16,257

Prevention and.Pubjic Health Program (PPIIF) - 39 gpi

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Granlor/Pass-through Grantor
Program Title

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to.
Number Subrccipicnts

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SEHVIGES - CONTINUED:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Slate of New Hampshire:

37048 - National Diabetes Prevention Program 1042855 93.757

37068 - Nil RHC TA Network N/A 93.757

37200 - Public Health,Program Services Siipporl POD 1031592 93.757
i^asscd through Slate of Colorado

37413 -CO 0-D Analysis ' N/A 93.757
Total -,CFDA #93.757 - Slate Public Health

Actions to Prevent Diabetes, Heart Disease,

Obesity and A.ssoc. Risk.Factors

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Missouri Departmeni of Hcaiih aiid

Senior Services:

37130 -MO HEAL C.315I9900 I 93.758

Passed through Rhode island Department ofHealih:

37140 - Rl Epidcmiological Support 7549784 93.758
Passed ihroiigh State of Verhiohl:

37212 - VT HPpP Evaluation ConiraeiD3I786 93.759

Total - CFDA #93.758 - Preventive Health and

Health Services Block Grant Funded Solely

with Prevention and Public Health Funds (PPHF)

Pass-through Grants: ,

Passed through Ne\v Hahipshiie Department of Hcallh

and Human Services:

37326 - PHPS KY 18 Agrccmcnl @ 6.21.17 93.800
37452 r PHPS FY 19 Agiccnictn@6.21,I7 93.800
Passed through State of Colorado:

37413 - CO - 0-D Analysis N/A 93.800

Total - <3FpA #93.800 - Organized Apprpaclies

to Increase Colorcctal Cancer Screening

Pass-through Grant:
Passed through Speare Memorial Hospital:

37429 - Ni l Cdnsuhing . PR.F61 93.817

Total - CFDA #93.817 - Hospitiil Prcp^arcdiiess

Program (HPP) Ebola Preparedness and

Response Activilics

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

130,702

'52,226

7.936

3,922

194,786

41,693

147.007

513

189,213

63,089

22,989

5;882

91,960

4,271

4,271
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.ISl Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE QF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended Scptembcr TO, 2018

Federal Crantor/Pass-thrnugh Grantor
ProgramTitle

Agency or

Pass-through
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Number Subrcciplehts

Federal

Expenditures

93.870

93.870

Agreement @ 6.21,17

Agreement @ ̂>-21.17
93.889

93.889

U.S. DEPARTiM ENT OF HEALTH AND HUM AN SERVICES - CONTINUED;

Puss-through Grants:

Passed through New ilainpshire IX'ijarinienl
bl Health and Human Scl^'iccs:

37326 -PHPS'FV jg Agreement @6.21.17
37452 - PHPSI9 Agreement@6:21.17

Total - CFDA #93.^70 - Maternal, Infant and
Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Mampsiiire Dcpailment
of Health and Human Services:

37326- PH PS FYI8

"37452 -,PHPSI9

Total - CFDA #93.889 - Nalitoial Biolcrrorlstii

Hospital Preparedness Program

Pass-through Grants":

Passed through Vcrtnoiii Department of Health:

37212-VT HPDP Evaluation

Passed through New Hampshire Department
of Health and Human Services:

37440-NM.CCC Stm Ping.
Passed through Massachusctls Dept. ofPubiic [icallh:
37460-DPH Pail Care

1 otal - CFDA #93,898 - Ciihccr Prevention and

Control Prognims for State, Territorial and
Tribal Organization

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Slate ofNew Hampsliire:

3706.8 - Technical Assistance Network for Rural

Health Clinics N/A 93.913

Total - CFDA #93.913 - Grants to Stales for

Operation of Offices of Rural Hiealth

Contmi;l#3l786

Agreement @ 4.20.18

93.898

93.898

CAPACITYLYPI.D.S00824M04 93.'898

224,636

65:883

.290,519

58,771

4,589

63,360

32,154

.  577

4,831

37,562

24,106

24,106

See notes to Schedtile of Expend ittires of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training IhsHtiitc, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2018

1  Aj;ciicy or
Federal Granlor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through

Program Title Niiinbcr

Federal

CFDA

Number

Passed

Through to

Subrecipicnts

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Direct Grants:

37191 - HIV Intcgmtcd Planning U69HA30M.i

37194 - RVVHAP ACE Health Training U691IA30I43

37327 - CHATT Planning TA U6yilA3U795

93.914

93.914

93.914 144,592

546,598

385,489

524,848

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through Boston Public Health Commission:

37170 - Quality Assurance Agreement @ 3-01-16 93.914

Passed through Fenway Comnuinit)'Health;

37444 - Fenway E2l Toolkits Agrccmcnt@6.14.18 93.914

, 399 112,762.

26,945

TotiM - CFDA #93.914 - HIV Enicrgency Relief
Project Granl.s 144,991 1,596,642

Direct Grant:

3(5967 - Healthy Stan Perrormance ProJect UI'5MC26845

Total r GFDA #93.926 - Healthy Start Initititivc
93.926 140,435

140,435"

,2,315,907

2,3!5,907

Direct Grant:

'3.6945CDC CBA FY15 - FY19 U65PS004406 93.939 930.854

Total - CFDA #93.939, - HIV Prevention

Activities - NCO Based 930,854

Pass-til rough Grant:
Passed through State,of Massachusetts:

3,7153 -CoRECT Sillily I>ri-61 93:943 53,585

Total - CFDA #93.943 - Epldemiolpgic

Research Studies "of Acquired

Immunodeficiency System (AIDS) and

Human Imnuinodcfi.ciciicy Virus (HIV)

Infection in Selected Croups 53,585

Tass-through Grant:
Passed through Souili County Hospital Healthcare System:

37091 - South County Health Equity 2onc Agreement @ 5-M 5 93.945 19.809

Total - CFDA #93.945 - Assistance Programs

for Chronic Disease Prcvention and Control 19,809

See notes to Schedule of Expcndiluics offedetal Awai'ds.

•
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JSI Research and Training institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWAl^DS

Year Ended September 30,2018

Federal Crantor/Pass-through Grantor
.  Program Title

Agency or

Pass-tli rough
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Throngh to
Number Subrccipictils

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTINUED

Pass-through Grants:

P^scd,through State of Rhode Island:

36801 - Prcvcnjipn Resource Center 33l6S'l'l

37349-RIPRCII 3534294
Passed through New Hamp. Prcvenlioh Certification
Board of New Hampshire:
37168 - NHPCB Workforce Development N/A

Total - CFDA U93.959 - Block Grnnts for

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Arizona Family Health Partnership:
,37328 - AFHP CT Screening 17-JSII

Total - CFDA #93.977 - .Sexually Transmitted

Diseases (STD) Prevention niid Control Grants

Pass-through Grants:

Passed jhrough Vermont Department of Health:

37279 - Vt 3.-4-50 324^5

Total - CFDA #93:991 - Prevcntatlvc Health

and Health Scn'ices Block Grant

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through State of Vermont:

37294 - VT Safe Sleep. 33460

Palscd through New Hampshire Department of Health
aitd Human Services:

37326- PMPSI9 Agreement @6.21.17
Total - CFDA #93.994 - Maternal & Cliild

Hcnlth Services Block Grant to fhe.States

TOTAL- U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SERVICES

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.977

93.991

.93.994

93;994

''3.925

3,925

Federal

Expenditures

193,961

1,729

205,708

1,342

1,342

3,925

3,925

54,98.5

24,000

•78,985

%  1375,213 $ 14,231,295

See notes to Schedule of Ex'peiidjturcs of Fcderfil Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended September 3U, 2018

Agency or

Federal Grantpr/Pass-fhrough Grantor Pass-through
Procram Title Number

Federal

CFDA

Number

Passed

Through to

Subrcciplcnts

Federal

U.S. bEPAKTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY;

Direct Grants:

United States .Cpast Guard -

37302 - Nat'!. Estimate ofLirc Jacket Wear Rate 33I7KANI702I0
37427 - Nat]!. Estimate of Life Jackcr Wear Rate 3317I-ANI702I0

97.012

97.012

$  . 3,714 S  57,965

1 1 1.826

Total CFDA #97.012 - Boating Safety Financial

Assistance 3.714 169.791

TOTAL- U.S. department OF HOMELAND

SECURITY S  3,714 S  169,791

U.S. department OF .lUSTlCE: -

Pass-through Grants:

Passed Ihrpugh State of New Hampshire:
372.S0 - Juvenile Diversion Evaluation

1,6.540 $ $  25,121
Total - CFDA #16.540 -•'Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to States
25,121

total u.s. department of justice
S S  25.121/

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

Pass-through Grants:

Passed through New Hampshire Deparlniem of 1 Icalth
and l luinah Service.^:

37326 - PHPS FY i.8 Agrccnicm @ 6.2!. 17
37452 - PHPS 19 Agreement @6.21,17

66.707

66.707

'S 75,530 $  31,255

13^598
Total - CFDA #66.707 - TSCA tide ly State

Lead Grants Certification of Lead Based

Paint Professionals
75,530 44,853

total ENVIRONMKNTAL PROTlXTtON
AGENCY

S  75;S30 S 44,853

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of federal Awards.
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITUHES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended September 30, 2018

Agency or

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Pass-through
Procrnm Title Number

Federal

CFDA

Number

Passed

Through to

Subrccipichts

Federal

Expenditures

U.S. bKPARTMENT OF AGRICUUTUUE;

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Food insecurity Nulrition Incentive (riNI);

37257 - FIN) Evaluation 10.331 $ $ ., 1 12,759

Total CFDA #10.331 - Food Insecurity

Nutrition incentive Grants Program i I2;759

Pass-through Grant:

Passed through Slate,ofVcrmpni:

37212 - VTHPDPEyalualipn 307.54

Total CFDA #10.561 - State Administrative

) 0.561 4,787 4,273

Matcliing Grants for'tlvc Supplcmcnta)

Nutrition Assistancc PrOgram 4,787 4,273

TOTAL- U.S. DEPARTIVIENT OF AGRICULTURE $  4,787 S  117,032

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

Pass-through Grant;

Passed through Dreams Innovation Challenge:

37188 -DREAMS S-l,MAQM-i6-CA-1103

Total CFDA #,19.029 - The U.S. President's

.19.029 $ .23,380,845 S  28,999,322

Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief Programs 23,380,845 28,999,322

Direct Grant:

37244 - Russia P2P S.R.S500-16-CA-I79 l'9.900 20

Total CFDA #19.900 - AEECA/ESF PD Prognim.s - 20

(

TOTAL - U:S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE S 23,380,845 S  28,99.9,342

Sec notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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JSI Research and Training Institutc/lnc.
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Eritled Septcmhler 3U, 2018

Federal Grantor/Pass-throiiigh Grantor
Proerani Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE:

Pass-1 h ro ii y h G ra n't:

Passed through Regents of Ihe University of Michigan;
373,03 - Cape Cod Coastal

Total CFDA 1.419 - Coastal Zone

Management Administration Awards

total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Agency of

Pass-tlirdugh
Number

Federal Passed

CFDA Through to
Ntimbcf Subfcciplcnls

Federal

Expenditures

11.419 $ 2,85.3

2,853

2,853

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS S 89,347,005 S 222,384,1 16

Sec notes to Sclicdiilc of ExpendiUires of Fcdetf^) Awards.
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.!Sl Research and Trairiirig Institute, Inc;
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDl FUUES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30,.2018

NOTE I - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule, of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of JSI Reseaiich and Ti-aining Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal
government for the year ended September 30, 2018. The infonnation in this, Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulafions Part
200, Uriifdhn Adminislrative Rcquircmenls, Cosi Principles, and Audit Requiremenis for Federal
Awards (Unildrm Guidance). Because the Schedule pre.sents only a selected portion of the
operations of-JSI Research and training Institute, Inc., it is not intended to and does not pi^esMt
the financial position, chaiVges in net assets, or cash flo ws of JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule arc repoi-tcd on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained
in the Uniform Guidaiice, vvherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable Of
are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) numbers and pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost
rate allowt^d .under the Uniform Guidance.
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PnONB: 7SJ.934-0460.

PAX: 78J-934-0606

INOEPKNDENT AUDITOH'S REPORT ON INTERNAL qONTROE OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLI ANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN ALIblT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH (

To Ihe Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Ihstitute, Inc. and Affiliate . '

Wc have audited, in accordance-with the auditing standards generally accepted hvthe United
Stales ol America and the standaids applicable to financial audits contained in Gdvenvheiif
Auditing Sicmdcirds issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, tlie consolidated
financial statemenls-of JSJ -Research aiid Training Institute, Inc.,and Affiliate ('.'.Organization"),
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial'ppsitiori.as of,September :3d, 2018, and
the related ponsoHdated statement's of:activitie.s, and cash flows for the year,then ended, and the
related notes to -the consolidated 'linancial statements, and' have issued our report thereon dated
May 1, 2019. , . ' ' / . '

InttTnaTControl Ovcr Fihaiicial Reporting

In planning.and performing our audit Of the consolidated financial statements, we considered JSI
Research and Training Ihstitule, Inc. and its affiliate's internal control oyer financiaLreportihg
(internal control) to determine the:audit procedures that are* appropriate in-the circumstances for
the purpose of c.vpre.ssing.our opinion on the consolidated financial statements- but not for the
purpose of expressing ail bpihibh.onfiie effectiveness of JSi Research and.JYaimriglhslitute, Inc.
and Affiliates s internal coiitfol. Accordingly, we do not express ah opinibniohrtlie eflcctiycness
of the Organization's internal control.

A dejkiency in internal control exists when the design of operation of a cphtfofdocs hot allow
management or .employees,-, in the normal cour.se-of perfofm.ing their-assighe'd funfctions, to
prevent, of detect and coiTcct, ■misstaie'mcnts on a timely basis: A inateriqi weakness is a"
deficiency, or a-coinbination of deficiencies, in internal control, such-that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misslatehiept of the Organization's financial statements will not be
prcvehtcd, of.dctectcd .and corrected on a timely basis. Asighijkan! deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal'control that is'le.ss severe than a material weakness'
yet iniportant enough to tfiefit attention by those charged with governance.
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Qur consideration of inlerna! control \vas for the l.iniitcd purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.- Given these limitations, during our audit wc did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining, reasonable assurance about whether JSI Research and Training Institute,
Inc. and Affiliate s consolidated financial statements arc free from material Jiiisstatement, we
perforfned, tests of its compliance vvith certain provisions of laws, fegulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on complianee
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. Tlie results oJ our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported un6cY.Govenvucni Allotting Sumckirds.

Purpoisc of this Report

This purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of inlerna! control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal corilrol or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Governmeni /iucfiiini^ Sianciards in considering the organization's
internal control and, compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitabic for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachuscits
May 1,2019
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NORiMAIS R. FOUGIIRiZ, jR. CPA
99 I-lKRiTAGl-J^ANii

DUXI^URV, MA 02332-4334

\

•f::r

i. :

Certified I'uLlic

AVc o u n it a lilt'

PnONli: 7SJ-934-q460
PAX; 7S1-934-0606

INDEPENDEi^JT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANGE FOR EACH MA JOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED RY THE UNIFORM 'GUIDANCE

Tp the Board, of Dh c.clors

JSI Research and Training .Institute, Inc. and ATtTlialc

Report on Compliance for'Each Major Federal Program

We have audited .ISI Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
coinpliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance.Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of JSI Research and Training institute, In'c.'s nVajbr federal prpgrants
for the year ended September 30, 20f8.. JS! Research and Trainihg Institute, Inc.'s major federal
programs are identified in the sunimary of .auditors'-results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

I

Managements Responsibility

Management is responsible for Compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its fedefa! awards .applicable to its federal programs.

A iulitor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an.opihion On compliance for each of JSI Research and Training.
Institute, Jnc.'s majbr federal .programs based' on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements refeited lb above. We conducted our. audit of compliance in accordance, with
.auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America; the standards applicabie
to financial audits Contained in Governmeni Au{Jiling Slcmdonls\ issued by the Comptroller
General -of the United Stales; and ̂ thc audit requirements of Title 2' U.S.' Cock of Federal
Regiilqiions Part '200, Uniform Aclnnnislraiive 'ReqitiiFmeiB Cost Principles, and Audit
Recfuirements-for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that wc plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncbnipliancc .with .the types of conipli.ance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occuited. An aiidit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about JSl Research and Training Institute, IhcJ's compliance
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with those requiremetits and,performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. J-lowevei', pur audit docs not. provide a legal determination .of JSI
Research and Trdning Institute, Jnc.'s.compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, JSI Research and 1 raining Institute, Inc. complied, in all material respects with
the compliance requirements.referrcd to'above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal programs for the year ended Scptembei" 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Gontrol Over Compliance

.MaJiagement of JSI Research and fraining Institute;. Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control pyer comjDiiance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered J^I Research and Training Institute, Inc.'s iniemal control over compliance with the
types of requi rements that coiild have a direct and material effccf on each major federal pfograni
to determine the auditing procedures that arc appropriate in the circuinslarices for the purpose of
expressing ah opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not foi- the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecliveness Of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, We do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of JSI Research and Training
Intitule, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

^deficiency in internal control over compliance exists \vhen the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nOnnal course of performing
their assigned .functions, to prevent, or detect and cbnoct, noncbmpliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis, A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal contrbl over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliajice with a type of
compliance.requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrccted, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compViance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in ihtefnal eohlro!
over compliance, yet important-cnough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph pf this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
corilroi over compliance that might be, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies We did
not Identify any deficiencies- in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that Iiave not been identified.
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World Education, Inc. (Affiliate) maintains a different fiscal year (June 30) and has.ils own stand
alone audit performed in accordance with the 'fitle 2 U.S.. OxIe of Fcderol Reguhtiom Part 200,
Uniform- Admmisfradve Rccjwremenis, Cos! Principles, and Audi! Regwrements for Federa)
Awards (Uniform Guidance). .Mbwever, the consolidated financial statements contain the
combined activity of JSI Research and Training, Institute and World Education, Inc.

l.he purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the resiiUs of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Duxbury, Massachusetts
May 1,2019
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2018

SECTION I - Sumriiary of Auditors* Results:

Financial Statements

The type "of report issued on tlie financial statements:
Internal control over financial reportihg:
• Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal "control oyer major-programs:
• Material weaknesses.identified?

•  Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type ofauciilprs' report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Any audit findings whjch are.required to be reported under
2 GFR. -section 200.516(a):

•  Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish, between Type A
and Type B progranis:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee under 2 CFR
Section 200.520

Unmodified opinion

No

None reported

No

No

No

Unmodified opinion

No

USAID Foreign Assistance for
for Progfains Overseas
CFDA#98.001

The U.S. President's Eniefgency
Plan for AIDS Relief Programs
CFDA #19.029

Family Planning - Personnel
Training
CFDA #93.260

$3,000,000

Yes
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Norman R. POuc.nRi:,.jR. CPA
99 l Il:RlTACiI]lANI:^
I;)UXBURV, MA 623&4334.

IpiJGERE

G4riiftcd;F>5y!i?

PHONE: 7SJ-934-0460

FAX; 78:1-934-0606

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR?S FINmNGS AND QUES riONEI) COSTS

'here were no reportable fiiidings or qiiestioned costsTor the yckr ehded September 30, 2017.
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSl Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit,
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampsiiire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human ser\dcc fields.
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ALYSON M. COBB
JSI. 50! South Street. How. New Hampshire 03304 (603) 573-3319 acobb@fsi.com

Education

BOSTON UNIVI-RSITY SCHOOL 01- PUBLIC Hl-ALTIi, BOSTON, MASSACMUSITITS
Masters of Public Health in Infectioits Disease Efjidemiology. 2015
Delta Omega Honorary Society in Public Health

BUCKNIiLL UNIVI-RSriY, Ll-VVISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA
Bachelor of Arts in Chemistry. .Minor in American Literature. 2009

Trainings

FEMA Emergi-ncy Management iNSTiruiE, Emmitsburg, Maryland
Master ILxercise Practitioner Program, 20IS-2020

NH Division of Fire Standards and Training and EMS, Concord, New Hampshire
IS-300 Intermediate ICS for Expanding Incidents. 2017

FEMA Emergency Management Institute, Independent Study Courses (Online)
IS-IOO.a Introduction to the Incident Command System. 2009
IS-l20.a: An Introduction to Exercises. 2015

IS-J03.a How to be an Exercise Evaluator, 2018
IS-200.a ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents, 2009
IS-700.a National Incident Management System- An Introduction. 2009
IS-800.C National Respon-te Framework, An Introduction. 2018

Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program, Agawam, Massachuse its

Homeland Security Exercise and Evaluation Program Training Cour.se. 2010

Experience

JSl, Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, August 2015 to present

Project Associate, August 2010 to August 2015
AmeriCorps*VISTA Member, .Attgust 2009 to August 2010

Selected fjrojects:
Massachusetts Department of Public Health Patient Placement Coordination Plan & Pediatric Surge Annex
Working with MA DPH OPEM to update Patient Placement Coordination Plan and develop a Pediatric Surge Annex to
MDPlTs Emergency Operations Plan. Convening Project Management Teams of key stakeholders to advise the
edits/development of plans.

Massachusetts Department of Public Health Emergency Operations & Recovery Plans Development
Worked with MA DPH OPEM to update a department-wide Emergency Operations Plan and develop a Recovery Annex.
Facilitated collaborative process with MA DPH staff to develop an Emergency Operations Plan that met the needs and
concerns of all bureaus and offices involved in a response.

Massachusetts Jurisdictional Risk Assessments

Worked with Massachusetts Division of Public Health, Office of Preparedness and Emergency Management (MA DPH,
OPEM) to design and implement a participatory, multi-sectoral risk assessment process for the six Health and Medical
Coordinating Coalitions (HMCCs). Project included development of an online survey for coalition members to prioritize
risks from a set of nine hazards and assess regional preparedness using a JSI-developed instrument derived from the
CDC's 2011 Public Health Emergency Preparedness Capabilities and the 2016 Health Care Capabilities. Analyzed data
and facilitated in-person meetings with coalition members in each region to review results and plan appropriate
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mitigation strategies to reduce risk. Developed toolkit to assist HMCCs with mitigation strategy development and
implementation.

New Hnmpshirc Public Health Emergency Planning Technical Assistance and Training
Lead project to provide technical assistance and support to the 13 Regional Public Health Networks in NH around public
health emergency preparedness, planning, and response, as well as Public Health Advisory Council development. Assess
statewide needs to provide technical assistance to all 13 Networks and provide one-on-one technical assistance to
Networks upon request. Develop and deliver trainings, plan templates, and tools on a variety of public health and
emergency response topics, including medical surge, standard precautions, points of dispensing, and public information.
Develop, facilitate, and evaluate exercises and real events. Conducted After Action Report development processes in
New Hampshire for 2009 HINI, 2012 Hepatitis C Outbreak, and 2014-15 Ebola responses. Serve on the planning
committee and conference staff for the annual NH Emergency Preparedness Conference.

New Hnmpshirc Eboln and Emerging Infectious Disease Readiness
Implemented project to improve preparedness of the health carc system to identify, isolate, and manage high threat
infectious disease cases. Conducted an assessment of current infectious disease readiness capacity of hospitals, based on
the CDC Infection Control Assessment and Response Program's methodology. Planned andTaeilitated two HSEEP-
compliant tabletops focused on isolation of an infectious disease patient and transporting an Ebola patient to the
Regional Ebola Treatment Center in MA. Drafted NITs first ever l-ligh Threat Infectious Disease Plan and updated state
Ebola Response Plan to address new guidance and findings from tabletop exercises.

Active Eboln Monitoring Program for Low Risk Travelers in Massachusetts
As a consultant epidemiologist for MA Department of Public Health, actively monitored incoming travelers from Ebola-
afTecled West Africa with a low risk of exposure for 21 day incubation period. Role included daily communication with
travelers, entering traveler information into web-based secure surveillance system (MAVEN), and coordinating with
local health departments to ensure continuous monitoring.

Spcare Memorial Hospital High Threat Infectious Disease Plan Development
Work with Spearc Memorial Hospital to revise existing plans to incorporate most recent guidance on the identification,
isolation, and management of suspect and confirmed high threat infectious disease cases, including protocols for
personal protective equipment donning and doffing, readying isolation rooms, laboratoiy sample management, internal
patient transport, and radiology procedures.

North Central Wisconsin Healthcare Emergency Readiness Coalition Exercises
Assist in the development of exercises to assess regional plans, including a workshop to develop plans to meet the needs
of individuals with access and functional needs using the Community Outreach Information Network (COIN)
framework, and tabletop exercises focusing on surge management, fatality management, and critical infrastructure staff
dispensing. Responsibilities included designing, facilitating the exercises, and evaluating and developing the After
Action Report and Improvement Plan.

MA Region 4AB Critical Staff Dispensing Tabletop Series
Lead project to design, facilitate, and evaluate a scries of three tabletop exercises for local public health staff and their
critical infrastructure partners. Facilitated Exercise Planning Team meetings, including review of developed exercise
documentation.

MA Region 4AB Medical Countcrmeasures Dispensing in Response to Emerging Infectious Disease Workshop
Technical Advisor on project to develop, facilitate, and evaluate a workshop for Region 4AB Board of Health
representatives to strengthen capabilities to protect the health and safety of critical staff in public health emergencies.
Developed template plan language based on workshop findings.

Granite State Health Care Coalition

Co-lead coalition efibrts to increase healthcare preparedness and meet US Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and
Response (ASPR) requirements including development of coalition plans; planning, conduct, and evaluation of the
statewide Coalition Surge Test; and conduct of the annual Hazard Vulnerability Assessment.
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Amy Lee Cullum

JSI, 501 South Street, How, New Hampshire 03504 (605) 575-5516 acullum(^si.com

Degrees

UNlVi:KSlTY01-NliW HAMPSMIRE, COLlJ-GiiOl- Hl-ALTH AND HUMAN Sl-RVlCl-S

MSN, C-N-L, 2017

Harvard School OP Public Hlalth, Boston, Massachusp- its
M.P.H., Population and International Health. 2000

AMI-RICAN UNIVI-RSI PY, school op IN'ITRNA'I'IONAL Sl-RVICI:, WASHINGTON, D.C.
M.A., International Development, 1995

Brown yNivizRsri*v, Providencb, Rhode Island
I5.A., International Relations. 1990

Additional Education

Homeland Securpit Exercise and Evaluation Program, Bow, New Hampshire and Burlington, Vermont
Evaluator Certification. .January 2008
ILxercise Evaluation and Improvement Training Course. June 2006

New Hampshire Depar i-ment op Sape'py, Division op Fire Standards and Training, Concord, New Hampshire
IS-701: iS'lMS Multi-Agency Coordination System. September 2008
IS-700; NIMS an Introduction, March 2007
ICS-lOO: Introduction to the Incident Command System (ICS). March 2007
ICS-200: ICS for Single Resources and Initial Action Incidents, March 2007
ICS-500: Incident Management/Unified Commandfor Complex and Expanding Incidents, July 2012
ICS 400: Advanced ICS for Command and General Staff. Complex Incidents. July 2015

Experience

JSI, Bow, New l-iampshire
Senior Consultant, .JSI, Health Services Division, June 2002 to present
Consultant, JSI. International Division, April 1995 to June 2002

Selected projects:
MA Region 4AB Medical Countcrmcasiires Dispensing in Response to Emerging infectious Disease Exercises
Led project to develop, facilitate, and evaluate a workshop for Region 4AB Board of Health (BOH) representatives to
strengthen capabilities to protect the health and safety of critical staff in public health emergencies. Developed template
plan language based on workshop findings. Technical advisor on follow-on project to implement Tabletop Exercises
(TfXs) to evaluate plans for Critical Infrastructure Staff (CIS) dispensing.

Granite State Health Care Coalition

Co-lead coalition efforts to increase healthcare preparedness and meet US Assistant Secretaiy for Preparedness and
Response (ASPR) requirements including development of cpalition preparedness and response plans, and leading the
conduct and evaluation of the yearly statewide Coalition Surge Test, and implementation of the resource assessment. Co-
led development of coalition workplans to address findings from the Coalition Surge Test^to increase overall healthcare
preparedness.

Speare Memorial Hospital High Threat Infectious Disease Plan Development
Revised existing plans to incorporate most recent guidance on the identification, isolation, and management of suspect
and confirmed high threat infectious disease cases, including protocols for Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) donning
and doffing, readying isolation rooms, laboratoiy sample management, internal patient transport, and radiology
procedures.
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North Central Wisconsin Health Care Exercises

Led initiatives to develop and exercise regional plans, including a workshop to develop plans to meet the needs of
individuals with access and functional needs using the Community Outreach Information Network (COIN) framework,
and TfXs focusing on surge management, fatality management, and CIS dispensing. Responsibilities included
designing, facilitating the workshop and TTXs, and evaluating and developing the After Action Report and Improvement
Plan for the TfXs.

New Hampshire Public Health Emergency Planning Technical Assistance and Training
Technical Advisor on project to assist regional planning groups to develop emergency plans and procedures for medical
surge, medical countermeasure dispensing, emergency public information and warning, and emergency operations
coordination. Implement and evaluate Homeland Security Exercise Evaluation (HSEEP)-compliant exercises to test
regional plans. Developed and implement multi-modality training programs targeting regional public health emergency
response professionals and volunteers. Developed templates and materials to support the NH's Influenza A (MINI) and
Hepatitis C responses. Authored NH's Influenza A (HINl), Hepatitis C, and Ebola After Action Reports (AAR).

Concept of Operations Planning for Ebola Virus Disease and Other Pathogens
Technical Advisor on project working to refine and expand Massachusetts' existing state plan and to develop a
comprehensive, regional Ebola Virus or Special Pathogens Disease response plan for the US Health and Human Services
(HHS) Region I (New England), Role included review of existing state and HHS Regional plans and designing
processes to gather key stakeholder input for plan development, and assisting with the drafting and finalization of the
plans to address the unique challenges associated with responding to a patient with Ebola or other high threat pathogens.

Supplemental Oxygen in Alternate Care Sites Exercises, New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,
Division of Public Health Services, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control. Project Director on project to develop regional
capacity to provide low-flow supplemental oxygen in Alternate Care Sites in public health emergencies. Worked with
Division of Public Health Services Staff to finalize the NH State Guidance on Supplemental Oxygen in Alternate Care
Sites. Developed and implemented regional HSEEP-compliant workshops to develop regional plans, and HSEEP-
compliant functional exercises to test plan assumptions regarding low-flow oxygen operationalization.

Massachusetts Jurlsdictional Risk Assessment Project
Technical Advisor in a project to design and implement a participatory, multi-sectoral risk assessment project for ,
Massachusetts' six Health and Medical Coordinating Coalitions. Project entailed developing an online survey for
coalition members to prioritize risks from a set of nine hazards, and assess regional preparedness using a JSI-developed
instrument derived from the US Centers for Disease Control's (CDC's) 201 1 Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Capabilities and the 2016 Health Care Capabilities, facilitated in person meetings to review survey results and select and
plan appropriate mitigation strategics to reduce risk. Provided Health and Medical Coordinating Coalitions (HMCCs)
with JSI-developed toolkit for mitigation strategy development.

New Hampshire Public Health Exercises
Technical Advisor on project working to design and implement a series of HSEEP-compliant 'ITXs, functional, and full-
scale exercises (PSEs) to strengthen New Hampshire's readiness to respond to public health emergencies such as
naturally occurring disease outbreaks and terrorist attacks using chemical or biological agents. These exercises targeted
evaluation of slate capability to execute of a variety of public health emergency preparedness and response plans
including State Strategic National Stockpile, State Receipt Stage, and Store, Mass Casualty, Chemical Package
(CHEMPACK), and Mass Care and Sheltering Plans. Role included designing exercise materials and evaluation
frameworks, facilitating and controlling exercises, evaluating e.xercises, and developing AARs.

Massachusetts Ebola Monitoring Project <.
Consultant epidemiologist and team manager to actively monitor incoming travelers from Ebola-affccted West Africa
with low risk of exposure for 21 day incubation period. Role includes receiving and processing information from CDC's
Epi-X web-based secure communication system, entering traveler information into Massachusetts Department of Public
Health (MDPH) Bureau of Infectious Disease web-based secure surveillance system (MAVEN), working with local
health departments and travelers to assure continuous monitoring, daily reporting on traveler monitoring efforts to
MDPH.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) Data Collection and Reporting Training
Provide training and technical assistance to 62 CDC-funded state, territorial, and municipal PHEP awardecs on the
collection, reporting, and use of public health emergency preparedness data for program evaluation and monitoring.
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Training program incorporates on-line, downloadable training modules, quick reference guides and data collection
forms, 1:1 technical assistance and presentations. Activities included conduct of a needs assessment to inform training
program development, development and implementation of a comprehensive training program using state of the art
technologies. Serve as the Emergency Preparedness Performance Improvement Advisor, providing technical content for
training program.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Implementation Services
Develop web-based training programs for CDC awardees and subawardecs to support implementation of the new PHEP
program. Serve as PHEP Technical Advisor to develop scenario-based training content to illustrate concepts contained in
the Public Health Preparedness Capabilities: National Standards for Public Health Preparedness. Conducted training
needs assessment to determine training needs as well identify preferred training modes.
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JSl Research & Training Instilute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salar>' % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Alyson Cobb Project Manager $85,000 30% $25,500

Amy Cullum Project Manager $1 10.000 30% $33,000



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

inriA^hiWMH^ 29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-27M50I 1-800^52-3345 4501

F«x: 603-27M827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov

Dlreclor

May 29. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

Pursuant to RSA 4:45, RSA 21-P:43, and Section 4 of Executive Order 2020-04 as
extended by Executive Orders 2020-05.2020-08, and 2020-09, Govemor Sununu has authoripd
the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to enter into
a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with JSI Research and Training
Institute. Inc. (d/b/a Community Health Institute) (VC#161611-B001). Bow, NH for the provision
of public health emergency preparedness support services for the COVID-19 pandemic, by
increasing the price limitation by $150,000 from $4,186,959 to $4,336,959, effective retroactive
to March 16, 2020. with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2021. 100%
Federal Funds

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 21, 2017, Item #51.
It was then subsequently amended with Govemor and Council approval on February 21, 2018,
Item #8; on April 17. 2019, Item #19; and on October 2. 2019. Item #14.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

Fiscal Details Attached

EXPLANATION

This item is Retroactive and Sole Source because this Contractor was able to
immediately provide professional staff in March to begin work at the Department's Public Health
COVID-19 Operations Center. The purpose of this amendment is to pay for the increased support
that was provided to assist ivith the ongoing public health emergency response to the COVID-19
pandemic. The Contractor has been providing the Department with public health nurses as well
as other professionals trained In emergency preparedness and response, including disease
investigations and contact tracing. The Contractor is also responsible to submit an after-action
review of the Division of Public Health Services" initial response to the COVID-19 pandemic from
December 2019 through March 2020.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 2

The Department has been working closely with the contracted staff to ensure resources
are allocated effectively and appropriately. Further, the Department is verifying that all staff
deployed have the appropriate licensure, certification, and skills.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.354, FAIN # NU90TP922106

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitt<

jri A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Scruiccs' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for cUizens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS, 74% Federal, 26% General

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $245,000 $0 $245,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0 $115,000

Sub Total $590,000 $0 $590,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $20,000 $0 $20,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $20,000 $0 $20,000

Sub Total $180,000 $0 $180,000

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000
2019 102-500731 . Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $95,000 $0 $95,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $95,000 $0 $95,000

Sub Total $320,000 $0 $320,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES, 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 . $183,800 $0 $183,800
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $133,800 $0 $133,800
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $250,000 $0 $250,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 $250,000 $0 $200,000

Sub Total $767,600 $0 $767,600
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05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SFY .
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub Total $66,000 $0 $66,000

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
TRACKING, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
,  Class Title Job Number

Current"

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc. 90041000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000

Sub Total $260,000 $0 $260,000

05-95-90-901510-7936 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $44,670 $0 $44,670

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90007936 $37,760 $0 $37,760

Sub Total $82,430 $0 $82,430

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $36,000 $0 $36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Sub Total $86,000 $0 $86,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $9,000 $0 $9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000
■ Sub Total $49,000 $0 $49,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Frog Svc 90036000' '  $155,190 $0 $155,190

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub Total $195,190 $0 $195,190

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $111,795 $0 $111,795

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub Total $151,795 $0 $151,795

Sub Total $481,985 $0 $481,985
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05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEIi»T OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, HOME VISITING
XiO FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

1

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90083200 $221,990 $0 $221,990

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 900832011 $247,569 $0 $247,569

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90083203 $221,000 $0 $221,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90083203 $221,000 $0 $221,000

Sub Total ,  $911,559 $0 $911,559

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH, 48% Federal/52% General

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

1

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

Sub Total $96,000 $0 $96,000

05-95-90-903010-1835 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPJ OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES, EPIDEMIOLOGY LABORATORY
AND CAPACITY, 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90183504 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90183504 $30,000 $0 $30,000

Sub Total $60,000 $0 $60,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE, 100% Other

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title

1

Job Number
1

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90030000 9,000 $0 $9,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90030000 9,000 $0 $9,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prop Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $16,000 $0 $18,000
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05-95-90-902510-7536 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $100,000 $0 $100,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $100,000 $0 $100,000

Sub Total $275,000 $0 $275,000

05-95-90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS, POLICY, AND PERFORMANCE,
100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $15,000 $0 $15,000

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS
RESPONSE, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 $56,546 $0 $56,546

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 $6,389 $0 $6,839

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $150,000 $150,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $63,385 $0 $213,385

TOTAL $4,186,959 $150,000 $4,336,959
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #4 to the Public Health Professional Support Services

This Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. (d/b/a Community Health Institute) (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor'^, a .
Massachusetts nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 501 South Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH
03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51), as amended on February 21, 2018 (Item #8), as amended on April 17. 2019
(Item #19) and subsequently amended on October 2, 2019 (Item #14) the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions cohtained
in the Contract and s^et forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,336,959

2. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2 Scope of Work, Subsection 2.4 Provide Technical
Assistance, Part 2.4.1 Public Health Emergency Preparedness, Subparts 2.4.1.2 and 2.4.1.3 to
read:

2.4.1.2 The Contractor shall provide professional staff to support the Department's COVID-19
response based on requests from the Division of Public Health Services (DPHS),
including but not limited to:

2.4.1.2.1 Ensuring that staff deployed attend all trainings requested by DPHS.

2.4.1.2.2 Conducting an After Action Review of the initial DPHS response from December
2019 to March 2020.

2.4.1.2.3 Submitting an After Action Report and Improvement Plan based on the After
Action Review.

2.4.1.2.4 Conducting disease investigation and contact tracing.

2.4.1.3 The Contractor shall ensure that the professional staff:

2.4.1.3.1 Have the appropriate licensure, certification, and skills to meet the request
made by DPHS.

2.4.1.3.2 Work the minimum hours requested by DPHS.

2.4.1 ;3. Submit all documentation regarding hours worked and other documentation
requested.

3. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 3 Performance Measures & Deliverables, Subsection
3.1 Performance Measures, Part 3.1.5 to read:

3.1.5 The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are
achieved and monitored throughout the contract period to measure the effecti^ness of

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #4 ■ Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

the agreement:

3.1.5.1 100% of staff deployed have the appropriate licensure, certification, and skills.

3.1.5.2 100% of staff deployed submit all required documentation.

4. Modify Budget Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP), SPY 2020 Amendment #3 by
replacing in its entirety with Public Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP), SPY 2020
Amendment #4, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Amendment #4 Contractor Initials —
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC-A04 Page 2 of 4 Date 5/22/20



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #4
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to March 16,2020 upon the
Governor's approval issued under the Executive Order 2020-04 as extended by Executive Orders 2020-
05 and 2020-08.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date / I
le: Director

5/22/20

JSI Research & Training institute, Inc.

Date Name: ^ .
Katherine Robert

Regional Director

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

May 28. 2020 ^ 'JHaA.dAaM
Date N^me:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved was approved by the Governor approval
issued under the Executive Order 2020-04.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Amendment #4
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PuMie H«aRti Emergency Prepatedneu (PHEP). SP>' 2020 Amendmeni «4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research t Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Line Item

■  lotal Program Cost

Direct - Indirect Total

1. Total Salarv/Waoes $  133.070.27 8 8  133,070.27

2. Employee Benefits S  50.566.70 8 8  50.566.70

3. ConstAants 8 8 8

4. Equvmenc S  3.992.11 8 8  3.992.11

Rental s 8 s

Repair and Mairrenanca s 8 8

PurctiasefDepreciaaon s 8 s

5. Suppbes; 8  9.314.92 8 8  9.314.92

Educational 8 8 s

Lab 8 8 $

Pharmacy 8 8 $

Medical s 8

Office 8 8

0. Travel 8  200.00 8 8  200.00

7. Occupancy 8  13.307.03 8 8  13,307.03

8. Current Expenses 8  10.645.62 8  — - 8  10.645.62

Tale phone 8 8

Postaoe J 8

Subscriptions s 8

Audit and Legal 8 8

Insurance 8 8

Boartf Expenses 8 8

9. Softwere 8

10. MarVetno/Communications 8 8

11. Stan Education and Trainino 8  2.661.41 8 8  2.661.41

12. Subeontracts/AoreemefRs 8

13. Other (soeciTK datads mandatory): 8 s

Web-based Cotaboraiion System 8  8.120.00 8  8,120.00

Preparedness Conference Support 8  10.000.00 8  10,000.00

Meetina & Trainino Supplies 8  500.00 8  500.00
IntormoOon SysTems 8  7.318.86 8  7,318.86

hA 8  3.992.11 8  3,992.11

Gen Admrn 8  3.992.11 8  3,992.11

Payrol andAecounong 8  7.318.86 8  7,318.86

8 8 8

TOTAL 8  242,378.06 8  22.621.94 8  26S.000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

The tederaly approved Negoitaied Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NCRA) tor JSI Reseerctt and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefis (38% o( salary) and other general operating costs to support projea actrvities induding occupancy, equipment
general office supptes. telecommunicafions and other cunent expenses, intonnation systems, accoutring and payrol, tiuman
resources artd stafi development and general administrativa support cos'3. The approved basis for appication of Vie NICRA is
on salaryhwages only indudhg hoCday. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Instltuta. Inc. d/b/a Community HeaCh Institute
RFP-2018.0PHS^3-PUBLIC-A04

Public HeaRh Emergency Preparedness (PHEP)
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

Jeffrey A. Meyers 29 HAZEN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH 03301
Commissioner 603-27M50I 1-800^52*3345 Ext 4S0I

Fax: 603-27M827 TDD Access: I-800-735-2964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.gov

Dtreclor

|4 ^

August 29. 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
retroactively exercise a renewal option to an existing sole source agreement with JSI Research and
Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute. (Vendor#161611-B001) 501 South Sireet, 2nd
Floor. Bow. NH 03304 to continue providing a broad range of support services across a numtjer of public
health programs by increasing the price limitation by $2,266,254 from $1,920,705 to $4,186,959 and by
extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2021 effective retroactive to June
30. 2019 upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 81.61% Federal Funds. 12.54% General
Funds, and 5.85% Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21. 2017
(Item #51). as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
February 21. 2018 (Item #8) and as amended (Amendment #2) and approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on April 17. 2019 (Item #19)

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State
Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021 upon-the. availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED

EXPLANATION

This request Is retroactive because the Department experienced delays In sending the
amendment to the Contractor for execution due to the extensive updates in the scope of services that
were needed to ensure comprehensive delivery of services.

This request is sole source because Amendment #1 increased the total price limitation by more
than ten percent (10%) of the original contract value

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in the Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the Department
may extend contract services for up to two (2) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The
Department is in agreement with renewing contracted services for two (2) years at this time.

In State Fiscal Year 2019 the vendor received funding to conduct a data-driven vulnerability
assessment to identify communities most vulnerable to an Infectious disease outbreak due to injection
drug use. The findings will be utilized to allpcate future resources for the prevention of infectious diseases



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

related to injection drug use-. These are one-time funds from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, \which will end on November 30, 2019. This vulnerability assessment is a requirement of the
federal Public Health Crisis Response grant.

The Contractor will implement a broad range of public health professional services to increase
the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public
health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across nine (9) Division of Public Health
programs and the Department's Emergency Services unit. These include transparent and informed
community engagement and planning, needs assessments, and evaluation processes; supporting large
conferences and training programs; and enhancing the knowledge and skills among community based
agencies providing public health services.

The Contractor currently provides a broad range of public health professional support services
including, but not limited to developing and implementing risk and needs assessments; training programs;
developing educational materials; planning for large, statewide conferences as well as smaller meetings
and conferences; serving as a fiscal agent for the Department, including entering into subcontracts:
providing technical assistance to local partners; and providing subject matter expertise.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department may lack
the ability to strategically direct infectious disease prevention services to communities; offer large
conferences, trainings, and consultation services to community-based agencies providing public health
services; and conduct a needs assessment and evaluation process to improve services. The Department
may not meet the key deliverables of this award if these funds are not made available to complete this
project.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 81.61% Federal (the Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Program, the Hospital Preparedness Program, the Environmental Public Health Tracking
Program, the Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, the Preventative Health
and Services Block Grant Program, the HIV Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Program, and the
Opioid Assessment Program), 12.54% General (the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Program),
and 5.85% Other (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no Ignger available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

ipectfulj ubmitted,

effrey A. Meyers
ommissioner

The DcfXtrtmcnl of Health and llnmnn Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN $VS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS, 74% Federal, 26% General

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $0. $115,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $245,000 $0 $245,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $0 $115,000 $115,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $0 $115,000 $115,000

Sub Total $360,000 $230,000 $590,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS, 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc ■ 90077700 $0 $20,000 $20,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $0 $20,000 $20,000

Sub Total $140,000 $40,000 $180,000

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM, 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title , •  Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $65,000 $0 $65,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $0 $95,000 $95,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 $0 $95,000 $95,000

Sub Total $130,000 $190,000 $320,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES. 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $183,800 $0 $183,800

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $133,800 $0 $133,800

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 SO $250,000 $250,000

2021- 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 $0 $200,000 .  $200,000

Sub Total $3f7,600 $450,000 $767,600
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05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease).

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $18,000 $0 $18,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 $0 $15,000 $15,000
Sub Total $36,000 $30,000 $66,000

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS. ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
TRACKING, 100% Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 $70,000 $0 $70,000

2020 102-500731 . Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $0 $70,000 $70,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 $0 $70,000 $70,000

Sub Total $120,000 $140,000 $260,000

05-95-90-901510-7938 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, CLIMATE CHANGE
ADAPTATION, 100% Federal

SPY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90007936 $0 $44,670 $44,670

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90007936 $0 $37,760 $37,760

, Sub Total $0 $82,430 $82,430

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $36,000 $0 $36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $50,000 $0 $50,000

Sub Total $86,000 $0 $86,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $9,000 $0 $9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub Total $49,000 $0 $49,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $0 $155,190 $155,190

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $0 $40,000 $40,000

Sub Total $0 $195,190 $195,190

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90036000 $0 $111,795 $111,795

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $0 $40,000 $40,000

Sub Total $0 $151,795 $151,795

Sub Total $135,000 $346,985 $481,985
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05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH.SERVICES. HOME VISITING
X10 FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

.  2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221,990 $0 $221,990

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083201 $247,569 $0 $247,569

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083203 . $0 $221,000 $221,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc ■  90083203 $0' $221,000 $221,000

Sub Total $469,559 $442,000 $911,559

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS;
DIVISION OP PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH, 48% Federal/52% General

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $24,000 $0 $24,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $0 $24,000 $24,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 $0 $24,000 $24,000

Sub Total $48,000 $48,000 $96,000

05-95-90-903010-1835 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF LABORATORY SERVICES, EPIDEMIOLOGY LABORATORY
AND CAPACITY, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90183504 .  $0 $30,000 $30,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90183504 $0 $30,000 $30,000

Sub Total $0 $60,009 $60,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, RADIOLOGICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE, 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000 •  $0 $9,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000 $0 $9,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $18,000
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05-95-90-902510-7536 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 $0 $100,000 $100,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024000 SO $100,000 .  $100,000

Sub Total $75,000 $200,000 $275,000

05.95.90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS. POLICY. AND PERFORMANCE.
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 .  $15,000 $0 $15,000

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 . $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90001022 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $15,000 $0 $15,000

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS

RESPONSE, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

s( Decrease)
j

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $56,546 SO $56,546

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 $6,839 $6,839

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total $56,546 $6,839 $63,585

• TOTAL $1,920,705 $2,266,254 $4,186,959
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the

Public Health Professional Support Services

This 3rd Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and JSI Research & Training Institute.
Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation with a place of
business at 501 South Street. 2"*" Floor. Bow. NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21, 2017 (Item #51). as amended on February 21. 2018 (Item #8). and subsequently amended on
April 17. 2019 (Item #19) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form Pt37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the Contract may be' amended
upon written agreement of the parlies and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price lirhitation. and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and i

NOW THEREFORE, in consideratiori of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$4,186,959.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White. Director.

4. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #3,
Scope of Services.

6. Add Exhibit B. Amendment #3. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead. SFY 2020 Amendment
#3.

8. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Sen/ices - Climate and Health, SFY 2020
Amendment #3.

9. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPA Lead, SFY 2020 Amendment
#3.

JSI Research & Training Instilule, Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC
d/b/a Community Health Institute n.,. C'ini
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

10. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2020 Amendment #3.

11. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Food Safety. SFY 2020 Amendment
'  . #3.

12. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Healthcare Acquired Infections,
SFY 2020 Amendment #3.

13. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - CDC. SFY 2020 Amendment
#3.

14. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - Rebates, SFY 2020
Amendment #3.

15. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SFY 2020
Amendment #3.

16. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting - MCH Block Grant,
SFY 2020 Amendment #3.

17. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Immunization Program. SFY 2020
Amendment #3.

18. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Medical Reserve Corps
Coordination (MRC), SFY 2020 Amendment #3.

19. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Crisis Response, SFY
2020 Amendment #3.

20. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness
(PHEP), SFY 2020 Amendment #3.

21. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Sen/ices - CDC Lead, SFY 2021 Amendment
#3. .

22. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services 7 Climate and Health. SFY 2021
Amendment #3.

23. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPA Lead. SFY 2021 Amendment
#3.

24. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT. SFY 2021 Amendment #3.
25. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Food Safety, SFY 2021 Amendment

#3.

26. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Healthcare Acquired Infections,
SFY 2021 Amendment #3.

27. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - CDC, SFY 2021 Amendment
#3.

28. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV - Rebates; SFY 2021
Amendment #3.

29. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting, SFY 2021
Amendment U3.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute ^ ^
RFP-2018.DPHS-03-PUBUC Page2of5 '



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

30. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting - MCH Block Grant.
SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

31. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Immunization Program, SPY 2021
Amendment #3.

32. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Sen/ices - Medical Reserve Corps
Coordination (MRC), SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

33. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness
(PHEP), SPY 2021 Amendment #3.

34. Add Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

JSI Research & Training institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-201 e-DPHS-03-PUBLlC

Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

This amendment shall be effective retroactive to June 30. 2019.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: Lisa Morris

Title: Director

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute

Date

j-
Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State of MfU Hftivnp^'nrr . County of on 1*^ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified direcfty abdve, or satisfactorily |proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

lAf A

Signature of Notary Pi^lic or Justice of the Peace

Cn.'MYi), \Nitunir\A^\tb\AC.
Name and Tit/e of Notary dr Justice o(jhe Peace

COURTNEY A. CAffmO, Notoy PuMo
My Commission Expboo Ncvombor 8,2022

My Commission Expires:

\

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP.2018-DPHS-03-PUBUC

Amendment

Page 4 of 5



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name: .

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC

Amendment #3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A. Amendment M

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provide to persons with limited English proftciency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or sen/ices within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services described
herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide a broad range of public health professional support services
Including, but not limited to:

1.3.1. Conducting needs assessments.

1.3.2. Develop and implement prevention-focused training programs.

1.3.3. Providing logistical support for conferences and meetings.

1.3.4. Providing technical assistance ensuring subject matter experts are available to
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Public Health
Services (DPHS) contractors.

1.3.5. Developing educational materials.

1.3.6. Developing and implementing evaluation plans.

1.3.7. Assisting the Department with updating strategic plans.

1.3.8. fvlaximlzing the efficient use of resources.

1.3.9. Overseeing programs as directed by the Department.

1.3.10. Conducting HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerability Assessments.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. Develop and Implement Needs Assessments

2.1.1. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (M1ECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.1.1.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs assessment
for eleven (11) MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.1.2. Infections Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care

2.1.2.1. The Contractor shall conduct a needs assessment to determine service needs
among affected populations. The Contractor shall:

2.1.2.1.1. Gather information from People Living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA)
as well as from their families and caregivers in order to identify
common themes and trends through qualitative data gathering

JSI Research S Training Institute. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #3 Contractor
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC Page 1 of 18 Dote ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

processes that will yield:

2.1.2.1.1.1. Qualitative feedback for the needs assessment.

2.1.2.1.1.2. Survey questions to be utilized in a questionnaire
that will be conducted to targeted statewide
populations including, but not limited to individuals
who:

2.1.2.1.1.2.1. Are in or out of HIV medical care.

2.1.2.1.1.2.2. Have. CO morbidities that may
include but are not limited to

Tuberculosis. Sexually
Transmitted Diseases, Hepatitis
C, Mental Illness. and/or
substance use disorders.

2.1.2.1.2. Create statistical reports that reflect results of the survey.

2.1.2.1.3. Analyze the data to obtain information to generate
recommendations.

2.1.2.1.4. Share preliminary results with the Bureau of Infectious Disease
Prevention. Investigation and Care Services (ID-PICS) Section in
order to obtain input for final recommendations that will be
' submitted to the Department.

2.1.2.1.5. Ensure that priority PLWHA populations are included in the Needs
Assessment.

2.1.2.2. The Contractor shall identify the extent to which services identified in the
inventory of resources are accessible, available, appropriate, affordable and
acceptable to PLWHA. The Contractor shall:

2.1.2.2.1. Estimate capacity of how much of each service can be provided.

2.1.2.2.2. Assess capability of how well providers provide services,
including expertise of agency staff and its accessibility.

2.1.2.2.3. Develop and implement a provider survey, in collaboration with
the BipC ID-PICS Section as approved by the Department, to
determine capacity and capability to deliver serv.ices identified, in
the resource inventory.

2.1.2.3. The Contractor shall assess service gaps/unmet needs of PLWHA and provide
a written report that includes both quantitative and qualitative data on:

2.1.2.3.1. Service needs.

2.1.2.3.2. Resources.

2.1.2.3.3. Barriers.

2.1.2.4. The Contractor shall conduct a thorough assessment of unmet needs for
PLWHA who know their status but are not enrolled in primary care services.

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. Extiibil a. Amendment #3 Contractof Initial
d/b/a Community Health Institute « .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

2.1.2.5. The Contractor shall make recommendations to the Department based on
quantitative and qualitative data on service needs, resources and barriers to
assist with setting priorities and allocating resources.

2.1.3. HIV Comprehensive Needs Assessment (HIV-CAN)

2.1.3.1. The Contractor shall conduct an HIV Comprehensive Needs Assessment (HIV-
CAN) that is in compliance with the rules, regulations and policies outlined by
U.S. Health" Resources Services Administration (HRSA, the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and the Department.

2.1.3.2. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable responsibilities outlined in the
HRSA National Monitoring Standards, as instructed by the Department.

2.1.3.3. The Contractor shall ensure the HIV-CAN process is compliant with needs
assessment principles and strategies outlined in the Ryan White HIV/AIDS
Program Part B Manual and by the Department.

2.1.3.4. The Contract shall ensure the HIV-CAN includes all specific components as
outlined and detailed by HRSA, CDC and the Department including but not
limited to:

2.1.3.4.1. Epidemiologic Overview

2.1.3.4.2. HIV Care Continuum

2.1.3.4.3. Financial and Human Resources Inventory.

2.1.3.4.4. Assessment of Needs. Gaps and Barriers.

2.1.3.4.5. Data Access, Sources and Systems.

2.1.3.5. The Contractor shall produce a document that includes all five (5) components
outlined above.

2.1.4. Epidemiologlcal Profile

2.1.4.1. The Contractor shall maintain regular contact with the Department throughout
the life of the contract through:

2.1.4.1.1. Quarterly in-person meetings with Department staff;

2.1.4.1.2. Weekly emails and/or telephone calls.

2.1.4.2. The Contractor shall review HIV surveillance data, as provided by the BIDC,
and create an epidemiological profile report for Department review.

2.1.4.3. The Contractor shall ensure the epidemiological profile report:

2.1.4.3.1. Summarizes pertinent information including but not limited to
prevalence, incidence, and unmet need data by:

2.1.4.3.1.1. Age.

2.1.4.3.1.2. Gender.

2.1.4.3.1.3. Race/ethnicity.

2.1.4.3.1.4. Transmission mode.

JSl Research & Training Inslilute. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #3 Contractor initials,
d/b/a Community Health Institute ^ 5/ n 7 /1.^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

2.1.4.3.1.5. Geographic area.

2.1.4.3.2. Identifies descriptive trends in HIV and associated co-morbidities
since case reporting by name began in 2005. >

2.1.4.4. The Contractor shall create a profile that projects the status of the HIV
epidemic, statewide, over the next three (3) to five (5) years, and includes and
CO morbidities, which may include, but is not limited to:

2.1.4.4.1. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs).

2.1.4.4.2. Tuberculosis (TB).

2.1.4.4.3. Hepatitis associated with the HIV/AID epidemic in NH.

2.1.4.5. The Contractor shall provide community population estimates, in writing, to the
Department that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.4.5.1. The number of individuals diagnosed and living with HIV/AIDS
within each Public Health Region (PHR).

2.1.4.5.2. A comparison of the rates and percentages for the state.

2.1.4.5.3. A description of individuals at-risk for HIV infection based on rates
of sexually transmitted diseases.

2.1.4.6. The Contractor shall provide a draft report of an epidemiological profile to the
Department in an electronic format acceptable to the Department for review
and approval no later than January of 2020.

2.1.4.7. The Contractor shall publish the epidemiological profile in compliance with
state and federal security and confidentiality guidelines and DPHS Data
Release Policy, ensuring clients cannot be identified as a result of the
published data. ^ ,

2.1.4.8. The Contractor shall provide an assessment of service needs In an electronic
format that Is acceptable to the Department for review and approval no later
than April of 2020.

2.1.4.9. The Contractor shall present options for meeting service needs by:

2.1.4.9.1. Maximizing identified resources.

2.1.4.9.2. Identifying barriers to resources,

2.1.4.9.3. Overcoming identified barriers, including coordinating Ryan White
and HIV prevention services with other health care delivery
systems.

2.1.4.10. The Contractor shall present recommendations for improving service
delivery, bridging gaps and reducing duplicative services within the Ryan White
and HIV Prevention service delivery system, as appropriate. The Contractor
shall:

2.1.4.10.1. Provide a written assessment of service gaps and unmet needs
in an electronic format acceptable to the Department for
Department review and approval no later than October of 2020.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhlbii a, Amendment #3 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivlces
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment M

2.1.4.11. The Contractor shall make recommendations for future gap analysis with
emphasis on perceived and unmet needs statewide. The Contractor shall:

2.1.4.11.1. Develop a strategy for meeting training, education and capacity
needs of HIV providers, as identified by the assessment of service
gaps/unmet needs.

2.1.4.11.2. Provide a written strategy for meeting the needs of HIV providers,
as identified by the assessment of service gaps and unmet needs,
in an electronic format acceptable to the Department .for review
and approval no later than May of 2020.

2.1.4.12. The Contractor shall make an in-person presentation on the final
Epidemiological Profile report to the Department no later than June of 2020.

2.2. Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs

2.2.1. General Training Requirements

2.2.1.1. The Contractor shall consult with Department subject matter experts to develop
and/or implement program-specific training programs.

2.2.1.2. The Contractor shall ensure training programs are based on adult learning
theories utilizing various training modalities in order to maximize reach.

2.2.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure training modalities include, but are not limited to:

2.2.1.3.1. In-classroom sessions.

2.2.1.3.2. Web-based training.

2.2.1.3.3. Train-the-trainer sessions.

2.2.2. Food Protection Section (FPS)

2.2.2.1. The Contractor, in consultation with the FPS staff, shall develop training
curricula for FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that are classified as self-inspecting.

2.2.2.2. The Contractor, in consultation with FPS staff, shall develop training curricula
for staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one
component of a more comprehensive operational inspection, which includes,
but is not limited to:

2.2.2.2.1. The Department of Environmental Services Youth Camp
inspection staff.

2.2.2.2.2. The Department of Health and Human Services Health Facilities
Licensing staff who inspect child care centers, nursing homes and
assisted living facilities.

2.2.2.3. The Contractor, in consultation with FPS staff, shall develop training curricula
for Food Service Workers including, but not limited to individuals who work in
or for:

2.2.2.3.1. Restaurants.

2.2.2.3.2. Retail food stores.
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2.2.2.3.3. Schoois.

2.2.2.3.4. Caterers.

2.2.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.2.3.1. The Contractor shall develop and implement training programs for RPHN
emergency preparedness coordinators

2.2.3.2. The Contractor shall develop and Implement training programs for Individuals
who are engaged in regional PHEP planning and response, including but not
limited to: , '

2.2.3.2.1. Local municipal officials.

2.2.3.2.2. Healthcare preparedness personnel.

2.2.3.2.3. Volunteers.

2.2.3.3. The Contractor shall participate in the State Training and Exercise Program
(STEP) workgroup that Is convened by the Department.

2.2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.2.4.1. The Contractor shall plan and implement 1-day Renovation. Repair and
Painting Training programs in New Hampshire's highest risk communities
utilizing the US Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.2.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV}/Maternal
and-Child Health Section (MCH)

2.2.5.1. The Contractor shall develop and Implement an annual training plan that
includes, but is not limited to"

2.2.5.1.1. Site-specific training plans.

2.2.5.1.2. Pre- and Post-evaluations of trainings.

2.2.5.1.3. A minimum of ten (10) training opportunities are offered to
MIECHV-funded home visiting sites per year.

2.2.6. Environmental Public Health Tracking (EPHT)

2.2.6.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to host a maximum of ten (10)
meetings with Regional Public Health Networks to gather feedback on the
EPHT Data Portal.

2.2.6.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to a maximum of five (5) focus
groups conducting user research of EPHT data and projects.

2.2.6.3. The Contract shall utilize current train-the-trainer curriculum for tick-safe

practices when providing training sessions to target audiences in two (2)
regions of the State, ensuring eagh session has a maximum duration of three
(3) hours. The Contractor shall:

2.2.6.3.1. Develop and apply a set of adult learning principles to ensure
target audiences understand information.

2.2.6.3.2. Utilize an array of delivery techniques for different learning styles

JSi Research & Training Institute, inc. Exhibit a. Amendment 03 Contractor Initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP.2018-OPHS-03-PUBLIC Page6of 18 Dale



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

and processing skill sets.

2.2.6.3.3. Set up classrooms in a manner conducive to adult learning.

2.2.6.3.4. Meet participant needs, as appropriate.

2.2.6.3.5. Provide learners with opportunities for feedback.

2.2.6.3.6. Provide learners with a variety of coaching skills to utilize for
future trainings.

2.2.6.3.7. Adapt existing educational materials, as approved by the
Department, from Tick Free NH, the Department, the Centers for
Disease Control (CDC), or other sources in order to meet the
learning needs of target audiences.

2.2.6.3.8. Evaluate ail training programs to measure competencies of
participants.

2.2.7. Climate and Health Adaption

2.2.7.1. The Contractor shall ensure subject matter experts consult with local
community partners, in collaboration with Department leads, to develop

' evidence-based public health plans and interventions to reduce the health
impacts of extreme weather events , which may include:

2.2.7.1.1. Extreme heat.

2.2.7.1.2. Cold temperatures.

2.2.7.1.3. Seasonal storms.

2.2:7.1.4. Other changing climate conditions that rnay result in individual
injury, illness or death.

2.2.7.2. The Contractor shall develop a white paper, in collaboration with the
Department, utilizing subject matter experts on measures of community
resilience to natural disasters. The Contractor shall ensure measures are:

2.2.7.2.1. Viable metrics for self-reliance and emergency preparedness.

2.2.7.2.2. Feasible to collect at the town or regional level

2.2.7.2.3. Based on national standards for population vulnerability and
resilience.

2.3. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups

2.3.1. General Logistical Support for Conferences

2.3.1.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support, as approved by the
Department, for conferences that may include, but is not limited to:

2.3.1.1.1. Convening, facilitating, and documenting meetings of each
conference planning team.

2.3.1.1.2., Developing the conference agenda in coordination with planning
•teams.

I
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2.3.1.1.3. Compiling e-mail lists to promote conferences using addresses
supplied by members of the planning team.

2.3.1.1.4. Designing and electronically publishing conference brochures.
"Save the Date" announcements and other marketing materials
as funding allows.

2.3.1.1.5. Designing the layout and printing materials for conference
attendees.

2.3.1.1.6. Coordinating logistics with speakers.

2.3.1.1.7. Coordinating logistics with vendors and supporting their'logistical
needs during conferences.

2.3.1.1.8. Providing operations support during conferences, including but
not limited to:

2.3.1.1.8.1. Registering attendees.

■ 2.3.1.1.8.2. Coordinating IT needs.

2.3.1.1.8.3. Coordinating with the conference site staff.

2.3.1.1.8.4. Conducting other activities typically associated with
conference support.

2.3.1.1.9. Compiling data from evaluation forms completed by attendees.
.  analyze data and provide written reports to programs.

2.3.1.1.10. Receiving payment from vendors, which shall be utilized for
supporting conferences with any additional funding to be utilized
for activities funded by the program sponsoring the conference.

2.3.1.1.11. Facilitating reservations and logistics of each conference site.

2.3.1.1.12. Reporting all costs and income generated for each conference to
the program funding the conference.

2.3.2. General Logistical Support for Committees and Planning Groups

2.3.2.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support, as approved by the
Department, for conferences committees and planning groups that may
include, but is not limited to:

2.3.2.1.1. Convening, facilitating, and documenting meetings, including
those of subcommittees, work groups or similar bodies. '

2.3.2.1.2. Developing meeting agendas in coordination with Department
staff.

2.3.2.1.3. Disseminating announcements of meetings to members and
posting publicly, as requested by the Department.

2.3.2.1.4. Maintaining contact information for ail members of
committee/planning groups. including subcommittees,
workgroups or similar bodies.
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2.3.2.1.5. Maintaining existing websites to inform members and the public
of the purpose, membership and activities of planning groups and
committees.

2.3.2.1.6. Coordinating logistics with speakers.

2.3.2.1.7. Coordinating logistics with vendors and supporting their logistical
needs during conferences.

2.3.2.1.8. Providing operations support during meetings, including but not
limited to:

2.3.2.1.8.1. Registering attendees.

2.3.2.1.8.2. Coordinating IT needs.

2.3.2.1.8.3. Coordinating with site staff.

2.3.2.1.8.4. Publishing minutes.

2.3.2.1.8.5. Conducting other activities typically associated with
meeting support.

2.3.2.1.9. Compiling data from evaluation forms completed by attendees
analyze data and provide written reports to programs.

2.3.3. Healthcare Acquired Infections

2.3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for up to eleven (11) meeting
per year of the Antimicrobial Resistance Advisory Workgroup (ARAW).

2.3.3.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the annual
Antimicrobial Stewardship Symposium for up to 400 attendees, which includes,
but is not limited to providing continuing education credits.

2.3.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.3.4.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the New England Lead
Coordinating Committee (NELCC), which includes, but is not limited to:

2.3.4.1.1. No more than (12) regular meetings of the full NELCC.

2.3.4.1.2. No more ihan two (2) committee/ woritgroup meetings per year.

2.3.4.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the Healthy
Homes annual conference for up to 300 attendees.

2.3.4.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for a minimum of
four (4) regional dinner meetings each of which shall have capacity for 120
attendees.

2.3.5. Climate and Health Adaption

2.3.5.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for a minimum of two (2) half-
day meetings, each having a minimum duration of four (4) hours, for state-level
partners that are members of the Climate and Health Advisory Council.

2.3.5.2. The Contractor shall implement and maintain a web-based collaboration portal
accessible to Advisory Council members that includes all materials relevant to
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council meetings and work products.

2.3.6. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.3.6.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support on a quarterly basis for the
Home Visiting Task Force, the MIECHV Advisory Group, which includes but is
not limited to collaborating partners, who have an interest and background in
home visitir^g.

2.3.6.2. The Contractor shall participate in Data Systems; Strategic Planning; and
Communicatlons^workgroup meetings.

2.3.6.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support. Including
evaluation, to semi-annual conferences-learning exchanges for up to 55 staff
at MIECHV contracted sites. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.3.6.3.1. The spring 2018 training focuses on Healthy Families America
required content training for continued certification.

2.3.6.3.2. The fall training 2018 is based on findings from the needs
assessment.

2.3.6.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support a minimum of (2)
two in-person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.3.7. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.3.7.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group
(HPG), which Includes, but Is not limited to:

2.3.7.1.1. A maximum of six (6) regular meetings of the full HPG.

2.3.7.1.2. A maximum of (30) committee/workgroup meetings per year.

2.3.7.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support, which includes
providing continuing education credits to attendees, for the bi-annual NH STD,
HIV. Hepatitis, TB conference for up to 250 attendees.

2.3.8. Immunization Program

2.3.8.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual Immunization
Conference for approximately 400 attendees.

2.3.9. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.3.9.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH
Statewide Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.4. Provide Technical Assistance

2.4.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.4.1.1. The Contractor, in consultation with Department subject matter experts, shall
provide technical assistance to three (3) discrete groups directed toward
meeting national standards described in the U.S. Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention's (CDC) Public Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011)
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and subsequent editions;

2.4.1.VI. DPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff.

2.4.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the 13 organizations
providing Regional Public Health Network sen/ices. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.4.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with
the U.S. Surgeon General. Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical
Reserve Corps, to support recruitment, training and deployment
of the MRC volunteers.

2.4.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.4.2.1. The Contractor, in consultation with Department subject matter experts, shall
identify and coordinate the availability of technical assistance providers to
DPHS contractors and service provider agencies.

2.4.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.4.3.1. The Contractor shall provide Continuous Quality Improvement technical
assistance through site visits and phone consultations to support local
Implenrienting agencies funded by DPHS that seek accreditation from the
Healthy Families America accreditation board.

2.5. Develop and Produce Educational Materials

2.6.1. General Standards for Educational Materials

2.5.1.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with Department subject matter experts,
develop and/or produce educational materials on topics identified by DPHS
staff.

2.5.1.2. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval prior to distribution of any
produced materials and ensure all materials produced give credit to the funding
source utilized to create the materials.

2.5.1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all materials are developed in accordance with
CDC recommendations specified in Simply Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-
Understand Materials. CDC July 2010.

2.5.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT)

2.5.2.1. The Contractor shall develop educational materials that:

2.5.2.1.1. Include information that Increases knowledge and understanding
of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.

2.5.2.1.2. Target public health professionals, emergency preparedness
officials, and local partners.

2.5.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)
2.5.3.1. The Contractor shall develop educational materials, in collaboration with the

HHLPPP. that:
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2.5.3.1.1. Include information that increases knowledge and understanding
of:

2.5.3.1.1.1. Best practices relative to Screening and
Management Guidelines.

2.5.3.1.1.2. Lead-safe work practices.

2.5.3.1.1.3. Keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.5.3.1.2. Target clinicians, contractors, and families.

2.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.5.4.1. The Contractor shall, in consultation with the Department, maintain and update
the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG) website.

2.6. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.6.1.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluatioii plans
that clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.6.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT).

2.6.2.1. the Contractor shall, in consultation with Department subject matter experts:

2.6.2.1.1. Develop and implement a plan that clearly outlines goals,
objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures in order to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects to ensure
they meet criteria outlined by the CDC and fulfill federal
requirements.

2.6.2.1.2. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate previously funded
HHLPPP projects that addressed dissemination techniques and
understanding of the 2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the
Childhood Lead Screening and Management Guidelines.

2.6.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.6.3.1. The Contractor shall monitor implementation of the current MIECHV
Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.6.3.2. The Contractor shall participate in updating the MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

2.7. Update Strategic Plans

2.7.1. General Assistance with Strategic Plans

2.7.1.1. The Contractor shall. In consultation with Department subject matter experts,
assist the Department with: ^
2.7.1.1.1. Updating pre-existing strategic plans.

2.7.1.1.2. Outlining goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
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performance measures for various programs.

2.7.1.1.3. Updating the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.

2.8. Maximize the Efficient Use of Resources

2.8.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHTP)

2.6.1.1. The Contractor shall work with Department vendors and grant recipients that
provide Regional Public Health Network services to increase the amount of
funding and amend work plans.

2.8.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services (IDPICSS)

2.8.2.1. The, Contractor shall facilitate reimbursements of costs Incurred by
approximately five (5) public members of the HPG to attend out-of-state
conferences identified by the Department as well as mileage costs to attend In-
stale meetings. ,

2.8.2.2. The Contractor shall procure and supply prevention supplies as determlnied by
the IDPICSS to a minimum of six (6) clinics funded by the IDPICCS to provide
testing and treatment for sexually transmitted Infections and human
Immunodeficiency virus.

2.8.3. Public Health Preparedness

2.8.3.1. The Contractor shall provide E-Studlo, a web-based collaboration system
currently In use by the Department.

2.8.4. Maternal, infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH)

2.8.4.1. The Contractor shall support a minimum of two (2) MIECHV-funded home
visiting agency staff selected by the Department to attend the annual MIECHV
grantee conference.

2.8.4.2. The Contractor shall research and Identify methods to Increase utilization of
postparlum visits by home visiting families.

2.9. Conduct HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerability Assessments

2.9.1. Methodology & Data Assembly

2.9.1.1. The Contractor shall design methodology that Includes but Is not limited to;

2.9.1.1.1. Working with the Department's Bureau of Infectious Disease
Control (6ICD) to organize and engage a stakeholder group to
provide Input on the vulnerability assessment design, methods,
expected output and outcomes.

2.9.1.1.2. Reviewing current literature that describes similar Vulnerability
Assessments in order to inform the study design.

2.9.1.1.3. Working with the BICD to coordinate technical assistance
available from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention for
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study design and interpretation of results.

2.9.1.2. The Contractor shall assemble data, which includes, but is not limited to:

2.9.1.2.1. Working with the BICD to develop data use agreements, as
applicable, to obtain data for the assessment to include data on:

2.9.1.2.2. Overdose mortality and morbidity.

2.9.1.2.3. Emergency medical service and emergency department
utilization.

2.9.1.2.4. Incidence of blood borne Infections associated with non-sterile

drug injection.

2.9.1.2.5. Demographic data. Medication Assisted Treatment capacity.

2.9.1.2.6. Other substance-use related treatment capacity.

2.9.1.2.7. Controlled drug prescription rates.

2.9.1.2.8. Public safety data;

2.9.1.3. The Contractor shall conduct an analysis to facility resource targeting with
geographical context, to the extent such data is available.

2.9.1.4. The Contractor shall ensure any work performed complies with all slate rules,
and state and federal laws, as required, to safeguard the confidentiality of the
information, and to comply with 42 CFR part 2, as applicable.

2.9.2. Conduct and Apply Findings of Vulnerability Assessments

2.9.2.1. The Contractor shall conduct analyses for the Vulnerability Assessment, which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.9.2.1.1. Completing statistical analyses following design and modeling
procedures as defined in collaboration with the Stakeholder
Group.

2.9.2.1.2. Working with the BICD and the Stakeholder Group to review
interim findings.

2.9.2.1.3. Refining the analysis, as necessary and possible, with additional
data, methodological variations or Innovations;

2.9.2.1.4. Completing the analysis for.different sub-geographies of the state
as determined in conjunction with BICD and the Stakeholder
Group.

2.9.2.2. The Contractor shall disseminate and apply findings of the Vulnerability
Assessment by:

2.9.2.2.1. Producing jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk areas identified
through the assessment process.

2.9.2.2.2. Distributing findings to key stakeholders in formats that support
action.

2.9.2.2.3. Presenting at public health and healthcare provider meetings.
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2.9.2.2.4. Creating fact sheets or report cards for geographic sub-regions of
New Hampshire.

2.9.2.2.5. Publishing findings in professional journals.

2.9.2.2.6. Use the findings from the assessment to assist the Department in
the development of plans that strategically allocate prevention
and intervention services.

3. Performance Measures & Deliverables

3.1. Performance Measures

3.1.1. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Section 2.2.
Develop and Implement Prevention-Focused Training Programs, as follows:

3.1.1.1. A minimum of 85% of participants rate training programs as not less than
Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

3.1.2. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Section 2.3,
Logistical Support for Conferences. Meetings and Planning Groups as follows:

3.1.2.1. A minimum of 85% of conference planning committee members rate
conference logistical support for conferences as not less than Very
Good' in evaluation surveys.

3.1.2.2. A minimum of 85% of conference participants rate the elements
pertaining to conference logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in
evaluation surveys.

3.1.2.3. A minimurn of 85% of workgroup participants rate elements pertaining
to workgroup logistics as not less than 'Very Good' in evaluation
surveys.

3.1.2.4. A minimum of 85% of planning group members rate meeting logistics as
not less than Very Good' in evaluation surveys.

3.1.3. The Contractor shall meet or exceed performance measures for Section 2.4,
Provide Technical Assistance, as follows:

3.1.3.1. A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority consultation services
are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

3.1.3.2. A minimum of 90% of all requests for high-priority technical assistance
are responded to within twenty-four (24) hours.

3.1.4. The Contractor shall identify barriers to meeting performance measures on a semi
annual basis and provide a corrective action plan that:

3.1.4.1. Identifies barriers to success.

3.1.4.2. Includes a work plan for mitigating barriers.

3.1.4.3. Includes a timeline in which corfipliance with performance measures will
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be met.

3.2. Deliverables

3.2.1. Needs Assessments

3.2.1.1. The Contractor shall conduct training needs assessments for eleven
(11) MIECHV home visiting sites.

3.2.1.2. The Contractor shall provide a written report to the Department no later
than June 1. 2021 of recommendations that result from the needs

assessment conducted to determine service needs for PLWHA.

3.2.1.3. The Contractor shall provide the HIV-CAN to the Department no later
than March 30, 2021.

3.2.1.4. The Contractor shall participate in quarterly in-person meetings with
Department staff.

3.2.1.5. The Contractor shall maintain ongoing communication with the
Department by weekly e-mail or telephone contact from the contract
effective date through the contract completion date.

3.2.1.6. The Contractor shall provide a draft report of the epidemiological profile
to the Department for review and approval no later than January 31,
2020.

3.2.1.7. ' The Contractor shall provide a written assessment of service gaps and
unmet needs with the Ryan White and HIV Prevention service delivery
system to the Department for review and approval no later than October
31,2020.

I

3.2.1.8. The Contractor shall provide a written strategy for meeting the needs of
HIV providers as identmed by the assessment of service gaps and
unmet needs no later than May 31, 2020.

3.2.1.9. The Contractor shall make an in-person presentation of the final
Epidemiological Profile report to the Department no later than June 30,
2020.

3.2.2. Prevention-Focused Training Programs

3.2.2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate two (2) 1-day Renovation, Repair and
Painting Training programs in New Hampshire's high-risk communities.

3.2.2.2. The Contractor shall ensure a minimum often (10) training opportunities
are offered to MIECHV-funded home visiting sites per year.

3.2.2.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to five (5) focus groups
conducting user research of EPHT data and projects.

3.2.2.4. The Contractor shall conduct a minimum of two (2) training sessions on
tick-safe practices that target audiences in different regions of the state,
ensuring each session has a maximum duration of three (3) hours.

3.2.3. Logistical Support for Conferences, Meetings and Planning Groups

I
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3.2.3.1. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for eleven (11) meetings
per year of the ARAW.

3.2.3.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for twelve (12) meetings
of the NELCC.

3.2.3.3. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for two (2) NELCC
committee workgroup meetings.

3.2.3.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support at the
Health Homes annual conference for 300 attendees.

3.2.3.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for a
minimum of four (4) regional dinner meetings of the Healthy Homes and
Lead Poisoning Prevention Program, each of which have capacity for
120 attendees.

3.2.3.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for'a minimum of two (2)
half-day meetings each having a minimum duration of four (4) hours for
stat^level partners that are members of the Climate and Health
Advisory Council.

3.2.3.7. The Contractor shall provide logistical support on a quarterly basis for
the Home Visiting Task Force.

3.2.3.8. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for semi
annual conferences - learning exchanges for up to fifty-five (55) staff at
f^lECHV contracted sites.

3.2.3.9. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for two (2)
in-person statewide or regional trainings of staff at MIECHV contracted
sites.

3.2.3.10. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for six (6) regular
meetings of the full HPG per year.

3.2.3.11. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for thirty (30) HPG
committee workgroup meetings per year.

3.2.3.12. The Contractor shall provide logistical and planning support for the bi
annual NH STO. HIV. Hepatitis. TB conference, each of which has
capacity for up to 250 attendees.

3.2.3.13. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual
.  Immunization Conference, which has capacity for 400 attendees.

3.2.3.14. The Contractor shall provide logistical support for the annual NH
Statewide Preparedness Conference for up to 800.

3.2.4. Conduct and Apply Findings of Vulnerability Assessments

3.2.4.1. The Contractor shall conduct an analyses for the Vulnerability
Assessment no later than November 28, 2019.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Exhibit a. Amerxtmeni #3 Contractor iniilal
d/b/a Community Health Institute .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #3

3.2.4.2. The Contractor shall produce jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk
areas and distribute findings to key stakeholders in formats that support
action no later than November 28, 2019.

3.2.4.3. The Contractor shall present findings at' two (2) public health and
healthcare provider meetings.

3.2.4.4. The Contractor shall create fact sheets or report cards that summarize
the vulnerability assessment information no later than November 28.
2019.

itials TJSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Extiibli A. Amendmeni #3 Coniractor initials
d/b/a Community Health Institute V/l/ ziC
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Amendment #3. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

3. This contract is funded with Funds from:

3.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. TP19-1901 Public Health Emergency Preparedness
(PHEP) Program, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.069; Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) # NU90TP922018,

3.2. US Assistant Secretary for Preparedness & Response. TP19-1901 Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP),
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.889, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) U
U3REP190580.

3.3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Immunization Cooperative Agreements. Immunization and
Vaccines for Children, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.268, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) # NH23IP922595,

3.4. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program - Network
Implementation, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) U 93.070. Federal Award Identification
Number (FAIN) # NU1EH001357,

3.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Climate and Health Adaptation and Monitoring Program
(CHAMP), Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.070, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) #NUE1EH001332;

3.6. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH - Reduce the Burden of Lead Poisoning in Young
Children In High Risk Communities and Populations, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) U
93.197, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # NUE2EH001408.

3.7. US Environmental Protection Agency, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 66.707, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) U 99151216.

3.8. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA),
Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program , Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) # 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # X10MC32206.

3.9. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Maternal,
and Child Health Services, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.994, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) B04MC32557.

\

3.10. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Preventative Health and Health Services Block Grant,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.991, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #
NB010T009205.

'  3,11. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Public Health Crisis Response, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.354, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) #U90TP921693.

3,12. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, PS 18-1802 HIV Integrated Prevention and Surveillance
Programs, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) #93.940, Federal Award Identification (FAIN) #
U62PS924538.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Exhlbii B. ArnerxJmcni #2 Coniractor iniilais
d/b/a Community Health Institute ^
RFP-20ie-DPHS-03.PUBLlC Page 1 of2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profeseional Suppoit Services

Exhibit B, Amendment #3

3.13. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity for Infectious
Diseases. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.323, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#NU50CK000522,

3.14. Other Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates, Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

3.15. General Funds.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this
agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items.

4.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of each
month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.
The Invoice must be completed, signed, ̂dated and returned to the Department in order to Initiate payment.
The Contractor agrees to keep records of (heir activities related to Department programs and services.

4.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice, subsequent
to approval of- the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds are available. Contractors will keep detailed
records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs and sen/ices.

4.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37, Block
1.7 Completion Date.

4.5. In lieu of hartf copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillingigdhhs.nh.gov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

4.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit A.
Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made
without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/a Community Health Institute
RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PU8UC
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COC Leed Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SFY 2020

Total Program Cost

Lino Itom Direct Indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 39.669.58 $ $ 39.669.56

2. Empiovee Benefits $ 15.074.44 $ $ 15.074.44

3. Consultants $ - S $ -

4. Equipment; $ 1.190.09 $ $ 1.190.09

Rental $ - $ $ -

Repair and Maintenance $ $ — $

Purchase/Depredation $ - $ $ -

5. Supplies: S 2.776.87 $ $ 2,776.87

Educational $ - $ $ ■

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $ $ ■

6. Travel $ 300.00 $ $ 300.00

7. Occupancy S 3.966.96 $ $ 3.966.96

6. Current Expenses $ 2.776.87 $ $ 2.776.87

Telephone $ $ $ •

Postage $ s $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Legal • ' s $ $

Insurance $ s $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. Marketlnq/Communications $ - $ $ -

11. Staff Education and Traininq s 793.39 s S 793.39

12. SubcontractsyAqreemenls $ $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ •

Meetings & Conference s 31.000.00 $ ■ 31.000.00

Educational Outreach s 22.353.96 $ 22.353.96

Health Promotion s 28.544.00 $ 28.544.00

Infomation Systems $2,181.83 $ 2.181.83

HR .  $1,190.09 $ 1.190.09

Gen Admin $ $1,190.09 $ 1.190.09

Payroll and Accounting $ - $2,181.83 $ 2.181.83

TOTAL $ 148,446.18 $ 6.743.84 $ 155,190.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 4.5%

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreemenl (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (36% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA Is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick.and vacation.

CDC Lead SFY 2020

JSI Research TrBir>ing Inslitute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health lf>stituie itiat
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Climale arxJ Hearth Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Corttractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for. Put)iic Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2020

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

1. Total SataryANaoes S  15.767.57 $ 3  15.767.57

2. Emplovee Benefits $  5.99i:68 3 3  5.991.68

3. Consultants 3

4. Eauipment: $  473.03 3 3  473.03

Rental $ 3 3

Repair and Maintenaixe s 3 3

Purchase/Depreciation $ 3 3

5. SuppGes: $  1.103.73 3 3  1.103.73

Educational $ 3 3

l^b s S 3

Pharmacy s 3

Medical s 3 3

Office s S  1 3

6. Trasfd 3

7. Occupancy S  1.576.76 3 3  1.576.76

8. Currertt Experoes S  1.261.40 3 3  1.261.40

Tetephor>e s 3 3

Postage $ 3

Subscriptions $ 3 $

Audit and Leqal 3 3 s

Insurarice 3 S s

Board Expenses 3 3

9. Software 3

10. MarketiixjAi^ornrnunications 3

11. Staff Education and Trainirv] $  • 315.35 $ 3  315.35

12. Subcontracts/Agreements S  10.000.00 3 3  10.000.00

13. Other (specific details marxlatory): 3 3 3

Curriculum OevelopmerU & Locrstics S  5,500.00 3  5.500.00

3

3

Informstion Systems 3867.22 $  867.22

HR 3473.02 3  473.02

Gen Admin 3 3473.02 3  473.02
PaywB end Accounting 3 3667.22 3  867.22

TOTAL S  41,989.52 3  2.680.48 3  44,670.00

Irtdirect As A Percent of Direct 6.4%

The federarty approved Negotiated irxSrect Cost Rate A.9reemer>t (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other ger>era) operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, tefecommunicatjons arxt other current expenses. InrtxTTution systems, accountirtg artd payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general adm-nislrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salaryhvages orfy including holiday, side and vacation.

JSI Research TraiTBng Institute. Inc. d/bfa Commuruty Health Institute
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EPA Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Icotltute, Irtc.

Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services

-  Budget Period: SPY 2020

'  tTotaliProqram Cost • . .

Line Item . ' ' ■ Oirect ... • ■, Indirect . . Total " '•

t. Total SatarvANaoes %  14.388.91 $ 8  14.3S8.91
2. Empiovea Beneffts S  5.471.58 $ 8  5.471.58
3. Consultants 8 8 8

4. Equiomenc $  431.87 8 8  431.97
Rental $ 8 8

Repair and Maintenance s 8 8

Purchase/Oepredation $ 8 8

5. Supplies: S  1.007.92 8 8  1,007.92
Educatior\al $ 8 8

Lab s 8 8"
PharmacY 8 8 8

Medical 8 8 8

OfTce 8 8 8

8. Travel 8  100.00 8 8  100.00

7. Occupancy 8  1.439.89 8 8  1.439.89

8. Current Ejoenses S  1.007.92 8 8  1.007.92
Teteonone 8 8

Postaoe 8 8 8

Subscriptions 8 8 8

Audit dPti Leoai 8 8 8

Insurance 8 8 8

Board Expenses 8 8 8

9. Sofhvare 8 8 8

10. MartcetimyComnxjnications 8 8 8

11. Staff Education and TraraiQ 8  287.98 8 S  287.98
12. Subcontracts/Aoieements 8 8

13. Other fspedtic details mandatory): 8 8 8

Meetinos & Conference 8  10,106.01 8  10.106.01
Educationai Outreach 8  3.300.00 8  3.300.00

8

Infotmoiion SYStwns \ 8791.94 8  791.94
HR 8431.97 8  431.97

GenAdtnin $ 8431.97 8  431.97
Payroll and Accounttno S 8791.94 8  791.94

TOTAL S  37,552.18 8  2,447.82 1 8. 40,000.00
Indiract As A Percent of Otrect 6.5%

The federaffy approved Negotiated tndtred Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research arxl Trainng institute. Inc. indudes
fringe benefits (38% of sda/y) and other gertenri operating costt to support project 'activities induing occupancy, equipment
generai office suppftes. telecommunications end other current e:g>ense3. information systems, accounting and peyrofi. human
resouroes and staff development and general adrnnistrative support costs. The apprcrrad basis for appfication of the NtCRA is
on salaryAvages eniy irwiutf ng hotiday. sid( and vacatiorv

JSI Research Traimng institute, inc. d/bfa Community Health Institute
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EPHT Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Research 8 Trainlnq Institute. Inc.

1
Budoet Request for PubOc Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2020

■- Total ProQTsm Cost *
Line ttem ■ Direct •  •indirect • • = • ' Total
1. Total Satarv/Waoes S  9.277.88 9 9  9.277.88
2. Emolovee BeneTits %  3.S2S.89 9  3.525.59
3. Consultants t 9
4. Eoufomerw: S  278.34 9 9  278.34

Rental t 9 9  - •
Reoair and Mainter)ance $ 9 9

Purchase/Depreciatson $ 9 $

5. Supf^es: S  649.45 9 9  649.45
Educational s 9 9
Lab $ 9 9

Phamiacv 9 9

Medical 9 9

Office 9 9

6. Travel 3  335.92 9 9  335.92
7. Oocuoarw S  927.79 9 9  927.79
8. Current Exoemes $  742.23 9 9  742.23

Telephone s 9

Postage s 9 9

Subscriptions 9 9
Audit and Legal S
insurartce 9

Board Expenses 9

9. Sonware 9
10. Marlcetim/Communications 9 9 9

11. Staff Education and TraininQ S  185.56 9 3  185.56
12. Subcontrects/Aoreements 9  50.000.00 9 3  50.000.00
13. Other (spedPc details mandatory): 9 9 3

Printino 9  1.260.00 3  1.250.00
Meeting Expenses 9  1.2SO.OO 3  1.250.00

Infomalion Syziems 9510.28 3  510.28
HR 9278.34 3  278.34

Gen Adrrw 9 9278.34 3  278.34
Payrof end Accountina 9 9510.28 3  510.28

TOTAL 9  68:42^76 9  1.577.24 3  70.000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct 2.3%

The federatfy approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NiCRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of saiao') and other general operating costs lo support project acdviiies including occupancy. equlpmenL
general office tuppfies. telecommunicatiens and ether current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroa. human
resources and staff develepment and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for app6c3tion of the NICRA is
on sataryrMaoes onhr Including hc8dav. skA and vacatiort

JSI Research Traincng Institute. Inc d/b/a Community HeaSh InstitutB
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Food Safety Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

.  . Total Program Cost

Lihfj Item- --c •Direct' -• -• '  '.i'lridiroct Total

1. Total SaiaryA/vages $ 5,621.62 $  5.621.62
2. Employee Benefits $ 2,136.22 $ $  2.136.22
3. Consultants . $ - $ $

4. Equipment: $ 168.65 $ $  168.65

Rental $ - $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ $ $

Purchase/Oopreciation S - $ S'

5. Supplies: $ 393.51 $ $  393.51

Educational $ - $

Lab S $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ $

6. Travel $ 300.00 $ $  300.00

7. Occupancy s 562.16 S $  562.16

8. Current Expenses $ 449.73 S $  449.73

Telephone $ - $ $

Postage $ $ $

Subscriptions ' s $ $

Audit and Legal $ $

Insurance $ s $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Softv/are $ $ $

10. Marketing/Communicalions $ . $ S

11. Staff Education and Training s 112.43 $ $  112.43

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $

13. Other (specific details marvdatory); i - s $

Printing $ 500.00 $  500.00

Meeting Expenses $ 3.800.00 $  , 3.800.00

Informetion Systems $309.19 $  309.19

HR $168.65 $  168.65

Gen Admin s $166.65 $  168.65

Payroll end Accounting s • $309.19 $  309.19

TOTAL i 14.044.32 S  955.68 $  16,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 6.8%

The fedoraliy approved Negotiated indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research end Trainir>9 Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) end other general operating costs to support project cclivlties including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications and other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on saiaryAvages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

Food Safety Program

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute
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HeaChccre Acquired bilecdons

New Hampshire Oopertment of Health and Human Services

Cofttrecter Namt: JSl Rasearcti S Training Inatttuta, he.

QuOgat Raq'uaatfor. Public Haalth PnrtMtkMul Support SarofCM

Budgat Paifed: FY20

Total Program Cost

Une fletn Direct Indirect Total

t. Total Setsrywaqes i  15.873.88 $ S  15.875.88

7 Fmptoyee Berrefes 5  5.958.78 $ $  5J958.78

3. ConsuSans $

4. Eouhment: $  470.27 s S  470.27

Rerttal s $ S

Reoa^and Mahremnce s i

Purqraaa<Oepr«ciat»on t $

S  fU/ootes: t  1.097.30 $ .$ 1.097.30

EdueatientI s $

Lab s s

Pttarmacv $ 5

Medcai $ S

OfAca s $

6. Travel $

7. OcoL^ancy S  1.567.57 $ $  1,587.57

8. Currerrt Eroenses S  1.254.05 S $  1.254.05

Teleohene s s $

Posisee s s S

Subscriptiorts s 1 $

Audksnd Leoal $ $

bisurance s S

Board Exoenses s $

9. Software s $ $

to. Markotho/Communicstions s s

11. Stati Education end TraMna S  313.51 s S  313.51

12. Subconlracts/Aorecments s

13. Other (spechc detais maneatory); 5 $

Meetho Materials S  1.000.00 S  I.OOOM

MbmtHdt Systems $882.18 $  882.10

HP $470.27 $  470.27

Gen Admin 5 $470.27 $  470.27

Nayrof end Aceovndng 5 $882.18 S  882.18

TOTAL " t  27,3)5.14 1$ 2.5644S $  30.000.00

9Mlreci Am a Parcant of Mract .7*

The laderaly approved Negotiated brfrect Cost Rate Agreerrteni (NICRA) (or JSl Researcb end Trahhg btstitute. Inc. hcbrdes
binge benafKs (38% d salary) and o9>er gerterel operedng costs lo suj^en prefect aatvUas Incbdhg occupancy, equiprncm.
general offlce TP*** tslecoracrunlcadons end other current expenses, hformation cyxSetns. aocownb^ and payrol. human
resources ertd stefl development, end general adminbtrstlre suppon casts. The approved basis lor appfcrton d the NtCRA ta
en seterfArages ertly ndjArg hoiday. tidt and vacatien.

JSl Researdi Trainerg hsfibjta. he d/b/a Comtnunky HeaOr hsdtute

RPP-201 e-0PHS-03-PUBLIC/
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HIV - coc

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI RtMsrch & Training Intdtuta, bic.

Budgat Raquaai (or. PubUc Health Protaaaional Suppert Servtces

Budget Period: FY20

lotal Program Cost

Line Item Direct Indlract Toul

t. TotaJ Saberv/Waoes 8  22.972.97 8 8  22.972.97

2. Emolovee Beneftts S  8.729.73 8 8  8.729.73

3. Consutants $ 8 8

4. EouipmenL' %  689.19 8  689.19

Reruai 1 8 8

Repair and Makitenance 8 8 8

PurthaseiPeoraciatlon 8  - 8 8

5. Suoofes: 8  l.ftOft.lt 8 8  1.606.11

Educaliortal 8 8

Lab s 8 8

Phamtaor 8 8

Medical 8 8 8

OIBca 8 8 8

ft. Travel 8 8 8

7. Occxvartcy 8  2.297.30 8 8  2.297.30

8. Curreni Expenses 8  1.837.84 8 8  1.837.64

Telephone 8 8

Postaoa s 8

Subscttodons 8 8

Audit and Leoal 8 8

Insurarwa s 8

Board Expenses 8 8

9. Sofivrara 8 8 8

10. Markettoo/Commwiicetions 8 8

11. Stan Education and Trainina 8  459.46 8 8  459.46

1? Sutxnmraoa/Afjreaments 8 8

13. Other (speddcdetaSs mandatory); 8 8 8

Praveniien Supples 8  40.000.00 8  40.000.00

CaoadN bu9i£no. marketino. arid events 8  17.500.00 8  17.500.00

s s

(ntormadon Svsrems 81.263.51 8  1.263.51

HR 8689.19 8  689.19

Gen Admin 8 8689.19 S  689.19

Rayrol mnd Acoovntrg 8 81.263.51 8  1.263.51

TOTAL 8  .96,094.80 8  3,905.40 8  100,000.00

IndiraciAs A Percent oi Olract 4.1%

The tederatf approved Negottsted Mirect Cost Rate Agreernent (NiCRA) (or JSI Research end Trakthg instituts. hx. Hchnles
hinge benefiu (39% ol salary) artd other general operaSrtg costs to suppon profecl ectMiee mca/dhtg occupancy. ac|i4>meftt.
genera] cffica suppias. telecommunications and other ccnanl et^ettses. ̂formation systems, accounting attd paycoS. human
resources and stall devetepmerrt. and general edn^thiraUve support costs. The epprvrnd tMsb for appicaSon o( the NICRA b
on sataryhoges only ncbdrtg hoSday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research TraMvg Institute. Inc. d/M CommunSy HeaBh Iratitute

RFP.2018-OPK$^3.PUBLia
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HV • Rebete*

• New Hampshir* Department of Hesfth and Human S«rvfc«9

Connctor Name: JSI Reeearch a TralnWtg excdtuta, btc

Budget Requeal for. PubOc Heetth ProfeaslonN Support Scrrteea

Budget Pedod: FY20

Total Proqram Cost

Line Item Oireci Indlreci Total

t. Total SatarvAVaoes $  B4.0S4.07 S  84,054.07

2. EmctOvee Benefts %  31.9<0.M 1 3  31.94a54

3. ConsiBans 3 3

4. Eoupmert; 3  2S21.62 3 3  2.521.62

Renltf S 3 3

Repair and Mainterierca s 3

PtftftaserPepreciatSon 3 3

S. Supplies; S  S.SS3.78 3 3  5.683.78

Education^ 3

Lab s 3 3

Phannacv S 3 3

Idedicel 3 3

Offica 3 3 3

6. Travel 3  2.000.00 3 3  3 000.W

7. OaxcarcY 3  • 8.405.41 3 3  8.405.41

S Cterenl Exoersae 3  6.724.32 3 S  6.724.32

TatKhona 3 3 3

Postaga 3 3 3

Suosorpt'ons S 3

Audit and Leoel S 3 S

Laurence 5 3

Board Esoaraea 3 3 3

9. 5>eftwDra _ 3 3 3

10. • MarkatinolCemmmicaticns 3 3

It. Stafl EducationarpTraMnq 3  1681.08 3 3  1.681.08

12. SxPcorvacts/Aeraemonts 3  . S.000.00 3 3  5.000.00

13. Odw (spacJiedttaiCs mandatory): s 3 3

Hit/ Assessment Partidpari rearaivas 3  15.000.00 3  15.000.00

Tex Prao Sarvioes 3  10.000.00 3  10.000.00

Caoadtv buddra madiatinG. and averts S  S2.SOO.00 3  62.500.00

3

Mbmadon Systems 34.622.97 3  4.622.97

HR 32.521.62 3  rS21.62

GcttAdnm 3 32.521.62 3  2.521.62

and Accounong 3 34.62Z97 3  4.622.97

TOTAL 3  235.710.82 3  14.283.18 3  250.000.00

6lntfr«ct As A Psrcsnl o4 DIract .1«

Thtt {«4era>y ewcwsd WsQWiawd }n!f*a Coat Ram Acreemeft (N1CRA) ler JSI RaaMrch and Trnnino Mituts. ̂  lYftjdoa

frino" bmfits {'38* C catary) and other gersrel operetinq com to ttvpcrr prefaa ecaiviiies irvimtg ooojpency. equipment,
genersl oflice n^pKea. teiecommtncetiora end other <uT«ni ewcrtiea. irdormsbon tystems. eecautiio poyol. hunan
retSLras end sttf devetopmem. end gerwel adrnMsTctr*# acpon cosu. The epproved basis (or sppecstion o( the NiCRA b on
letaryAreges orfy i-cLidriQ hcCeey. licA end vacetiorx.

JSI Resear^ Training htiajie. tnc. d/bta Comminty Heath hsdtua

RFP-SOISORHS-OS^UBLIC/

HV-RebcMs
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Hemt VtsUig PrDgrsfli

New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Contractor Name; J$l Reeearch & Trabilrtg butltirta. M.

Budget Reqttesi for PuMlc Heatth Piofasslona) Support Sorrlce*

Budget Period: FYTO

Line item

.  Total Program Cost

Direct Indlreci ToUl

1. Total SatsrWWaoes I  91.89t.89 8 3  91.89IJ9
3. Emotovee Berteflts S  34.918.92 8 3  34.918.92

3. CensuSinb s 8 8

4. EodimenC S  2.7S6.7B 8  2.756.76

Rental s 8 8

Repair and Mahtenattce $ 8 8

PurmesaJOepradatton s 8 8

5. Supofes: S  6.432.43 8 3  6.432.43

Educational $ 8 8

Lat) 8 8 8

Pharmacy 8

Mdicsi 8 8

Offlca 8 8

8. Travel 8  2.&00.00 3  2.500.00
7. Oecupattcv 8  9.189.19 3  9.189.19

8. Current Expenjat S  7.351.35 8 3  7J51.35
Teteohone 8 8 8

Peetaoe 8 8 8

Subscriptions 8 8 8

Audi and Lead 8 8 8

.  Insuranoe 8 8 8

Board Enenses 8 8 8

9. Softwore 8 8

10. MartietinorCommunlcatlons 8 8 3

11. Staff Education and Treliina %  1.837.64 8 3  1.837.84

12. Subcontrads/Aoreements 8 8

13. Other (spedfte deials mandaiorri: 8 8 8

LeamM Exdianoes 3  6.000.00 3  8.000.00
Core TraMto S  20.000.00 3  20.000.00

CO! 3  2.SOOJ30 3  2.500.00

HFA TraltM 8 Suoooru 3  20.000.00 3  20.000.00
bxfyrmtSor Sysfems ' 35.054.05 3  5.054.05

HR 32.756.76 3  2.756.76
Gen Adrrth 8 32.756.76 3  2.756.76

Pa/rof and Accountng 8 35.054.05 3  5.054.05

TOTAL 8  205,378.38 3  15,821.63 3  221,000:00
tntfirtct Aj A Pttcvnt of Olf«ct 7.6*

TTi* re4en*)r epproved Nogoested MM Co«i Rsta Agroefneni (NX:RA) tor JSI Research and Trarag lnsS£utt. Inc. Mbdes
frhge bef>efts (38% ol salary) artd ether gerteni openanp cssts lo uppod prefed adMies Mixing occupertcy. eqvlpmem.
oetwral ofnce stppte. letecomntmicadens and other curretu e^enset. ntermatton tydsms, account and payrd. human
rasources end stafl davelopimeM. end oenem adminlssdra deport costs. The approved basb lor appleato cf ma WICRA b
on salaiyAiages only incbcBng hoiday, sicfc and vacation.

JSI Researtn Iralrtksg instibtte. Inc. d^fa Commonly HeaZh'InstSuta

RF P-201 WPHS.03-PUBUC/

Home Vbkhg Program
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Hocna • MCH Stock Gw*

Ntw Hampshin Departmant of Keatth and Human Servtees

Contractor Name: JSI Rasearch A Trstolng iratltuta, Ittc

Budget Request for Pubfie Health Prefetitonal Support Services

Budget Period: PYZO

Une Item

Total Program Cost

(Jlrect Indireci Total

t. TotA SetarvAAIaoes t 3

2. Emotoiee Benefits S

3. ConsAtares i » 3

4. EoutorrtenL- s 3

RemA S s 3

Repair end MAreertence % $ 3

PirehasefDeeredadon « S 3

S. Siarpdes; $ 3

Educadortd t 3

Leb $ s 3.

Pttermacy t 3

ModIcA i $ 3

omce $ S $

S. Trmd s s 3

7. Occwerxv s 3

a. Ctarcre Ejeews s 3

Tetepmne • ( s $

Postage s 3 3

SuOscnodens s s 3

/^jdli and LeoA s 3

Insurvxe i % 3

Board E^enses % s 3

9. Software I % 3

to. Marketino/Communlcailcns % 3

11. Staff Education end Training 3 3

12. Subcercfacis/Aofeemenia S  21.42S.0O 3 3  21.425.00

13. Other (specifiedetafismandatsry}; s 3 3

Partictoers h ca dimi i  2.57S.OO 3  2.575.00

3

t 3

3

t^omaOon Systems 3

HR 3

CerrAdmii s 3

Paynt and Aceounteig s 3

TOTAL J. 24.000J>0 3 3  24.000M

Indirect A> A Ptrceni of Olrecl

Tho (ederefy epproeed NeQOttatod Intfrea Cost Rsta Acreemerd (NICRA) lor JSl Researtfi end Tralring InstJtuo. Inc. tnchides
fttoos berwflts (38% of salanr) and odMf ffcnenf opercdng costs to n^port pro(ad adlvtHes tooto^itg occupancy. eqiipmenL
fiCTKrto cAca st^tplas.' ttiecurifssdcaflcra end other cwretd etpwwes. Wormedort tystem. ecceurtino end payrcfl. Iwnsi
resowtes end etcfl devetopmen. and penertt edndriioed'Te tippon costs. The epproood basis lor appflcatlon e< Ihe NICRA Is
OR sAarvAwages ordy inAudirg hoSday. siA end vecaden.

JSl Research TrArdng Institute, bx. dAtA Community Keafdi institute

RFP-20t8-OPV<S-03Jnj8Lia

H«ne Vls>tir« • MCH Stock Grsd

Pege i o< t
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InvnunbaUon ProQraffl

New Hanifzshire Oepartinent of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research 8 Training btstltuts. Inc.

Budget Request tor PubUc Health Professional Support Servtces

Budget Period: FY30

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct '  Indirect Total

1. Total SaianrfWaoss S  29.S48.2I 3  29.S48.2t

2. Employee Benefits S  11.228.32 3 3  tt.228J2
3. ConsuBants s 3 3

a. Eouiomenl: i  848.4$ 3 3  886.45

Rental s 3 3

Reoair and Maintenarrce s 3

Pvrmase^epredatlon s 3 3

S. Supplies; S  2.088.37 3 3  2.088.37

Educational 3

Lab 3 3

Pharmacr s 3 3

Medteaf ( 3 3

Office 3 3

6. .Travel 3  335.01 3 3  335.81

7. Occuoancv %  2.954J2 3 3  2.954.82
B. Current Ejpcnses S  2.383.86 3 3  2.363.88

Tdeohotte 3 3 3

Postaoe $ 3 3

SubsciieUorts s 3 3

Audit and Leoai s 3 3

htsurartce i 3 3

Board Exoenses s 3 3

9. Sonware $ 3 3

10. Markedno/Communicatlons 3  5.000.00 3 3  S.000.00

11. Staff Education and Tranno 3  500.06 3 3  590.06

12. Suboontracts/AQreemenis 3  30.000.00 3 3  30 000.00

13. Other (soedficdetais mandatory): s 3 3

Confertttce 3  5.000.00 3  5.000.00

3

3

3

InAuTnatibn Systems 31.825.15 3  1.825.15

HR 3888.45 3  888.45

Gen Ailmm 3 3886.45 3  886.45
Payroi and AocounOng 3 31.825.15 3  1.825.15

TOTAL 3  89.e78J0- 3  9.023.20 3  . 99.000.00
Indlrtct As A PtcMni ol 0(r»ct 5.8H

The Mervtjr approved Hegottaied Indirea Cost Rcte Agreement <NICRA) for JSI Researdt end Trejnng Institute. Inc. ktekjdes
tri^ benefits (38% of seiacy) end omer generel opereting costs to support pro^ ectMdes InduA^ occupancy, equipment,
general ofTce suppBes. telecommunicaSorts artd oiAer current expenses, 'ntormalion systems, aooouniing end psyrel. human
resources and ctsfl developcncot. and general admWsbatM support costs. The approved basis lor eppicsSon of (he KICRA is
en saSaryhvages only ncki^g hoiday. sick and vacation.

JSI Research Trying Irtstiuta. tnc dM Communly HeaSh Instluta

RFP-20ie-0PHSJ)3J>tJBLIC/

Immunization Program

Page t of t
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MediMi Reserve Corps Coortinelion (MRC)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSl Research ft Tralrdng Instlttrte. irtc.

Budget Request (or Pubflc Heaflh Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY20

Total Program Cost

Line Item Direct Indirect Total

t  Total SxtsrvfWaoes t  10.648.64 i 9  10.648.64

2. Emplovee Berreftts S  4.046.49 s 9  4.048.49

3. Consularct s 5 9

4. Eouiomeni: t  319.46 5 9  319.46

Rental s

Repair and MaintertarKa % S 9

Punhase/Deoredadon i » $

S. SuoDies: S  745.41 s 9  745.41

Educational s i 9

Lab 5 $ 9

prtamtacv s s 9

Medical s s 9

Office s 5 9

6. Travel S  100.00 s 9  100.00

7. Ocojoartcv S  1.064.M s 9  1.064.86

a. Cunera Experrses S  651.89 s 9  851.89

Tdeohorre s 9

Postaoe s s 9

Subscriptions $ 9 9

AudHand Leoel % 6 9

Insuranco s 9 9

Board Expenses 9 9

9. SoRvMBre s 9 9

10. MartietirrQfCommunications $ 9 9

It. Staff Education artd Trsnrto $  212.97 9 9  212.97

12. Subcontracts/Aoreemenls i 9

13. Other (specfTic detaib mandatory): 9

Meetinq and Traininq Suppfet S  200.00 9  200.00

Momation Systems 9565.68 9  585.68

HR 9319.46 9  319.48

Gan Admin s 9319.46 9  319.46

Pavmf end Aecountng s 9585.68 9  565.68

s 1 9

TOTAL. %  16,169.72 9  1.810.28 9: 20.000.00

10Indirect As A Percent of Direct .0*

Tlte todereiy approved Negotiaieo indirect Cost Rale Agreemem (NSCRA) tor JSl Reseann end Trafetlng Ittstituts. Inc. ndudea
fringe beneflu (38* of tatey) end other general operating costs lo support project acUvmes incAiding occupancy, equipment,
general office tuppiei. letecommunfcatlons and other current expenses. Wormatlon systems, acceunting end payrei. human •
resources »td staff devetopmeni. and gerteral edmWstrativt support costs. The approved basb for applcsUon of the NICRA b
on sateryfeeges only indudittg hoSday. sicX and vacsUorv

JSl Research Tnirung Instituto. Inc. dlbfa Community He^ Institute

RFP-20t8-C)PHS^3>PtJBUC/

Medical Reserve Corps CoordlnaUon (MRC)

Page 1 of 1
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PH Crisis Response

N9W Hampshire Departmpnt of Health and Human Services

Contractor Mama: JSl Rasaaroh A Training Instttirta, ittc.

Budgat Rapuest for PuMIc Heahh Profatalonal Support Servtcea

Budget Period: FY»

Line Item

Total Prosram Coat

Direct Indlract Tout

1. Total Satart^aees S  3.700.00 S 3  3.700.00

2. EmdDvee Benefits S  1.406.00 S 3  1.406.00

3. Consulanis s s s

4. Equlpmeni: S  111.00 3 3  111.00

Rerdal s S s

Repair end MalntenarKs % S s

PirchasefDepredaUon s % s

5. Supples: s  253.00 s 3  253.00

Educational s s s

Lab S s s

PtiBftnacy s $ s

Medical s $ s

Onico s 3 s

8. Travel 3 s

7. Occupancy S  370.00 3 3  370.00

8. Current Expenses S  296.00 3 3  296.00

Tetephone s 3 s

Postaoe % 3 %

Subaotptions s 3 $

Audit and Leoal s 3

btsurance s 3

Board Expenses s 3

9. Sofhore s 3 s

10. MariietlnofCommunicatiom 3 s

It. Staff Education and TraininQ S  74.00 3 3  74.00

12. SubconuactsJAoraemePtts 3 s

13. 0*Jwr (spedflc detaSs crtartdatory): 3 %

s

s

$

s

Mbnnafibft Svsrems 3203.50 3  203.50

HR 3111.00 3  111.00

Gefl AOmh s 3111.00 3  111.00

Hayrof and Accounting s 3203.50 3  203.50

TOTAL S  6,210.00 3  629.00 3  6,639.00

10.1%

The terieraSy eppreweri Negotiaieri Indsce! Cost Rste Agreesnent (NICRA) tor JSl Research end Training InsUtuta. Irtc. ixAjOes
fringe tenefits (38% of saSary) and other getteral opcrslkng costs to support preyed adrriUes indrdng occupertcy. eqvipmenl.
gerwral criica supples. leteeocrvTunicaOoRs and other current expenses, irriormadon sysiena. eccouraing end peyrot. human
resources end sttf dsvetopmem. end gerteral admirtlstrative support costs. The approved bests for applcatien of the MCRA b
on s8lsf>A*oges only 'rtckjrSng hoiday, slcfc arvl vacatJoa

JSl Research TraMng btstttuta. Inc. dfb/a Community Heath brstituta

RFP-20ie-OPHS.03-PUBUC/

PH Crisis Rasportse

Pago t of 1
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Pubfc HmOi Efn«(e«ncT Prepeidrws (PHEP)

N*w Hampshha D«partm«nt of Haaltts and Hxxnan Sandc**

ConOactar Mama: JSI Rasaanti A Training InstRida, hie.

Budgat Raquast tor: AjMc HoaRn PralaaalarId Swpert Sarrteat

Budgal Parted: nf»

lMalProartme.es>

Urte ham Olraat bdlrael'' Tetil

1. Tew SatwvlWseas A  St.«S».l7 A A  51.069.17

2. Emotosaa Banatts i  19.755.e9 A A  19.755.89

1. CortsuRwtO A

4. EauienMnt: t  1.559.M A A  1.558.88

Rarad A

. Raoaa and Mamananea A A

PurdtasaAaoraoaaen A

S. Suooias: %  3.639J4 A A  3.639.24

EOueadenal A

Lat> S A

PharmacT A

Madieal A

Oaca A A

S. Tiwal S  TOC.OO A A  200.00

S  SAM.e3 A A  SJi98.e2

A. C«vrar« E«arisas~ 5  4.tSd.14 A A  4.159.14

A

^ilaoa A

Subaoteaons A

Audi ard Laod A

amaanea A A

Board Cwianias A A

9 Rrdfewa A

to. MarkalrolComduricawm A

11. Son Educawn and TraVM A  1.039.76 A A  1.039.78

17 Ruoenmraea/Aanamants A

13. Otftat (spacde Oatels mardatorvl: A

WeO-basad Colaberaten Smen A  8 120.00 A  8.120.00

Piaparadnass Cordarcnea Suocer A  io.ooo.ra A  10.000.00

Maadno A TraMno SudoAas A  SOO.OO A  500.00

tn/aumtion Svdams A  2.859.41 A  2.859.41

HH A  i.55».es A  1.559.88

GanAdMi A  1.559.68 A  1559.88

PewBd and Aceoeawe A  2858.41 A  2 859.41

A A

• TOTAL A  10«:1A1.S2 A  9.8S8.18 A  its.eee.oo

IMlrvet As * P«w« B( CUr*et

Tb« Mwdr ipprayd HagoSaiaa MM Cost fUt* A«raarNni (MCRA) toi JSI Rcuaitn cM Trairing Mms. M ndute
tr^ MntCa CM* oi sstvy) e«w ganwst epfrtno cpsts to suppot profM aoMtM Mudkig ecopancjr. aquipaan
gsartf oAca mufci. liiwuniaiii ifmi vd efar ajrr«M«99«n*««.MeRnaten tyiMns. aeeMnrio andpPjreA (wan
reeww«dtts«PMPpfiw*.endeenwdeenMenflve eepeioesti.Tlweppw* bwislarapplMSene#e*NCRAis wi

satvyMgas erajr bdudSrg tmaar. ik* and rpeadoft

JSI RajaatOi TnMig Insttuca. M. d/fa C«T«nuria)f HasOi Insauta P>*fc HaaSi Entatpancr Prapdraanesa (PHEP)

RFP-20I6-OPKS-03-PUBUC/ Papa I «l I

rtria£f<^ ̂
o«..5p^/(C,



CDC Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Rosoarch & Training Institute, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Heeith Professional Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2021

Total Program Cost

Line Item
• .  .Direct- ■  Indirect Total

1. Total SalarvA/Vaqes S 31.945.42 $ $ 31.945.42

2. EmDiovee Benefits $ 12,139.26 $ $ 12.139.26

3. Consultants S - $ $ -

4. Equipment: $ 958.36 $ $ 956.36

Rental s - $ $

Repair and Maintenance s S $

Purchase/Depreciation s • $ $ •

8 Supplies: $ 2.236.18 $ S 2.236.18

Educational $ - $ $ -

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy s $ $

Medical $ $ $

Office $ - $ $ -

6. Travel $ 300,00 $ $ 300.00

7, Occupancy $ 3.194.54 $ $ 3,194.54

8. Current Expenses $ 2.236.18 $ $ 2.236.16

Telephone s •- s $ -

Postage % s $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit end Legal s $ $

Insurance $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software s $ s

10, MarketinQ/Communications $ - s $ -

11 Siflff Fducation and Trainino s 638.91 $ $ 638.91

12. Suboontracts/Aqreemenis $ $ -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): $ - $ $ -

Meetings & Conference $ 17,000.00 $ 17,000.00

Educational Outreach s 35.715.43 $ 35.715.43

Health Promoliori $ •

Infofmalion Systems $1,757.00 $ 1.757.00

HR $958.36 $ .958.36

Gen Admin s $958.36 $ 958.36

Hayroll ana Accounting $ -
$1,757.00 $ 1,757.00

TOTAL 106,364.28 S  5,430.72 iJ 111,795.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

I no ledoreiiy approvoo Negotiatod indirect Cost Kate Agrecmom (NICKA) for JSi Kesoarcri and i raining insutuie. inc. inctudes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and olbor general operating costs to support project activities incJuding occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, talecommunlcalions and other current expenses, information systems, accounUng and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for appitcalion of tho NICRA is
on salary/wages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training InsOtute. Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute

RFP-2018-OPHS.03-PUBUC Page i ofi
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Climate end Heattfi ProQrem

New Hampshire Dopaitmenl of Heatth and Human Services
Contractor Name: JSI Rasearch & Training bntltute. Iik.

Budget Reqveet for PubCle Health Prefatalonal Support Services

Budget Period: SPY 2021

Total Proqram Cost

Line Rem ■ Direct- - . . Indirect Total

1. Total SelanrWaoes 8  12.032.46 8 8  12.032.46

2. Employee BeneTcs 8  4.572.32 8 8  4.572.32

3. Consultants 8 8 8

4. Eouiomenl' 8  380.87 8 8  360.97

Rental s 8 8

Repair artd Maintenance s 8 8

PurchaseA)epreosticn 1 8 8

S. Supplies: 8  842.27 $ 8  842.27

Educadonal s S 8

Lab 8 8 8

PharmecY 8

Medical 8 8

Office 8 8 8

6. Travel 6

7. Occupartcv 8  1,203.24 8 8  1.203.24

8. Current E^oenses 8  962.59 8 8  962.59

Telephone s 8 8

Postaoe 8 8 a

Subscrlptiorts 8 8 8

Audit arrd Leoal 8 8 8

Insurartce $ 8 8

Board Expenses 8 S 8

9. Solhyare 8 8 8

10. MarketinarCommunications 8 8 8  • -

11. Stan Education and Trainina 8  240.65 8 8  240.65

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements 8  10.000.00 8 8  10.000.00

13. Other (specific detaH mandatory): 8 8 8

Curriculum Development & Logistics 8  S.500.00 8  S.SOO.OO

8

In/ometion Systems 8661.78 8  661.78

HR 8360.97 8  360.97

CtnAdrrin 8 8360.97 8  360.97

Raym and Acoounpng 8 8661.78 8  661.78

TOTAL S  35.714.60 8  2.04S.SO 8  37.760.00

Indirect As a Percent of Direct 5.7%

The federaSy approved Negotiated Indncl Cost Rate Agreement (NtCRA) tor JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support pro^ activities induding occupancy, eguipmenL
general office supplies, tslecommur^cations and other current expenses. Information systems, accounting and payrofl. human
resources artd stafT developmenL and general edminstrative support costs. The approved basb lor application of the NtCRA is on
salary/wages ordy including holiday, sick end vacarion.

JSI ReedSfth Treintng Institute, inc. dAte Community Health InsStuts

RFP-Mt8-OPHS-03-PUSLIC
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EPA Lead Program

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Contractor Name; JSI Roeoarch & Training institute, Inc.

Budget Request for; Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period; SPY 2021

Lino Item-

. Total Program cost |

■Direct Indirect Total 1

1. Total Salary/Waqes S  14,398.91 $ $  14.398.91

2. Employee Benefits $  5.471.58 $ $  5.471.58

3. Consultants $ $ $

4. EaulDmeni; S  431.97 $ $  431.97

Rental s $ $

Repair ar>d Maintenance s $ $

Purchase/Depreciation % $ S
$  1.007.92 $ $  1.007.92

Educational $ $ $

Lab $ $ $

Pharmacy $ $ $

Medical $ S $

'  Office s $ $

6. Travel s  100.00 s $  100.00

7. Occupancy s  1.439.89 $ $  1,439.69

8. Currertt Expenses S  1.007.92 $ $  1.007.92

Telephone $ $ $

Postaqe S $ $

Subscriptions $ $ $

Audit and Leaal $ $ $

Insurance $ $ $

Board Expenses $ $ $

9. Software $ $ $

10. . Marlretinq/Communicalions $ $ $

11. Staff Education and Trainino $  287.98 s $  287.98

12. Subcontracts/Aqreements $ $

13. Other (specific details mandatory); S s $

Meetings & Conference s  10.106.01 $  10.106.01

Educational Outreach S  3.300.00 $  3.300.00
$

Information Systems $791.94 $  791.94

HR $431.97 $  431.97

Gen Admin $ $431.97 $  431.97
Hayroil end Accounting s $791.94 $  791.94

TOTAL $  37,552.18 $  2.447.82 $  40,000.00 1

The federally approved Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project activities including occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies, telecommunications arKl other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salary/v/ages only including holiday, sick and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, inc. d/b/o Community Health Institute

RFP-201B-DPHS-03-PU8LIC/ Pafl® 1 ^

Contractor Initialsilials^S^lX^
Date



EPHT Pfottram

New Hampehiro Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Rosoorch & Training inttltuta, Inc.

Budget Request for: Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Total Program Cost

Line Item Direct Indirect Tout

1. Total Salarv/Waaes S  0,277.88 S $  9,277.88

2. Empiovoa Benefits i  3,925.99 s $  3,525.59

3. Consultants ' s i

4. EoulDment: S  278.34 i $  278.34

Rental s s S

Repair aiKl Maintenance $ s $

Purchase/Depredation i $ $

9. Supplies: S  649.45 $  849.45

Educational $ s $

Lab s s $

Pharmacy $ i $

Medical i i $

Office $ s $

6. Travel S  335.92 s $  335.92

7. Occupencv i  927.79 s $  927.79

6. Current Expenses S  742.23 s $  742.23

Telephone $ i $

Pottaoe $ i $

Subscdpilons $ $ 5

Audit and Leqal i s $

Insurance s $

Board Expenses % J $

6. SofNare $ i $

10. Madteiino/Communications s i $

11. Staff Education and Treinlnq $  185.56 i $  185.58

12. Subcontracis/Aareemonts S  50.000.00 s $  50.000.00

13. Other (soedfic details mandaiory):' $ s s

Printing $  1.250.00 $  1,250.00

Moollno Expenses $  1.250.00 $  i;250.00

Informttion Sysfams $510.25 $  510.28

HR $278.34 $  278.34

Gen Admin $ $278.34 $  278.34

FByroV end Accounting $ $510.26 $  510.28

TOTAL ' $  68,422.76 $  1,677.24 $  70,000.00

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 2.3%

The fedorolly opproved Negotleled indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NiCRA) for JSl Research end Troining institute, inc. Indudos
fringe benefits (38% of salary) and other general operating costs to support project actlvltjes Including occupancy, equipmont.
general office supplies, teiecommunicatlans end other current expenses, information systems, accounting and payroll, human
resources and staff development, end general administrative support costs. The approved basis for application of the NICRA is
on salaryAvages only including holiday, sich and vacation.

JSI Research Training Institute, inc. d/b/o Community Hcalih Institute |
EPHT Program

RFP.2018.DPHS-03-PUBLIC/ Page 1 of1
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Focd Safety Pfogrem

New Hampshira Dopartmertt of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training InstKirta, inc.

Budget Request tor: PufaOc Health Prefeaalorul Support Servicaa

Budget Period: FY31

Line Rsm

.. Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect'. Total

1. Total SatsryhVaoes i  7.027.03 6 6  7.027.03

2. Emdovee Benefits i  2.670.27 6 6  2.670.27

3. ConsUtants s i 6

4. Eouipmenc S  210.61 s 6  210.61

Rental s s 6

Retrair and Maintenance $ s 6

Pufchas^Pepreciatiot^ % s

5. Supplies: 6  491.69 s 6  491.69

Educational $ t 6

Lab s $ 6

Pharmacy s $ 6

Medicd s s 6

Oniea s s 6

S. Ttavd 5 6

7. Occupancy S  702.70 6  702.70

a. Current Eapenses S  £62.16 S 6  562.16

Tdephorre s 6 6

Postaoe s S

Subscriptions s $ 6

Audil and Leoal s 6 6

Irrsuranea s 6 6

Board Erdenses s S 6

9. Software $ 6

to. Mancetirro'Communicabofts i s 6

11. Staff Education and Treinirxi 6  140.54 6  140.54

tz. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 6

13. Other (tpedric details mandatory): i % 6

Meeting Expenses & Webirtar Recordirrg t  2.000.00 6  2.000.00

6

irAmweion Sysfems 6366.49 6  386.49

HR 6210.61 6  210.61

QtnAilrrtf\ $ 6210.61 6  210.61

Payml and Accound'ng s 6386.49 6  388.49

TOTAL t  13,605.40 6- 1.194.60 6  16,000.00

Indirect Am A Percent of Direct 6.7*

The federety approved Negetsstsd Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Research and Training Institute, btc. inciudes
fringe benefits (M* of salary) and other gerteral operating costs to support pcoiea ecSvities induding occupancy, equipntent.
general office supplies, tdecommunicatiom and other current eitoetrses. intonnaten systems, accoundng end payroB. human
resources ar>d stdt de^dopmeni. and getteral adnrinbtraij^ support costs. The approved basis for appficatioo of tho NICRA is on
sdaryfwagcs only indu^rtg hoGday. sidt and vacation.

JSI Research Trairting Irtstrtute. bx. dib/a Commurvty Health Institute

RFP-20t6-OPHS43^UBUC/

Food Safety Program

Page i of 1

Contractorli

Date



Healihcare Acquired Infections

New Hampshire Departmortt of Health artd Human Services

Corrtracter Name: JSI Research & Tralnlrtg Irtstltuta. Inc.

Budget Request for Public Health Profotafonal Support Serrtces

Budget Period: Pf21

Total Program Cost

Unt item Direct . Indlrvct Total

t. Total Setarv/Waoes $  15.67S.M 5 5  15.675.69

2. Emplovee eer>efils S  $.9S6.76 S 5  5.956.76

). Consunams s 5

4. Eouloment: S  470.27 5 5  470.27

Rental 5 5

Repair end M^rttenence s S

Purchese/Depreoation t 5

S. Supplies: S  1,097.30 5 5  1.097.30

Educetiorxal S 5

Lab s 5

Pharmacy s 5 5

Martirai s 5 5

Office s 5

6. Travel 5 5

7. Oceuoerxcv S  1.S67.57 5 5  1.567.57

6. Current Experxses S  1.2S4.0S S 5  1.254.05

Telephone s $ 5

Poslaoe $ $ 5

Subscriptions s 5

Audit and Leoal i 5 5

Insurance s 5 5

Board Expenses s $ 5

9. Softvrare s S 5

to. MertcetinoiCommunicatiorts s 5

11. Staff Education and Tranno J  313.51 s 5  313.51

1? SubcnntracisrAareemerts 5

1

?
1

1
f|

5 s 5

Meetino Materials i  1.000.00 5  1.000.00

5

5

$

fnformatron Systems 5eS2.l6 5  S6^16

HR 5470.27 5  470.27

GerAdntn s 5470.27 5  470.27

Haymi and Accountrng $ 5S62.16 5  862.16

TOTAL -$ 27.335.14 15 » . 2.5S4.M $  30,000.00

fringe benefits (i«* of ssii^ end ofher generel t^erating costs to support project eetivitles Inctutfng oceupency. equipment,
genent office suppfes. letecommuricBtions end other current expenses, infonnatjon systems, eccourting and peytoO. hunran
resources and staff devetoporer*. end general admintstrBtiw support costs. The approved basis for eppBcaion of Ihe NICRA b
on satarywages only Irrdudrrg hodday. tick arrd vacedon. ,

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc. dib/a Community Health Institute

RFP-20t»OPHS-03-PU8Ua

HeaShcsre Acqtired Infectiorts

Page 1 of t
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Date



HIV-COC

New Hantpshlro Oopartmant of Health and Human Servlcos

Contractor Kama: JSf Research ft Training Irotttuta, Inc.

Budget Request tor; Pubde Heafth Proftsalortal Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Totai-Proprarn Cost'
Line Item' Olrecl Indirect Tots)

1. Total SebrvfWaoes 1  22.972.97 3 3  22.972.97
2. Emplovee Berwflts I  8.729.73 3 3  8.729.73
3. ConsulanU 1 3

4. Eouiemara; S  689.19 3 3  689.19
Rental 6 3

Reoabend Masreervnce s 3 j

PurcnasefDepredation 6 3 s

5. Supplies: 9  1,606.11 3 3  1.608.11
Educatloital 3 $

Lab s 3 $

Pharmacv s $ j

Medical $ 3 $

Office ' $ 3

6. Travel s 3 6

7. OccupancT 3  2.297.30 3 3  2.297.30
a. Cunera Expenses 3  1.837.64 3 3  1.837.84

Tetephorte 6 3 5

Postaoe 3 6

Subsoipriom s 3

Aud.1 end teoal 3

kisuranee 3 3 5

Beard Expenses 6 3 s

9. Software 3 3 $

10. MarketinafCommunications 3

11. Staff Education and Traininq 3  469.48 3 3  459.46
12. Sutworttrads/Aiareemenis 3
13. Other (ipedflc detafa mandatory): s 3 j

Prevention Supples 3  40.000.00 3  40.000.00
Capacsy bwidir>o. martetng. and events 3  17.500.00 3  17.500.00

s 6

5

IntOfmMtion Systems 31.263.51 3  1.263.51

HR 3689.19 3  689.19
Car) Admh 3 3689.19 3  689.19

Payrof and Accocnfng 3 31,263.51 3  I.263.SI
TOTAL .. 3  , 36.034.60 3  3,605.40 3  - -100,000.00

4.1%

Th« federely approved Negotiated Indlreci Cost Rale Agreefnera (NiCRA) for JSI ReeearcA end Training butKUe. Inc. hciidee
(ringa beneftts (38% c< uesty) end eOier general operaUng com to support prci|ecl actMUes ttdudng occupancy, egulpmmt
genend omca cuppies. tetecommunicaUorts and o9ier currtni expense, information tyeems. ecccunbng and payrei. hums)
resources end (ttfdevdDpmenl. and general a^TiMsVatVe support costs. The approved basis for appfcation el ft# MCRA b
on iB'rryfaegrii only indtrding holday. ska end vacatJocv

JSI Resaareh Trabtbig Institute. Inc. d/t/a ConruiKy Heath Institute

RFP-20180PHS-C3-PtJBUC/

WV-COC

Page 1 of 1
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KIV-Rebsiea

Ntrw Hampshlro Dopartment of Health and Human Sorvlcos

Contractor Mams; JSI Reseaieh & Training fnstltute, Inc.

Budget Request for Public Heatth Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Total Program Cost

Lino Item •  Direct Indirect ToUl

1. Total SaeryfWages S  78.270.27 8 8  76.270.27

2. Empleywe Berteflts $  29.742.70 8 8  29.742.70

3. ConsularSs s 8 8

4. Eqiipmera: 8  2.348.11 8 8  2.346.11

Rental s 8 8

Repair end Malntertartce s 8 8

PurOtese/Oeerectellon s 8 8

&. Supptes: $  S.478.92 8 8  5.478.92

Educational 8 8

Lab $ 8 8

Pharmecv % 8

lAedlal 1 8 8

omce S 8

8. Travel 8  1.200.00 8 8  1.200.00

7. Occupancy 8  7.827.03 8 8  7,827.03
8. Cureia Expenses 8  6.261.62 8 8  6^261.62

TebrchorM 8 8 8

Posteoe 8 8 8

Subscriptions 8 8 8

Audit and Leoal 8 8

Irmirance 8 8 8

Board Expcttses 8 8 8

9. Sortoare 8 8 8

10. MartatlrxifCommunications 8 8

It. Staff Education and Trarilnq 8  1.S65.41 8  1.565.41

12. Subcontracts/Aareements 8  4.000.00 8 8  4.000.00

!

8 8

HIV Assessmera Pertidoent Incentives 8  10.000.00 8  10.000.00

Tax Prep Services 8  10.000.00 8  10.COO.M

Caoadrv buaebo. tTttttetno. and everas 8  30.000.00 8  30.000.00

irSOrmadon Sysrents 84.304.88 8  4.304.86

HR 82.346.11 8  2.346.11

GenACMi 8 82.346.11 8  2.346.11

Psyrof artd Accountstg 8 84.304.66 8  4.304.66

TOTAL 8  .186,694.06 8  13,305.94 8  200,000.00

tndlrvct As A Psrctnl of Olrvct 7.1*

The fedenly appmvi Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate AgreemenI (NICAA) for JSI Reseat^ and Tranrtg tnstibjte. Inc. irtdbdes
frbge benefits (38* of sabry) end ether general operating costs to uppcrt pro^ aciMtles incbding occupancy, egufptnem.
general orrice tuppCes. '"Winniin iwii-jriii^ and other currant expenses, bdcrmasion systems, accostfrrg and pairol human

resowcss end cefl devetopmera. and general admbisaratVe support costs. The apprwed basis for appfcatlon of the NICRA is
on salaynwges onir ineijtfng hrtday. UcS and vacctica

JSI Research Trabing Institute. Inc. d/bfa Community Haalh bstituta

RFP-2018^PHS-03-PUB1.K:^

hffV- Rebates

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Mtiabitiab \ >



Home ProQnm

New Hampshiro Dopartment of Hoatth and Human Sdrvtcas

Contractor Name; JSI Research & TraMng Inatftule. Inc.

Budget Re^ueet lor PubOc Health Profeesional Support Servtcee

Budget Period; FY31 •

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct' Indirect total

1. Total SatsryfWages S  91.891.89 8 S  9t891A9

7. Employee Bertefits S  34,918.92 8 8  34,918.92

3. CoAsulants s 8

4. Eouipmefll: t  2.758.76 8 8  2.758.76

Rental s 8 8

Repair and MaHienance s S 8

Purtiiase^eoradailon s $ 8

S. Supples; S  6,432.43 8 8  6.432.43

Educationd s 8 8

Lab 8 8 8

Pharmacy 8 8

MtrSed 8 8 8

Office 8 8 8

6. Travd 8  2.500.00 8 8  2.500.00

7. OccuDsncv 8  9.189.19 8 8  9.189.19

8. Current E;q>enses 8  7.351.35 8 8  7.351 A5

Tdcphorte 8 8 8

Postooe 8 8 s

Subsolpdons 8 8

Audit and LeoaJ 8 8

hsutance 8 8 8

Board Expenses 8 8 8

9. Soflynre 8 8 8

10. MartretlrHyCommunicaSons 8 8

tl. Staff Education and Trakibx) 8  t.837.84 8 8  1.837.84

12. Suttcontmcls/Aopecments 8

t3. Other (spetiAc detais mandatory): 8 8 8

Learning Exmenges 8  6.000.00 8  6.000.00

Core TroirAK 8  20.000.00 8  20.000AO

cot 8  2.500.00 8  2.S00i)0

HFA Training & Supports 8  20.000.00 8  20.000AO

tnftwmeSofl Sysfrms 85.054.05 8  5.054 AS

HR 82.758.78 8  2.756.76

GcnA^min 8 82.758.76 8  2.756.76

Payrol and Accountng 8  • • 85,054AS 8  S.0S4AS

1  TOTAL 8  2tl5iI7IJ8 8  . 15,621.82 S  221,000.08

Indlracl As A Percsnl of Olrvct 7.8%

Tha (adenir approved NefloCaled tndlreei Ceo Rale AgreemenI (NICRA) tor JSI ResesrcA end Trtinkifl Instibte. Inc. inek/des
. ti1r>oe benefts {38% of uSary) tnd odtergenerol operadng cosis lo support projea acthrtiss Indudlng occupancy, eqtdpment.

genenl offloe supples, telecomnwticaaons and other current expenses, kiformailon systems, accounting and payrd. human
resources ertd staff development, end gerterel adrrdnistralive support costs. The approved basb for applcstfon of the NfCRA Is
on sataryAnaoes only irrokxCng holday. tlcfc citd vacation.

JSI Resaarch Treir^ Irutkute, inc. dA/a Comrmsttly KeaSh InstSute

RFP-20180PHS-«34>tjeLIC/

Home VIsUip Program

Page i of t.
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Home \^siling • MCH Btock Grant

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSl Research & Training InstJtuu. IrK.

Budget Request (or PubOc Health Professional Support Services

Budget Period: FY21

Line Item

Total Program Cost

Direct ' Indirect. Total

1. Total SabnfWaoes $ s

Z. Emplovee Benefss i s

3. Cormitants S s s

4. Eoulpment: $ s

Rental i S s

Repair and MaintenarKO S $ s

Purttiase/Decredation s $ s

5. Suooles: s s

Educational s s

Lab s s s

Phamcv s J $

Medical i s $

Office s s s

6, Travel s s s

7. Occupancy s s

8. Currera Expenses s s

Telephone s s s

Postaoe s s s

Subscripttons i $ s

AudS and Leoal s » s

InsurarKe s s

Board Expenses s $ $

9. Softviere s s i

10. Marketing/Communications s s

11. Statf Education end Trainino s $

12. Subcontrads/Aoreemems s 2t.425.00 s S  21.425.00

13. Other (spedflc ddais rrandatorv): i . s s

Partidpani incentives s 2.S75.00 S  2.575.00

5

S $

S

bitomation Systems S

HR

Gen Adnin s

Hayrot end AeeoufOng s »

"  TOTAL s 24.000.00 $ (  24.000.00

Indirect As A Perctnt e( D(r«^

The tedersty epprciyed Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (NICRA) tor JSl Reseerm and Training InstitiJie. Inc. includes
tftoge bencTrtt {38* of utoy) end other general operBttog coat* to tuppori projed edrvities Indtoing ooapancy. epoipmeftl.
general oRiea supples. icIeconynunicatlerM end other current experoes. Mormation systems, accounting and peyrol. humen
resources end stafl development, and general administrative support costs. The approved basis for eppicstlon d the NICRA b
on saiaryhnoges ortiy including hoiday. side and vacation.

JSl Researeh Training Institute, Inc. d/hfa Community Heath Instituta

RFP.2018-OPMS4»-PU8LIC/

Home Vbtlsng • MCH Stock Grant

Page l of i
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Immuizetien Program

New Hampshire DepartfTtent of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.

Budget Request for PwMlc Health Professional Support Service*

Budget Parted: PTZI

Total Program Cost '

Line Item- CXrect ' Indirect ' Total '

1. Total Setary/Waoes S  2g.548.21 S 8  29.548.21

2. Employee Benefits S  11.228J32 t 8  11.228.32

3. Coroutlants s s s

a. Eqtipmera: $  885.45 i 8  688.45

Rental $ s

Repalrand Mainlenance s 8

PurchasdDeoradation s S

S. Supplies: s  2.068.37 $ 8  2.068.37

Cducatfcrul 5

Lab s S 8

Ptiarmecy 8 8

Medical % 8 9

Onice S 8

6. Travel S  335.81 8 8  33S.81

7. OCQIDVCV %  2.954.82 8 8  2.954.82

8. Current Evertses S  2.363.88 8  2.383.86

Tetephorre 8

Postaoe 8 8

Sutrsdfpiloro S 8 8

Audit and Leoal s 8

InsvarKO s 8 s

Board Eroenses s 8 s

9. Software s 8 8

10. Marketing/Communtcatiorts S  5.000.00 8 8  S.OCO.OO

11. SiaS Education md Training S  590.96 8 8  590.98

12. SubcontracU/Agraemerta S  30.000.00 8 8  30.000.00

13. Other {spedftc details manoatorr): s

CordcrencQ S  5.000.00 8  5.000.00

8

8

MonraSen Systems 81.625.15 8  1.825.15

HR 8888.45 8  888.45

CenAdmIr) s 8888.45 8  886.45
Paynf and AeoounPng $ 81.625.15 8  1.625.15

TOTAL. >  -89.978.80 8  - 6.023.20 8  98.000.00

Iftdiraci A* A PATOMt of Olroct S.6%

The tederaify appfgved Negotwted Indirect Cost fteie Agreement (NICRA) for JSI Reseerch end Training hstiKite. Inc. Irtdudee
frtnge benefits (38% of seiery) and ether general opersdng costs to support pcoted activities induding occupartcy. c<tt*pment.
general ofAce stppBes, lefeoorrwrudcstfons end other current u^ertses. Information systems, eeceunttng and payroi. hwnan

resources end sttf development, end general atAilissiistive support costs. The approved tesis tor appfication of ff>e NICRA Is
on seteryfwages ocfy indudirg hofiday, side and vacatoa

JSI Researdi Ttelrtng hotltute. Itw. dft/a Commurdty Health Instilute

RFP-20t8-OPHS-034»tJBI.IC/

bnmtfilzaAon Program

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Inltlds

Dale



Metficsi Reserve Corps Cooniinstion (MRC)

New Hampshire Department of Health antf Human Services

Contractor Name: JSt Research 8 Training btatftuta, Inc.

Budget Request for PubQc Heelth Proftssiertaf Support Servfces

Budget Period: FY21

1 Total Program Cost

Line Keen Direct ' indirect Total

t. Totai SatanVWaoes $  tO.848.64 8 8  10.648.64

2. Emotovee Benefits 8  4.046.49 8 8  4.048.49

3. Cormitartfs s 8 8

4. Eouioment: S  319.48 8 8  319.46

RerUat 8 8 8

Repair and Maintenance 8 8 8

Pufchase/Peoreciation 8 8 8

5. SuppCes: 8  74S.4t 8 8  745.41

Educatiortal 8 8 8

Lab 8 8 8

Pt^armacY 8 8 8

- Medical 8 8 8

Office 8 8 8

6. Trv^ 8  100.00 8 8  100.00

7. Occupancy 8  1.064.88 8 8  1.064.68

8. Current Eoenses 8  8S1.89 8 8  851.89

Teleorwne 8 8 *

Postaoe 8 8 8

Subscrlotions 8 8 8

1

1

1

t

8 8 8

InsurarKe 8 8 8

Board Expenses 8 8 8

8. Software 8 8 8

to Mftr1(etir>qfCommunicatkxu 8 8 8

tl. Staff Education and Tranno 8  212.97 8 8  212.97

t2. SubCDntradsfAoreemena 8 8 8

13. Other (specafic deta8s mandatory): 8 8 8

Msetinc era) TreininQ SuoeOes 8  200.00 8  200.00

bitonatiori Svsfems 8689.68 8  585.68

MR 8319.46 8  319.46

GtnA^Snin 8 8319.46 8  319.46

Pavrod snd Accoundnq 8 8S6S'.68 8  585.68

8 8 8

TOTAL S  18.189.72 8  1,810.28 8  20.000.00

10Indirect As a Percent of Direct .0%

The federeSy approved Negotiated Wftoci Cost Rats Agreement (NICRA) tor J51 Research and Tratntng Instituta. inc toctodes
fringe benefits (38% of satary) and cither generto operating coats to support pr^ect activities Muding'occupancy, equipment,
general oRica suppGes. tetecommunicaliotts and other cuieiil ejqw.iea. Information systems, accomting and paynfl. human
resources end staff dsvetopmem, and genera) admMstrative support costs. The approved basis tor eppBcaOon of foe NICRA b
on sstaryfwages orfy irxiuding hofiday. sick end vacation.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to. personally identifiable
information,, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, a!) of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
t

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law.^in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been Waluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
"  access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual -private network (VPN) must be

. installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parlies must:

A. /Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United'
States, this physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the rnedia (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the Stale and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of . this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor^ will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities -are in place to
delect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
OFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in alt.other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and Incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security OfTicer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and jDassword-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if enervated and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHMS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37:

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
j

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON OF PUBLICHEALTH SER VICES

Jeffrey A Meyco 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commluioner 603-271^501 I-8004S2-3345 ExL 4501

Fflx:603-27l-4a27 TDD Access: >-800-735-2964
Liu M.Morris / www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

March 12, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a sole source amendment to an existing agreement with JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor #161611-6001, 501 South
Street, 2^ Floor, Bow, NH 03304 to provide a broad range of support services across a number
of public health programs by increasing the price limitation by $342,125 from $1,578,580 to
$1,920,705, effective upon date of Governor and Council approval, with no change to the
completion date of June 30. 2019. 81.61% Federal Funds. 12.54% General Funds, and 5.85%
Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21,
2017 (Item #51). as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #8). >

Funds are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2018 and 2019.
with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without approval from Governor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED.

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the amount of additional funding exceeds ten
percent (10%) of the original contract value and because the Department is adding to the current
scope of work for the contract period. These additional services are required to effectively
implement activities included in the Division's federal funding agreements for the current state
fiscal year. . '

The funding contained In this Contract will pay for implementing a statewide opioid related
vulnerability assessment as part of the Department's response to the opioid crisis: facilitate
meetings of the Home Visiting Task Force and its workgroups; conduct 10 (ten) jurisdictional risk
assessments addressing public health emergencre's; procure and distribute additional HIV
testing supplies based on an increase in need; distribute funding to support 13 (thirteen) regional
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Medical Reserve Corps units and 2 (two) Regional Public Health Networks to regional priorities
addressing environmental public health issues; and develop outreach materials to,support the
Regional Public Health Networks.

The Contractor currently provides a broad range of public health professional support
services including, but not limited to developing and implementing risk and needs assessments;
training programs; developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences
as well as smaller meetings and'conferences; serving as a fiscal agent for the Department,
including entering into subcontracts; providing technical assistance to local partners; and
providing subject matter expertise.

The funding provided through this amendment will be used to fund and expand the
following support sen/ices:

• Opioid Assessment services: The contractor will conduct a statewide HIV and viral
hepatitis community vulnerability assessment in order to identify areas of the state
that can be targeted for services to prevent the transmission of these infections in
people with substance use disorder. This activity is a requirement of federal opioid
crisis funding.

•  Public Health Erriergency Preparedness services: The contractor will conduct
Jurisdictional Risk Assessments in collaboration with at least 10 (ten) public health
preparedness coordinators from the 13 (thirteen) organizations funded to provide
Public Health Network services. These assessments will be used to identify the
public health threats of greatest concern in each region and to develop strategies
to mitigate them. This activity is a requirement of federal preparedness funding.
The contractor will also increase the amount of funding in current subcontracts that
support 13 (thirteen) regional Medical Reserve Corps units.

•  HIV Pfewhtion services: The contractor will purchase and distribute additional HIV
testing supplies to community partners to meet an increase in need due to the
opioid epidemic. Early diagnosis and treatment of people infected with HIV helps to
prevent further transmission of this virus in the community and improves health
outcomes for people living with HIV. In addition, funds will be utilized to bring
together community stakeholders to address the goals of the NH HIV Integrated
Plan to end HIV in NH and to support targeted media and marketing efforts to
promote the prevention of HIV among those highest risk of acquiring the
infection.

•  Environmental Public Health Tracking services: The contractor will increase the
amount of funding in current subcontracts with 2 (two) Regional Public Health
Networks to develop and distribute training materials related to reducing health
risks from the environment and utilize these materials during in-person trainings
and workshops with regional partners.

• Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program services: The
contractor will facilitate and provide logistical support to Home Visiting Task Force
Meetings and participation in workgroup meetings, such as Data System. Strategic
Planning, and Communications workgroups; conduct a strategic planning session
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of the Parent Advisory Council; and increase the current technical assistance and
accreditation support for Home Visiting Programs funded by the Department.

•  Preventative Health and Sen/ices Block Grant programs: The contractor will
develop outreach materials to increase the level of awareness of the Regional
Public Health Networks.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the
Department may amend the current agreement, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will lack the ability to collect and analyze data necessary to conduct jurisdictional risk
assessments in accordance with CDC requirements, procure and distribute necessary additional
HIV testing supplies, conduct a statewide opioid related vulnerability assessments in accordance
with CDC requirements; support an increased level of activity in the 13 (thirteen) fvledical
Reserve Corps units and 3 (three) Regional Public Health Networks addressing envirpnniental
health problerhs; and support the Home Visiting Task Force and Parent Advisory Council.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 81.61% Federal (the Public,JHealth Emergency
Preparedness Program, the Hospital Preparedness Program, the Environmental Public Health
Tracking Program, the Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant Program, the
Preventative Health and Services Block Grant Program, the HIV Integrated Prevention and
Surveillance Program, and the Opioid Assessment Program), 12.54% General (the Public Health
Emergency Preparedness Program), and 5.85% Other (Pharmaceutical Rebates).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

jffrey At Meyers
Commissioner

77ieZ)cportfti«/i( e/W«o/l/ia«ri Hiuiutn Serulco' Miuion to join cotitmuiiilics and/ontilin
in providing opporUttiiliet for cilixen$ to fichievc hooUh ond independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services'

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7&45 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. EMERGENCY
PREPAREONESS, 67% Federal. 33% General

SPY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified
Amounl

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $115,000 0 $115,000

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 $115,000 $130,000 $245,000

, Sub Total $230,000 $130,000 $360,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS. 100% Federal '

SFY
Class/

Account
Ctass Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified"
Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700. $70,000 0 $70,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $70,000 0 $70,000

Sub Total $140,000 0 $140,000

05-95-90-902510-5176 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. IMMUNIZATION
PROGRAM. 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account'
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount,

increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Amount

2016 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023320 $65,000 0 $65,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023320 $65,000 0 $65,000

Sub Total $130,000 0 $130,000

05-95-90-902510-2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES. 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90024600 $183,600 0 $183,800

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90024600 $113,800 $20,000 $133,800
Sub Total $297,600 $20,000 $317,600
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0&-9S-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General, 63% Other

SFY
Class /

. Account'
Class TiUe Job Number

Current/

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
ModrTied

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90000022 $18,000 0 $18,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 $18,000 0 $16,000

Sub Total $36,000 0 $36,000

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS. ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH
TRACKING. 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

f^ified

/Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90041000 $50,000 0 $50,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90041000 $50,000 $20,000 $70,000

Sub Total $100,000 $20,000 $120J)00

0&-9S-90-901S10-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. LEAD PROTECTION, 100%
Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount •

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90003600 $36,000 0 $36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90038000 $50,000 0 $50,000

Sub Total

SFY 2018 -
$86,000 0 $86,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 $9,000 0 $9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 $40,000 0 $40,000

Sub Total

SFY 2019
$49,000 0 $49,000

Sub Total $135,000 0 $135,000

05.95.90.902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. ACA HOME
VlStTING'X02 FORMULA GRANT, 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90083200 $221,990 0 $221,990

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 $221,990 $25,579 $247,569

Sub Total $443,980 $25,579 S469.559
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05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. MATERNAL -
CHILD HEALTH, 100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Accourti
Class TKIe Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modrfied

Amount

2018 102-500731 ContracIs for Proo Svc 90080001 -  $24,000 0 $24,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90080001 $24,000 0 $24,000
— Sub Total $43,000 0 $48,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. RADIOLOOICAL
EMERGENCY RESPONSE. 100% Other

SFY,
Class /

Account
Class Trtie Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

ModiTied

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9.000 0 $9,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90030000 9.000 0 $9,000

Sub Total $18,000 $0 $16,000

05-95-90-902510-753$ HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS;
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, STD/HIV PREVENTION,
100% Federal

SPY
Class 1

Account
Class T'rtle Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Conlracis for Proq Svc 9002400 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 9002400 0 $75,000 $75,000

Sub Total 0 $75,000 $75,000

05-95-90-901010-5362 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEMS. POLICY. AND PERFORMANCE.
100% Federal

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/'

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 9001022 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 9001022 0 $15,000 $15,000

> Sub Total 0 $75,000 $15,000

05-95-90-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS
RESPONSE, 100% Federal

SFY
Class/

Account
Class'Trtle Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

ModiTied

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 0 0 0

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90703903 0 $56,546 $56,546

Sub Total 0 $56,546 $56,546

TOTAL $1,578,580 $342,125 $1,920,705
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr.) Concord, NH 03301
■  Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

gov/doit

March 18, 20)9

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Dcpaitmeni of Healih and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existirlg contract with JSI Research and Training Institute,
lnc.,d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH,as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-
0298.

The purpose of this contract amendment is for'JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., to
continue to provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of
public health programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing a
statewide opioid related vulnerability assessment to inform the implementation of
prevention and intervention services as part of the Department of Health and Human
Services-response to the opioid crisis.

The funding amount for this amendment is $342,125, increasing the current.contract from
$1,578,580, to an amount not to exceed $1,^20,705 and is effective upon the date of
Governor and Council approval, with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019.

^  A copy of this letter should accompany the Department ofHeallh and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive, Council for approval.

Sincerely,

DG/kaf

DolT #2018-0298

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

Denis Goulet

'Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow

I



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profossional Support Sorvlcoa

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment itZ to the

Public Health Professional Support Services

This 2nd Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred
to as "Amendment #2") dated this 12th day of October. 2018, is by and between the Stale of New
Hampshire. Department of: Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and JSI Research end Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprorit agency with a place of business at 501 South
Street. 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #51), and as amended (Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on February 21. 2018 (Item #8), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums speciried; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the State may modify the scope of work
and-the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Amend Form p.37. Block 1.6 Account Number, to read 05-95-90-902510-7545, 05-95-90-
902510-2239. 05-95-90-902510-5176, 05-95-90-902510-2229.'05-95-9Q-902510-5390, 05-95-
90-900510-5173. 05-95^90-902510-7964, 05-95-90-902010-5896, 05-95-90-902010-5190, 05-
95-90-901510-5299. 05-095-090-902510-7536.05-95-90-901010-5362. & 05-95-90-902510-
7039.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,920,705.

3. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan O. White. Director.

4. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10. Slate Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.,

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit A, Amendment #2.
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit 8. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment In its entirety, and replace with
, Exhibit 8, Amendment #2. Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment. •

7.." Opiete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Public Health Emergency .
Preparedness. SFY 2019 in its entirely, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional
Support Services - Public Health Emergency Preparedness, SFY 2019 Amendment #2.

Community Hosttn Inttllulo Amendment $2
RPP-3016-OPHS-O3-PUBLIC Pa^e 1 o< 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Heelth ProfoosloncI Support Sorvlcee

8. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV Prevention, SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

9. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Pharmaceutical Rebates - SPY
2019 in its entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services -
Pharmaceutical Rebates - SPY 2019 Amendment #2.

10. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPHT, SPY 2019 In its entirety,
and replace with Budget for Public Heatth Professional Suppon Services - EPHT. SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

11. Delete Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home Visiting. SPY 2019 In its
entirety, and replace with Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Home
Visiting. SPY 2019 Amendment #2;

12. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - PHHS Block Grant. SPY 2019
.Amendment #2. ■ <

13. Add Budget for Public Health Professional Support Services - Opioid Assessment. SPY 2019
Amendment #2.

CoTimunRy Hotiih Inuhuie Amendmont n
Rrp.20ie DPHS-03-PU8LIC . P9Q» 2o\4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profeaalonal Support Se.fylcee

This amendment shall be effective''upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the dale written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: !
Title. 01>KS

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc.. d/b/a Community
Health Institute

(anuary 24. 2019

Date Name: joi&a;tiaf\^tey^ar(
Title: Rfgiona) Diroctor

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate ol Ntw Hampshire county of Merrimack 5^ January 24, 2019
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document In the
capacity indicate above.-

Signature c^^otary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name 8nd'Titlc.lpf,'Nbtary or Justice of the Peace

OEBRA L LOVE, Notary PubOc
'  ■ HrOonvdstdonQqA«s8(peornbor5,2023
My Commission Expires: ^

Community Heftnh institutQ Amendmont §7
RFP•^Ot^OPHS•O^PUBLIC PBgtlor4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Sorvlces

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form subslance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Aip^Na

Title:

I hereby certify thai the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the fleeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CommuAlfy HssUi InsUluu
RFP-ZOIS-OPHS-OS-PUBLIC

Amendmont fl2

PpQ9 4 of 4



Now Hempohiro Oopartmont of Health and Human Servicea
Public Health Profoealonal Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment »2

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
i .1 The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with limited English proHclency to ensure meaningful access to their

programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to ihe extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state courl orders may have an impact on the Services

described herein, the Stale Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure

requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall

continue after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for

. services provided after June 30,2017. unless and until an appropriation for these services

has been received, from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018*2019
biennia.

2. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall;

2.1. Provide a broad range of public health professional support services including, but not

limited to; developing and implementing training programs; conducting needs assessments;

developing educallpnal materials; planning for large statewide conferences; and making
subject matter experts available to Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS),

Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) contractors.

2.2. Increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide
high-quality public health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across

this range of services and program areas that include: transparent and informed community
planning processes; high-quality educational materials, conferences and training programs;'
knowledge and skills-building among DPHS contracted.agencies; timely and efficient

administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.

2.3. ' Convene. Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

2.3.1. In consultallon with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for ongoing
committees/planning groups as defined In'Attachment F.

2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.4.1. Provide logistical support to the New England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC).

This includes up to 12 regular meetings of the full NELCC and up to 2 of committee/

workgroup meetings per year. Information about ihe NELCC is available at:
http://www.newenglandlead.org/.

JSI ReMorch 4 Troining InsUlute, Inc. Sxhibli A. Amon^eni *2 Convaciof Inhlsia
d/b/a Community Heotlh Inatitule '
RfP.20i8-OPHS-0J-PUBUC PefleioM? Data 1/24/19



Now Hampahiro Dopartmont of Hoelth and Human Sorvicoa
Public Health Profeselonal Support Services

Exhibit A, Amendment #2

2.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking

2.5.1. Provide logistical support to host up to 10 meetings with Regional Public Health
Networks to gather feedback on the EPHT Data Portal. •

2.5.2. Provide logistical support for up to 5 focus groups to conduct user research of EPHT
data and projects.

2.6. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigaiion & Care Services Section

2.6.1. Provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG). This includes up to 6
regular meetings of the full HPG and up to 30 of committee/workgroup meetings per
year. More information about the HIV HPG is available at: nhhiv.org.

2.7. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal'and Child
Health Section (MCH);

2.7.1. Provide logistical support to quarterly conference calls for three, peer-based caucuses.
The caucuses will be role based (e.g. supervisors, home visitors, and quality
improvement staff).

2.7.2. Provide logistical support for the Home Vislllng Task Force, formerly known as the Home
Visiting Coordinating Council at least quarterly. This group serves as the MIECHV
Advisory Group and Is made up of collaborating partners and others in the state with an
interest and background In home visiting.

2.7.3. Participate in Data Systems: Strategic Planning; and Communications workgroup
meetings.

2.8. Develop and Implement Training Programs

2.8.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or implement training
programs based on adult learning theories that use various training modalities (i.e.
classroom, web-based, training of trainers, etc.) to maximize the reach of these,
programs.

2.8.1.1. Food Protection Section (FPS):

2.8.1.1.1. In consultation with Food Protection Staff develop training curricula for three
discrete audiences:

2.8.1.1.1.1. DPHS FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that regulate FSE. A list of these municipalities is
available at: .

http://vwAv.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/fp/docurnents/selfinspect.pdf
2.8.1.1.1.2. Staff from state agencies that conduct food safety Inspections as one

'(^mponeni of a more comprehensive operational inspection. This
includes Department of Environmental Services Youth Camp inspection
staff, DHHS Health Facilities Licensing staff (which Inspects child care
centers, nursing homes and assisted living facilities).

JSl Research & Training Instilute. Inc. enhiWi a. Amendmsni« Cof>»r>cter
d/b/fl Communfiy Heallh InsUlule ~T
RFP.20H-DPHS-03-PUBUC P6fi«2ofl2 0,,^ 1/24/19



Now HampBhiro Dopanmont of Health and Human Sorvices
Public Hoalth ProfosBlonal Support Sorvlcoa

Exhibit A, Amendment ff2

2.8.1.1.1.3. Fcxxj Service Workers including, but r^ot limited to workers in
restaurants, retail food stores, schools, and caterers.

2.8.1.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness:

2.6.1.2.1. Develop and implement training programs for two discrete audiences:

'2.8.1.2.1.1. RPHN emergency preparedness coordinators

2.6.1.2.1.2. Local municipal officials, healthcare preparedness personnel,
volunteers and others engaged in regional PHEP planning end
response.

2.8.1.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program;

2.8.1.3.1. Plan and implement the 1-day Renovation. Repair and Painting Training
^ programs In New Hampshire's highest risk communities using the US
^ Environmental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.8.1.4. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (M)ECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.8.1.4.1. In consuttalion with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs
assessment for the 11 MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.8.1.4.2. Develop and implement an annual training plan (which will include site
specific training plans), including evaluation, from the information garnered
from the training needs assessment. At a minimum, ten (10) training
accessible opportunities should be offered per MiECHV fuhded home visiting
site per year. An opportunity is defined as a pre-existing training, which the
contractor pays home visiting staff to attend (can be out of state) and
trainings which are provided by the contractor. These can be offered
electronically (webinars. etc.) or in-person.

2.9. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

2.9.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for
conferences as defined by the DPHS in the original Request for Proposal.

2.9.1.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.9.1.1.1. Provide logistical and planning suppon for the NELCC's annual conference
for up to 300 attendees. Provide logistical and planning support for four
regional dinner meetings for up to 120 attendees each.

2.9.1.2. Immunization Program

2.9.1.2.1. Provide logistical support for the annual Immunization Conference for
.  approximately 400 attendees.

2.9.1.3. Public Health Emergency Preparednass

2.9.1.3.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the annual NH Statewide
Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.9.1.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc. ExhiW A. Amonctmeni 02 Conuactor inJlleU
d/b/B CommunHy Health institute
RFP.201B-OPHS-0J-PU81IC ' PflgeSoM? Date 1/24/19

4



Now Hampohiro Oopartmont of Health and Human Sarvlcea
Public Health ProfpsBlonal Support Services

Exhibit A. AmondmontffS

2.9.1.4.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the bi-annual NH STD, HIV.
Hepatitis. TB conference for up to 250 attendees. Planning support includes
provision of continuing education credits.

2.9.1.5. Maternal. Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Malernal
and Child Health Section

2.9.1.5.1. Provide logistical and planning support, including evaluation, to seml-annual-
conferences-learning exchanges (fall and spring) for up to 55 staff at
MIECMV contracted sites. The spring 2016 Irainingwril) focus on Healthy

.  Families America required content training for continued certtficdtion. The fall
training 2016 will be based on Hndings from the needs assessment.

2.9.1.5.2. Provide logisticdl and planning support for at least two half or full day in-
person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.10. Provide Technical Assistance

2.10.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.1.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide technical assistance to
three discrete groups directed toward their meeting the national standards
described in the tJ.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's (CDC) Public
Health Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011) and subsequent editions;

2.10.1.1.1. OPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff

2.10.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators at the 13 organizations funded by
OPHS to provide Regional Public Hearth Network services. TA will be
available to both individuals and as a group.

2.10.1.1.3. Medical Resen/e Corps units recognized by the registered with the U.S.
Surgeon General. OfOce of the Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve Corps, to
support recruitment, training and deployment of the MRC volunteers.

2.10.1.2. Conduct Jurisdictional Risk Assessments in accordance with CDC requirements
in collaboration with at least ten (10) public health preparedness coordinators from
the thirteen (13) organizations funded to provide Public Health Network services.

2.10.1.3. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.3.1. In consultation wilh OPHS subject matter experts, identify and coordinate the
availability of technical assistance providers to OPHS contractors and service
provider agencies.

2.10.1.4. . Develop and produce educational materials

2.10.1.4.1. In corisullalion wilh DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or produce
educational materials on topics determined by DPHS staff. All materials shall
be developed in accordance with CDC recommendations contained In Simply
Put: Guide to Developing Easy-Tc-Understand Materials. CDC July 2010,
available at: hl1ps:/Avww.cdc.gov/healthliteracy/pdf/Simpty_Put.pdf

2.10.1.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking.Program (EPHT)

,2.10.1.5.1. Develop educational materials targeted to public health professionals.
emergency preparedness ofTicials. and local partners to increase knowledge
and understanding of the EPHT program at the state and local levels.

JSl RoMlirch 4 Training Institulo. inc. Ejchlbll A. Amendmeni »2 Comraclof iniltoli
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2.10.1.6. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)

.  2.10.1.6.1. Develop educational materials In collaboration with the HHLPPP to target to
clinicians, contractors, and families to Increase knowledge and understanding
of best practices relative to Screening and Management Guidelines, lead-
safe work practices, and keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.10.1.7. Immunization Program

2.10.1.7.1. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the Immunization lnformation System (IIS).

2.10.1.7.2. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the benefits ot immunizations across the lifespan.

2.10.1.6. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.8.1. In consultation with DPHS, maintain and update the NH HIV Planning Group
(HPG) website.

2.10.1.9. Community Health Development Section )

2.10.1.9.1. Develop educational materials to increase awareness of regional Public
Health Advisory Councils.

2.10.1.10. Matemal. Infant and,Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section

2.10.1.10.1. Provide Continuous Quality Improvement technical assistance through
site visits and phone consultations to support local implementing agencies
funded by DPHS that seek accreditation from the Health Families America

- accreditation board.'

2.10.2. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

2.10.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts', develop evaluation plans that
clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures.

2.10.2.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.2.2.1. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects that meets
criteria outlined by CDC and fulfills federal requirements. This document will
facilitate programming planning, implementation, and evaluation.

2.10.2-.2.2. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate previously funded HHLPPP
projects that addressed dissemination techniques and understanding of the
2015 Lead Sun/eillance Report and the Childhood Lead Screening and
Management Guidelines.

2.10.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program (MiECHVj/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.2.3.1. Implement current MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.10.2.3.2. Parlicipate in updating the MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan.

2.10.3. Update Strategic Plans

d/b/o Community HeaUh Instirule xnAna
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2.10.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, update pre-existing strategic
plans that clearty outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.10.3.2. Maternal. Infant and early .Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.10.3.2.1. Update the 20.10 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.
2.11. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

2.11.1. As directed by OPHS staff, serve as fiscal agent to maximize the efficient use of
resources as follows: •

2.11.2. Environmental Public Health Track.ing Prograrri

2.11.2.1. Enter into up to 3 mini-grants with vendors funded by DPHS to provide Regional
Public Health Networks services. A list of currently funded vendors is available at:
httD.7/www.dhhs.nh.Qov/dohs/rDhn/index.h(m.

2.11.2.2. Subcontract with mini-grant recipients funded by DPHS to provide Regional
Public Health Networks services in order to increase the amount of funds and amend
work plans.

2.11.3. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

2.11.3.1. Reimburse costs incurred by approximately 5 public members of the HPG to
attend out-of-state conferences identified by the OPHS and mileage costs to attend

. In-state meetings, the purpose is to Increase the knowledge and skills of the public
members of the HPG.

2.11.3.2. Procure prevention supplies as determined by the IDPICSS to an additional six
(6) clinics funded by the IDPICSS to provide testing and treatment for sexually
transmitted infections and human Immunodeficiency virus.

. 2.11.3.3. Exe.cute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to provide
consultation and technical assistance on the production of a digital storytelling

. project, including coordination, development and implementation of a digital
storytelling workshop: production of a digital storytelling electronic file for up to eight
stories and training of participants in conducting an engagement session with
stakeholders.

2.11.4. Public Health Ernergency Preparedness < •

2.11.4.1. Execute a subcontract with a vendor Identified by the DPHS to procure E-Studio,
a web-based collaboration system currently in use at DPHS.

2.11.4.2. Subcontract with 13 Medical Reserve Corps units to build capacity to staff
emergency response facilities during public health emergencies.

2.11.4.3. Enter into subcontracts with up to 4 individuals idenlified by the DPHS to
participate in radiological emergency planning, training and exercises to build staffing
capacity to respond to radiological emergencies.

2.11.5. Maternal, Infant and Early'Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
d/b/B Community Health tnsUtute
RFP.201».OPHS"03.PU8UC
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2.11.5.1. Support at least two MIECHV funded home visiting agency staff selected by the
DHHS to attend the annual MIECHV grantee conference.

2.11.5.2. Execute a sul>contract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to research and
identify methods to increase utilization of postpartum visits by home visiting families.

2.12. HIV and Hepatitis Community Vulnerabiiity Assessments-

2.12.1. The Conlracior shall design methodology, including but not limited to;

2.12.1.1. WorKing with the Department's Bureau of infectious Disease Control
(BICD) to organize and engage a stakeholder group (Stakeholder Group) to
provldia input on the vulnerability assessment design, methods, expected
output and outcomes;

2.12.1.2. Review current literature describing similar Vulnerability Assessments to
inform the study design;

2.12.1.3. Work wilh the BICO to coordinate technical assistance.potentiaily

available from the Center for Disease Control and Prevention for study design ■

and interpretation of results;

2.12.2. The Contractor shall assemble data, including but not limited to:

2.12.2.1. Working with the BICD to develop data use agreements, as applicable, to
obtain data for the assessment to include data on:

2.12.2.1.1. Overdose mortality and morbidity;

2.12.2.1.2. Emergency medical service arid emergency department
utilization;

2.12.2.1.3. Incidence of bloodborne infections associated with non-sterite

drug injection;

2.12.2.2. Obtaining other relevant data for the Vulnerability Assessment to include:

2.12.2.2.1. Demographic data, f*i^edication Assisted Treatment capacity;

2.12.2.2.2. Other substance-use related treatment capacity;
/

2.12.2.2.3. Controlled drug prescription rales; and

2.12.2.2.4. Public safety data;

2.12.2.3. Wrth geographical context, to the extent such data is available, sufficient
to conduct analyses to facilitate resource targeting;

2.12.2.4. Any work performed by the Contractor as part of these initiatives shall
comply with all state rules, and state and federal laws as required to
safeguard the cpnfidenliality of the Information, and to comply wilh 42 CFR
part 2 as applicable.

2.12.3. The Contractor shall conduct analyses for the Vulnerability Assessment,
including but not limited to;

JSI Raieorch & Training Insliluto, Inc. ExWbii A, AmBndfi»ni K Coniracior —
d/b/a Comrnunily Health Insiltute W9d/iO
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2.12.3.1. Completing statistical analyses following design and modeling
procedures as defined in collaboration with the Stakeholder Group

2.12.3.2. Work with the 6ICD and the Stakeholder Group to review interim findings;

2.12.3.3. Refine the analysis as necessary and possible with additional data,
methodological variations or innovations;

2.12.3.4. Complete the analysis for different sub^eographies of the state as
determined in conjunction with BICD and the Stakeholder Group, t

2.12.4. The Contractor shall disseminate and apply rtndings of the Vulnerability
Assessment by use of the following methods:

2.12.4.1. Produce jurisdictional maps identifying high-risk areas identified through
the assessment process;

2.12.4.2. Distribute findings to Key stakeholders in formats that support action;

'2.12.4.3. Presenting at public health and healthcare provider^meetings;

2.12.4.4. Creating fact sheets or report cards for geographic sub-regions of New
Hampshire;

2.12.4.5. Publishing findings in professional journals:

2.12.4.6. Use the findings from the assessment to assist the Department in the
development of plans that strategically allocate prevention and intervention
services.

3. Staffing

The Contractor shall;

3.1. Provide sufficient staff to perform all tasks specified in this Contract and shall maintain a

.  level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions, reguirements. roles,
and duties in a timely fashion to meet the scope of work

3.2. Ensure staffing structure includes a contract administrator to administer all scopes of work
relative to (his Contract, as well as progress and finance reporting.

3.3. Ensure that across all funded positions, in addition to subject matter expertise, there is a
combined level of expertise, skills and ability to understand data; use data for planning and
evaluation; community engagement and collaboration; group facilitation skills; and IT skills in
order to function as a tearn. ideaily with complementary skill and abilities across these
foundatlonal areas of expertise and abilities.

3.4. Ensure thai policies and procedures consistent with state and federal laws are in place to
adequately and appropriately train staff to safeguard any individual confidential information
or protected health information that they may have access to while performing their duties •
for the Contractor.

JSI ROMflfcn 4 Troininfl Inslhulo. Inc ExtilWi A. Amendmani #2 ConUBctar
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3.5. Ensure that personnel are available during normal business hours, at a minimum Monday
through Friday, 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.

4. Outcomes / Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are; annually
achieved and monitored rrtonlhly to rneasure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.2. Convene, Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

4.2.1. Environmental Public Health Trackrng

4.2 .1.1. At least 65% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellenf or
"very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent' or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program'(MlECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.2.3.1. At least 85% of parllcipants rale the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent* or "very good" in an evalualion survey.

4.2.3.2. At least 05% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Task Force, formerly
known as the Home Visiting Coordinating Council, meetings as either "excellent"
or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

4.3.1. Food Protection Section

4.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the OHHS as either "excellent"
or 'very good*

4.3.1.2. • At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
'very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.2. Public Hearth Emergency Preparedness

4.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
4.3.2.2. At least 85% of parliclpants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or

"very good" in an evaluation survey.
4.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.3.3.1.- The training module Is raled as either "excellent" or "very good'by DPHS.

4.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rale the training programs as-either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.3.4. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MlECHVyMaternal and
Child Hearth Section (MCH):

4.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

JSI Rcjeofch 4 Training Institute, inc. Exhibit A. Am#ndmeni «2 Contracioi intiiaii
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4.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
very good; in an evaluation survey. At least 85% of participants in the Parent Advisory
Council trainings rate the training programs as eHher "excellent" or 'very good" In an
evaluation survey.

4.4. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences ^
4.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either 'excellent" or 'very good' in an evaluation su^ey.

A.AA.2. At least 85®/o of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either 'excellent' or 'very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.2. Immunization Program

4.4.2.1. At least 85% of confemnce planning committee meml>ers rate the conference
planning support as either "excelleni" or 'very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent' or 'very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

, 4.4.3.1. ■ At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
.  planning support as either "excellent" or 'very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to.
co^fcence logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation sun/ey.

4.4-.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, investigation & Care Services Section

4.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either 'excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participanis rate the elements pertaining to "
conference logistics as either "excellent" or 'very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.5. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

4.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participanis rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either 'excellent* or "very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.5. Provide Technical Assistance •

4.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
4.5.1.2., Publish 10 Jurisdicltonal Risk Assessment reports.

4.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.5.3.

4.5.3.1. At leas! 90% of high-priority technical.assistance requests made are met.
4.6. Develop and produce educational materials

4.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

JS) Rewerch & Treining lf»»lilulo. Inc. e«hiwi A. Aniar>tfrmni 92 Conwaor initial,
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4'.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.6.2.1. . Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.3. Immunization Program

4.6.3.1, Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Hearth Sen/ices of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

4.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

4.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.7.2.1. Approval by (he Division of Public Heatlh Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECH\/)/Malernal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.7.3.1. Implementatton of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

4.7.3.2. Parlicipate In at least 00% oMhe Continuous Quality Improvement planning
meetings.

4.8. Update Strategic Plans

4.8.1. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
State Plan.

4.8.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the Home Visiting Task Force strategic planning
session as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.9. - Serve as a Fiscal Agent

4.9.T. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.
4.9.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

4.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV lasting and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date.

JSl Reseerch S Training InsUlulo. Inc. EKhlbttA.AmBndm«nt»2 Ccfttractot Inhlaii /
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4.9.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MieCHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postparlum visit project executed as directed bv
DPHS. ' .

4.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.9.4.1. SulKontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.
4.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.
4.9.4.3. Subconiracts with up to four Individuals executed as directed by DPHS.

4.10. Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS. a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

5. State and Federal Laws

•The Contractor shall;

5.1. Be responsible for compliance with all relevant state and federal laws. Special attention is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

5.2. Publications funded under this contract shall be responsible to adhere to the requirements In
Exhibit C Special Provisions. Paragraph 14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality health services and provide cufturaily
end linguistically appropriate services and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special
Provisions. Paragraph 16. Limited English Proficiency (LEP). '

5.4. DHHS recognizes that Contractors may choose to use subcontractors with specific expertise
to perform certain services or functions for efficiency or convenience. However, the
Contractor shall retain the responsibilily and accountability for the function(s) for any
services required by this Contract that arie provided, in whole or in part, by a subcontracted
agency or. provider, and adhere to the requirements In Exhibit C Special Provisions,
Paragraph 19. Subcontractors of this Contract.

5.5. Adhere to the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act requirements to maintain
the confidentiality of protected health information provided by individuals who contact the
poison control center in Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate and
any applicable state rule or other slate or federal law.

5.6. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

JSI Research & Training InsUlute. Inc. EKhian A; AmonOmtm »2 CooJftciw
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

1) The State shall pay the contractor en amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.6. Price Limitation for the
services provided by (he Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract is funded wUh Funds from;

1.1.1. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.069, Federal Award
Identificailon Number (FAIN) 0 U90TP00053S.

1.1.2. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevenlion. TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.889. Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) 0 U90TP000535.

1.1.3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2013 Cooperative Agreement Application for the
Immunization, Vaccine for Children. Catalog of. Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.539,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 0 23IP000757. (

1.1.4": US Centers for Disease Control and Prevenlion, Ertvironmental Public Heafth Tracking Program -
Network Implementation. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.070, Federal
Asvard Identification Number (FAIN) 0 NU38EH00Q947.

1.1.5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH • Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children.
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.753, Federal Award Identification Number

.  (FAIN)0NUE1EHOO1271.

1.1.6. US Environmental Protection Agertcy, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification. Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 66.707, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 0 99151215.

1.1.7. US Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration.
Catalog of Federal Domeslic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number
(FA1N)0X1OMC2949O.

1.1.6. US Department of Health and Human Services. Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog ol Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.994, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)0BO4MC3O627.

I
1.1.9. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Prevenlative Health and Health Services Block

Grant, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.756. Federal Award Idenlificdtion
Number (FAIN) 0 NB010T009141.

1.1.10. Health and Social Services. Department of Health and'Human Services. HHS; Division of Public
Health, Bureau of Infectious Disease Control. Public Health Crisis Response, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 0 93.354, Federal Award Identification Number (PAIN)
0U9OTP921693.

1.1.11. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, PS 16-1802 HIV Integrated Prevenlion end
Sunreillance Programs. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) 093.940, Federal Award
Identification (FAIN) 0 U'62PS924453B.

1.1.12. Other Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates. Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

1.1.13. General Funds.

\

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Amendment 02. Scope of Service in
compliance svith funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of sen/Ices may jeopardize the
funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

JSl Reseerch & Trsining Instilute, Inc. ExMbii B. Amon(Xn<nii2 Contractor inliLsi)
d/b/e Community Health Institute f
RFP.20ie-OPHS-03-PU8llC P«8« tof2 Data l/Z4/)9



Now Hompshire Dopartntont of Hpallh and Human Sarvlcoa
Public Hoalth Profosalonal Support Sarvlcoa

Exhibit B, Amcndmonl fil2

2) Payment for said services shaii be made monthiy as foiiows:

2.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for ectuai .expenditures Incurred In the fuiriiimenl of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice In a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth wor1(ing day of
each month, which identifies end requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the prior
month. The Invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department In order to

.  initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services.

2.3. -The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds are available. Contractors will
keep detailed records of their activities related to DMHS-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days eher the contract Form P-37,
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
DPHScontractbillinG@dhhs.nh.QOv. or Invoices may be mailed to;

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified In Exhibit
A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8. •

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget line Items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to
adjusting encumbrances between Slate Fiscal Years, may be made by writteri agreement of both parties and
may be made wilhout obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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Bidder/Contractor Nome: Community Heallh institute

Public Health Proleaslonal Support

Services - Public Health Emergency
Budget Request for: Pfftoflfftrinftftg

(Name ol RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2010 j Amendment #2

Lihe.ltem.:
plr.ect;^'""

'■yincremehlal:';'
'Indirect .'/'x;'.: T.otal .•* '--iAllocation Method for,

indirect/Flxgd'Cbat' •
The lederaliy opprovod

Negotiated indirect Cost
Rate Agreement (NICRA)

lor JSI Research and
Trainlr>g Irtstitule, inc.

Inciudos fringe benedts
{38% 61 salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities

including occupancy,
equipment, general office

supplies,
telecommurucailons end
other current expenses,

inlormaiton systems.
eccounti;>g and payrol),

human resources and stall
davelopmoni, and general

administrative support
costs. The approved

basis tor application ol the
NICRA Is on

eBlary/Wagea only
including holiday, sick end

vacation.

1. Total SaiaryANaqes S  47.297.30 S 47.297.30
2. Employee Benefits $  17.972.97 S 17,972.97
3. Ccnsuttants $
4. Equlpmeni: (includes Rentals.
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase &
Depreciation) S  1,418.92 $  1.418.92
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy,, Medical.
Otilce) $  3,310.81 $ 3,310.81
6. Travel $
7. Occupancy $  4,729.73 $  4,729.73
8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage. Subscriptions,
Audit & Legal. Insurance. Board
Expenses) $  3,783.78 $  3.783.76
9. Software $
10. Marketinq/Communicalions $
11. Staff Education and Training $  945.95 $  945.95
12. Subcontracts/Agreements S
13. Other (specific details mandatory): %

Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants $  30,000.00 S 30,000.00
Meeting & Training Suj)plies S  12,500.00 $ 12,500.00

Inlormalion Systems S  2.601.35 $ 2,601.35
HR $  1.418.92 $  1,418.92

Gen Admin $  1.418.92 $  1,416.92
Payroll and Accountina $  2,601.35 $  2,601.35

$
TOTAL $  121.959.46 $  8,040.54 $130,000.00

Pago 1 ol 1

Contractor Initials:

Date: »/24/i9



New Hampshire Deparlmoni of Heolth and Humen Services

,  dSI Resesrch & Trelning Institute, Inc.
BIddor/Conlreclor Nemo: d/b/o Community Health Institute

Pubiic Heslth Protasslonai Support
Budget Request for: Services • HiV Prevention

(Namo ot RFP)

'* Budget Period: SPY 2019 I Amendment 02

Lino Item '' ' i "'.
■ u'-'Direct \ indlroct,^.- v;To!pl.,;;-.-WiocBtion MethM-for.
;  ihc'romonlBl - .•■•.}Flxod' ' ••.'••■S.' • . 'Indiroci/PlxD^.Cdatr*

t. Total SalaryAV0009 S  9,730.00 $ 9|730.00 The 'ederaiiy approved
2. Emolovee Benelils S  3.697.40 $  3,697.40 Heootfolod Indlroci Cost
3. Consultanis \ )  Hate Agreement (niuha)
4. Equipment: (irtciudes Rontsis, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase A DepreclBlion) S  291.90

■or jo> Ketearcn ano

$  291 90 Training insUiute. inc.
S. Suppltos: (includes supplies for Education, i,ab,
Pharmacy. Medical, Office) $  661.to %  681 10 138% 0' end Other
6. Trevei $
7. Occupancy S  973.00
8. Cuneni Expenses (includes Telephone. Posiago.
Subscripllons, Audii & Legal, insurance. Board
Expenses) $  778.40

equipmeni. general oilice
■  luppiies.

$  778.40 leiecommunicaiions and
9. Software $  other current expensea.
10. . MarKeiing/Communicoticns {  inlormellon cyilems.
11. Staff Education and Training $  194.60 $  194.60 accounung and payroll.
12. Subcontrects/Agreoments «  numan resources ana aiaii

13. Other (speciticdoiaits mandatory);
HPO Member Reimbursemenls

Conference Support
Prevention Supplies $  13.000.00 • $ 13,000.00

Meeting Expenses S  25,440.00 , 25,440.00 tiloryrwiots ftnly
Website Mointonanco
Subscripiion Services $  vBCBllnn

Other Prolossionai Support Services $  •
Special Prelects $  18.559.50 -$ 18.559.50

■In/ormalion Systems $535.15 $  535.15
HR $291.90 $  291.90

Gon Adrrun $291.90 $  291.90
Payroll and Accountino $535.15 $  535.15 •

S s $
TOTAL $  73,345,IK) $1,654.10 S 75,00o'!oon

Coniracior IniiiAb:

Po^e I 0'1 Dato: J/24/19'



Naw Hampshire Depertmenl of Health end Human Services

JSI Research & Treining Institute, Inc.
BIddor/Conlraclor Name: d/b/a Community Health Inalitule

Public Health Profeaslonel Support

Budpel Reouast for: Services • Pharmaceutical Rebates
{Nemo of RFP)

Budget PeHod: SPY 2016 j Amendment n

LIneltem .• •• •;•• ♦' ! •• •: •
'vplrect .y.;,;

•rlnero mental
y; Indirect
'"^'"iPlxod - *

*. Total . ^ MiocationMothod-for
'' Ihdlrect/^lxed Cost ''

1. Total SaUtry/Waoes i The tedarally approved '
2. Emoiovee Benelrts Negotiaiod indireei coii
3. ConsuUanis fteia Agraamtni (NtCRA)

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Oeprodaiion)

lor JSI Reiearch and
Trsi(W\e Instliuta, Inc.

irKludas Irlnga traneftta
(3B% ol seiary) and other
ganaial opeialtng coats to
tvppon pro)oci aciMiiea

Including occupancy.

5. Supplies: (irtctudes supplies for Education, Lab.
PharmacY, Medical, Otficel j

6. Travel
7. OccuparKY s

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subscriptions. Audil fi Logal, Insurance, Board
Exponsos)

eqi^pmeni. ganeiai office
supplies,

islecommufllcailofls and

9. Software other currant eiq>enses.
10. MarkoiinofCommunicaiions InlormaUon sytlemt.

11. Staff Education and Trelnlnq accounting and payrol).
human resourcas and stall12. Subcontrecis/Agieamenis $

13. Other (spocilic details mandalory); administrative luppon
costs. The approved

basis lor appBcatJon ot ihe
NICRA Is on

HPG Member Reimbursemenis
Conlororice Support s
Provenilon Supplies $  10,000.00 $ 10.000.00

Meeting Expenses aalaryhvegas only
Wobsilo Maimenanco including hoDdsy. sick and
Sut>5cr|ptlon Services s vacation.

Other Prolesslonal Suppon Services
Soectal Projects %  10.000.00 $ 10.000.00

Information Sysipms
HR

Gen Admfr)
Payroll end Accountino

S S
TOTAL S  20,000.00 -1 t 20.000.00

0.0%

PbQt I Oi 1

Contrftcic Inillsts

Dale:.  1/24/19



Now Hsmpshiro Department of HooUh ond Human S«rvlcos

JSI Research & Trolning Institute, Inc.
Blddor/ConlrBCtor Name: d/t)/a Community Health institute

Public Health Protesslohal Support
Budget Request for: Services » EPHT " -

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2016 I Amendment fTi

Line Itehi' • '< V'-- ■ .

Direct • • Indirect •' .;'To.tol.".'w ■Altocellon Method tor.
•IncremeiSlal. . .-Fixed-' 'ihdIreci/Flxed Co'st'*

1. Total Salary/Waoes S The ledaraDy approved
2. Employee Benohts NegoUsttO Indtreci Ceti
3. Consuhants s Rate Apreemeni (NICRA)

4. ' Equipment: (Inclixles Rentals; Repalr.&
Maintenance. Purchase & Oeprodailon)

*
tor JSI Reeearch and
Training tnsdtule. Inc.

Includes titnge benotlia
(30% ct salary) end other
general operating coiit lo
lupport pro}eci ectlvlHas
' Including occupancy.

5. Supplios; (Includes supplies lor Education, Lab.
Pharmacy, Medical, OtOco)
6. Travel
7. Occupancy
6. Current Expenses (inctudes Telephone. Postage,
Subscriptions. Audit S legal. Insur&rtco. Board '
Expenses)

equlpmant, general oflica
supplies,

taiacommunicaiions ortd

9. Software $ other current expenses,
iniormallon systems.to. Merkellrro/Coinmunlcaiions $

11. Staff Education and Training $ eccounilng and payrotl.
human resourcos and stall
devolopmeni. and general

admlnlsirBtlvo support
costs. The approved

twsis lor appflcailon oi'the

12. Subconiracts/AQroemenis $  20.000.00 $ 20.000.00
13. Other (speclltc'detalls mandatory); $
Materials Production

Inlormation Sysrems -

HR 's $ NICRA 1$ on
Gon Admin aalary/wegas only

Poyroll and Accountina $ Irtciudlng hottday. aIcK and
s vacation.

5
TOTAL t 20.000.00

ff OIV/OI

Cofltrecior Initials:

Page i oi i Date: 1/24/19



Now Hampshire Oop«rtmoni of Health end Human Sorvlces

JSI Research & Training insUtute, Inc.
Blddar/Controctor Nemo: d/h/a Community Health InstHulo

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services'Homo Visiting

{Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 | Amendment 07

rj;

Une-itam'

'.-.A"' ■ i; ■ Olr^lt-\';.'^-lndlrectr-.-.••.'.Total -.v
' Inerorrtental '•RKed '-'Xi

Allocatl6h:Melhod.lor.

•'■n tndlrect/PlK^ Cost'
1. Toial Salafy/Wapos
Z. Employee ^nettis

$  t3.S26.S0

3. Coniuhants
5.254,08

. Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair & Malmenartce,
Purchase & Dopreciationl 414.79
5. Supplies: (includes supplies lor Education, Lab,
Pharmacy. Medical, Qftlco) 967.85
6. Travel

Occupancy 1.3B2.65
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone. Poslage.
Subscriptions. Audit & Legal, Insurance. Board
Expenses)
9. Software

S  1,106.12

10. Marltetino/Communlcations
11 ■ Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agroomonte

$  276.53

13. Other (specific details mandatory):
Learning Exchanpes
Scholarships
HPA Training & Supports

Inlormaiion Systems
HR

Gen Admin

TOTAL
Peyfon end AccounOnQ

%  23,228:50

S  760.46
% 414.79
S 414.79
$ 760.46
$ 2,350.50

S -13,826.50
$  5,254.06

414.79

967.85

$  1,382.65

$  1.106.12

276.53

760.46
414.79
414.79

The fedoralty epprevod
Negoiletod indlreci Cost

Rale Agreemeni (NICRA)
(or «i$i Resea/ch ane

-  Training inslllula. Inc.
Includes fringe benefits

(36% ol-sofS7) end oiher
perterai operating costs to
support project aciMiles

includtng occupancy,
equipment, general otflce

supplies,
lelecorrvmunicatlons and
other curreni expenses,

information systoms.
accounifng end payipil,

tnrman resources and stoM
devolopmeni. end general

admlnlsiradve support
costs. The epprovod

basis for oppticatlon ol the
NICRA Is on

aalary/wagaa or^y
including holiday, sick and

vacation,

760.46
% 25.S79.OOl

indirect As A Poreeni of Direct 10.1%

Page i ol i

Contractor initlBis:

Data: 1/24/19



New Hsmpshlre D«p&nm«m of Hoalth and Human Services

JSI Research & Trolnlrtg Institute, Inc.

BIdder/Cpntrector Newe: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

BudQSt Request for: Services» PHHS BlocV Grant
(Nafn9 0tRfP)

Budget Period: SPY 20iQ [ Amendment W2

; • " vV;.- , •
iJlnoUam. "v's

). Dlrecl'-' t:.'.■Indirect: /.-:iT9tel'* >.]AllocatlpnM,ethodfof
.••tncreiheriial "-.^nxod. ':!-;1ri'd'lrect/Rx«Kl!Coat.'

1. Total Salary/Wages $  5.945.93 $• t 5,945.95 Th« ladaraSy Bporoved'
2. EmoiOYoe Banotiis S  .2.2S9.4S $• f 2,259.45 NagetiateO irvjiroci Cost
3. Consun&nta $• Kate Agreitnent (muha)
4. Equlpmeni: (Includes Rentals. Repair & Malntonanco.
Purchase & Deoreciatioh) S  176.38 $•

(ot JSl Aaiearch kAd

S  178 36 Tieintng iruilluto. Inc.
S. Suppllos: (Includes supplies lor Education. Lab.
Pharmacv. Medical. Offlcel % . 416.22 $•

(36% 01 salary) end other

6. Travel
7. OccupancY $  594.59 % $  594.59 Including occuoancv'
e. Current Expensos (includes Telephone. Postage,
Subscrtplions. Audit & Legal. Insurance, Board
Expenses] $  475.67 5-

oquipmeni, generel office
suppoes,

S  475.67 letocommunicBllons end
9. SolTwaro $• otnet current expenses,

to. MerKotino/Communications $  4.000.00 S- 1  4 000 00 inlormeUon lyslems.
11. Stall Education and Tralntnp S  It 6.92 S- 5  116 92 Accounilng end peyrolj.
t2. Subcomracts/Aaroements $•
13. Other (soecllic details mandatory]: S-

$•
$-

WirPAIm i»n •
/n/o/marfon Sysiwns J. 327.03 $  327.03 ealafyrweges enty

HF\ S  176.36 $  176.36 Inctuding holklay. stch end
Gen AdnMn $  176.38 S  176.36 vscollon.

PevfoH end Accountfno S 327.03 $  327.03
TOTAL t  13.989.19 11.010.61 S 15,000.00 1

Pego I of t

Contrecior Inlllels:

Dale: 1/24/19



Kew Hompshire Oop8rtm«nl ol HsAllh and Human S»fv1ce9

JSl Roseorch & Training inotlluto, Inc.
Bldder/Conifflclor Name: dfblt Community Health Inalltula

Public Haellh Profeaalonal Support
Budgoi Roquoat lor: Sorvlces ♦ Opiold Aaaeaament

(Name ol RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019 | Amendment PI

Line Item" -r.:'":.
.■i.Dlrott- • . ..lindlrocl . . ■■•.y Total . C .'Mlocatlon Method fof

Iricrornental '• Rxed*. ••"Indlroct/FiiiirfCnVr..
1. Total Salarv/Waoes S  30.400.60 5 S 30,400.60 The tBderaHy aooroved
2. Employee Bonoliis $  11.552.27 S- S 11,552.27 Negoiiered inalceci Cost
3. ConsuiisniB S- Hate Agreameni (NiCRA)
4. Equipment: (includes Ronials. Repair & Maintenance.
Purchase & Depreciation) S  912.01 S-

lor jSi Aeaea/cn ano

S  '91201 TrBtniftglnstituie. Inc.
5. Suppnos: (Inchidoa suppUoe lor Education. Lat>,
Pharmacy. Medical. Office) $  2.128.06 S-

IrKiudei Irlnge benefits

6. Travel S  300.00 l
7. Occupancy S  3.040.07 $-
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage,
Subecrtpilons. Audit 8 Legal, insurance. Board
Expenses) S  2.432.02 $-

equipment, generol otOce
suppoes.

$  2,432.02 lelecommunlcalions end
9. Softwaro $ other curroni eqMnses.
10. MarkelinofCommunications S iniermeiion eysiemi.
It. Stall Education and Tralnino $  608.03 $- $  608.03 Accounung end payroll.
12. Subcontracis/Aareemonis $- human resourcee and sisll

13. Other (specilic delails mandatory): $ ■■ developmeni, and general

$■
$•

Informeiion Systems $1,673.54 1673.54 Mlsry/wagea only
912.62 tnciudirtg hoOday, elcir end
912.62 vacation.

1673.54

.$ 56;546.00 1

HR $ 912.82
Oon Admin $ 912.82

Payroll and Accouniina $ 1.673.54
TOTAL A  5U73.28 $5A72.n

10.1%

Page i ol t

Conuacior inltiais:

Date: 1/24



^ /
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

JtfrreyA.Mfym 29 HA2EN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
ComoiluloDcr 603-27MS0I !-800^S2034S Ext. 4S01

Fax: 603-271^27 TDD Access: 1-800-735-3964
Lisa M. Morris www.dhhs.nh.ffOV

Dlreclor

January 22, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Division of Public
Health Services, to enter into an amendment with JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, Vendor #161611-8001. 501 South Street, 2'"' Floor, Bow,
NH 03304 to provide a broad range of programrnatic support, services across a number of
public health programs by increasing the price limitation by $13,000 from $1,565,580 to
$1,578,580 effective upon date of Governor and Council approval, with no change to the
completion date of June 30, 2019. The original contract was approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 21, 2017 (Item #51). Funds being added are 100% Other Funds
(Pharmaceutical Rebates).

Funds are available in the following accounts In SFY 2018 and 2019, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances, between Stale Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office if needed and justifted, without approval from Governor and
Executive Council.

FISCAL DETAILS ATTACHED.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to Increase the budget for the Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) Program by adjusting several program-area budgets in order to enable the vendor
to purchase additional prevention supplies, specifically Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)
test kits,. The budget for the Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program is decreased due
to a reduction in our federal awards for the program from the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). The adjustments result In
an overall price limitation increase of $13,000.

The vendor provides a broad rangie of public health professional support services
including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs; developing
evaluation plans; conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning
for large statewide conferences; serving as a fiscal agent; providing technical assistance.,to
local partners; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental contractors.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2

These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health
practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to New Hampshire citizens.

The overarching purpose of this contract is to better coordinate a range of public health
professional support services on a statewide basis to assure that New Hampshire residents
are served by effective initiatives to protect and improve the health of the public. The Vendor
will ensure successful outcomes across this range of services and program areas that include:
transparent and informed evaluation planning processes; high-quality educational rhaterials,
conferences and training programs; knowledge and skills-building among Department
contracted agencies; timely and efficient administrative processes; and effective evaluation of
programs.

The Department procured these services as it does not have the resources available to
manage these specific services in-house. Support services to be provided include:

Environmental Public Health Tracking activities;

Food protection activities;

Lead Poisoning Prevention activities:
Immunization Promotion;

Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care activities;^
Maternal arid Child Health activities;

Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities

This contractor was selected through a competitive bid process.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
Agreement has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of
the Governor and Council. No renewal request is being made at this time.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, the vendor may not
have sufficient HIV test kits to provide to contracted testing sites. This may lead to testing not
being available to individuals to inform them of their HIV status.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Funds being added are 100% Other Funds (Pharmaceutical
Rebates). Funding for the total contract are 73% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention, HPP & PHEP Cooperative Agreements, Immunization Cooperative
Agreement. EPHT Program, NH Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children. US EPA Lead 404G
Training and Certification, UH Health Resources & Services Administration, Maternal , Infant &
Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant, Maternal and Child Health Grant,-21% Other Funds from
HIV Pharmaceutical Rebates. Food Protection Agency Licensing Fees. Utility Assessment
from Safety, and 6% General Funds.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisa M. Morris

Director

Approved b

ey k. Meyers

Commissioner

Thi Dtporimtnl ofHeoUh and Human Struicet' Mittion is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citisens to achieve health and independence.



Public Health Professional Support Services

Fiscal Details

05-95-90-902510-7&45 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS 67% Federal, 33% General

Fiscal Year Class! Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 115.000

SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 115,000
Sub Total $230,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
change)

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 70,000

SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc' 90077700 70,000

Sub Total $140,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current/ '

Modified

Amount (No
change)

■  SPY 2016 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023320 ■ 65,000

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023320 65.000

Sub Total $130,000

HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES 100% Other

SFY
Class /

Account
Class Title Job Numt>er

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 133,800 50,000 . 183,800

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024600 113,600 113,800

Sub Total $247,600 550,000 $297,600

Page 1 of 3



05-95'90-901510-$390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, FOOD
PROTECTION 37% General, 63% Other

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modified

Amount (No
chanqe)

SFY 2018 ■102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 18.000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Profl Svc 90000022 . . 18,000 ■

Sub Total $36,000
05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS, ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC
HEALTH TRACKING 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/
Modified

Amount (No
change)

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 50,000
SFY 2019 102-500731 ' Contracts for Prog Svc 90041000 50,000

Sub Total $100,000

05-95-90-901510.7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION, LEAD
PROTECTION 100% Federal

Fiscal
Year

■ Class /
Account

Class Title Job Number
Current
Amount

Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Amount

SFY
2018

■  102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90003600 36,000 .0 .  36,000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 . 50.000 0 50.000
Sub Total
SFY 2018 86,000 0 86,000

SFY
2019

102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90003600 36,000 (27,000) 9,000

102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90038000 50,000 (10,000) .40,000
Sub Total
SFY 2019

86.000 (37.000) 49,000

Sub Total $172,000 (37.000} $135,000

05-95-90-902010.5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ACA
HOME VISITING X02 FORMULA GRANT 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current/
Modified

Amount (No
change)

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc ■ . 90083200 221,990
SFY 2019 '102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221,990

Sob Total $443,980

Page 2 of 3



05-95-90.902010.5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES
MATERNAL-CHILD HEALTH 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Accounl Class Title Job Number

Current/

Modif'ed

Amount (No ■
change)

SFY2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 24.000 •
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080001 24.000

• Si/5 Total S48.000

05-95.90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DERT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION.
RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE 100% Other .

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Amount
SPY

2018
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9.000 0 9,000

SPY

2019
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90030000 9.000 0 9.000

Sub lota! S1B.000 $0 $18,000
TOTAL $1,565,580 $13,000 $1,578,580

Page 3 of 3
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hftzen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fox: 603-27M5J6 TOD Access; 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/dojt

Denis Coulet

Commissioner

February 5, 2018

JcfTrcy A. Meyeb, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire ^
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301-

Dear Commissioner Meyers;

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with JSi Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2018-
029A.

The purpose of this contract amendment is for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.,
to continue to provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of
public health programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing
training programs; conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials;
planning for large statewide conferences; and making subject matter experts available to
Departmental contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and
state-level public health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH
citizens.

The funding amount for this amendment is $.13,0.00, increasing the current contract from
$1,565,580, to an amount not to exceed $1,578,580 and is effective upon the date of
Governor and Council approval, with no change to the completion date of June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

incerely.

Denis Goulet

DG/kaf

DolTtf20l8-029A

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Heaith Professional Support Services

. State of New Hampshire
Department of.Heatth and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Public Health Professional Support Services
This 1" Amendment to the Public Health Professional Support Services contract (hereinafter referred to
as "Amendment #1") dated this 22"^ day of January, 2018, is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute,
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor"), a nonprofit agency with a place of business at 501 South
Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 21. 2017 (Item #51), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope of wortc
and the payment schedule of the contract by written agreement of the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.8. to increase Price Limitation by $13,000 from $1,565 580 to read:
$1,578,580. .

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read E, Maria Reinemann, Esq.. Director of Contracts and
Procurement.

3. Amend Form'P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9330.
4. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV. SFY 18 and

replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - HIV SFY 18
Amendment #1.

5. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - EPA Lead. SFY 19
and replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services -EPA Lead
SFY 19 Amendment#1.

6. Delete Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead, SFY 19
and replace with Budget Request for Public Health Professional Support Services - CDC Lead
SFY19 Amendment #1.

Communtty HealUi Inslliute Antendme/t 01
RFP.20180PHS-03-PUBUC Page 1 o» 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

This amendment shall'be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

20
Date Name:

Title: O

JSI Resear^ and Trajping Institute. Inc., d/b/a Community
Health Inst/

1/22/18

Date Name: Jbn

.  Title: Rjegiort

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

art

ire

State of NfliJ . County of. M'^niYiarL on \ \vL\\l before the
undersigned officerf personally appeared the person identified directiy^ove, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

(ioiMruU
Signature of Notary public or Justice of the Peace

tmrmAj TiiC-hDj Kl 0-h^/Puiii'C.
Name and Titl^ of Notary or Justice of^e Peace

COURTNEY A. CASTRO, Notary Pubflo
My Commission Expires: My Cowmhaten Exohm ^

Community Hestth trxlllute Amsndmeni at
RPP-2018-OPHS-03-PUBUC Pflge 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date 71Name:

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: - (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community HeaKh losthuie
RFP-2OI8-OPHS-O3-PU0LIC

Amendment 01

Page 3 of 3



N«w Kampshiro Dopartmsnt of Koalth and Human SorvlcM

JSI Rn<iarch & Training Inatltoto. Inc.,
BIddor/Contfoclor Nam©: d/b/a Community H©atth InatUirt©

Public Health Profosiionai Support
Budget Requeat for: SarvicM ■ HIV

Amendment 01

Budg«t Period: SPY 2018

ri'iQ
1. 1 Ola) i>ciary/wagoa S 37607,84 5 8 37.6U7.b4 The federally Bpprovod
2. bmpioyoa Mnetita i 14.200.08 i i U,2M.M Naqotlatad indirect Cott
j. uonau'ianis s • $ 5 Kate AgrMment (nicka)

4. Equipment: (includes Henteis. Kepotr & Maintenance.

Purchase & Depredation) s 1.165.64 $ S

"" tor JSI Heseoren end

1 165 64 ''''"'"'"O li^^titute. Inc.
S. Susies: (includes supplipa tor Educetlon, Lab.
Pharmacy. Medical. Office) s 1.660.39 $ $

(38% of sabiy) and other

b. 1 revel $ • 500,00 s 5
/. Occupancy 3,760.78( t j.>6o.>fl iodudino occuoancY.
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone, Postage.
Subscriptions, Audit & Legal. Insurance, Board
Expenses) s 2.820.60 $ $

equipment, general office
supplies.

2 620.60 telecommunications and
I/. :>ottware i - i i uUie< uuiianiexpenias.

to. MarKeting/communicaiions i - t %
11. statr Education end i raining i >55.16 i %
12. Subcontracts/Agreemenis i • J i
i;3. other (speahc oeioiis manoaiory): 5 1 adminitlrslive suooon

HPO Member Koimbureemcnt % 2.000.00 t 5 2.o00!00 costs. The eooro^ bails
Conference Support i 2.000.00 5 i 2.dM.66 for application of the
Prevention Supplies 66.600.00 i i 66i800.00~ NICRA is on lalary/Mragat

Digital storytelling i 25.W6.M J i 25,000.00 only incrudir>g holiday sick

Meeting Expenses i 6,000,00 5 % 6 6607X5 810 vacation.
- Website Maintenance S 500.00 $ 5 560.66
Subscription Services( 700.00 5 706.66

Other Professional Support Services i 10,000.00 i 10.000.00
Special Projects \

InfofTMtion Systems $ 1.541.92 i 1.54i92
HR $ 1.541.92 t 1,541,62

Gen Admin $ 1.541.92 i 1.541.62,
Peymll end Accounting t i,541.^2 % 1.541.92

S • i i •- •

TOTAL i 177.632.32 i 1  1

RFP.201S-DPHS-03-PU8LIC

Page i of ̂

Coniractor Inlllalt:

Date: 1/22/18



New Hampshire C^pariment of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health institute

Public Health Professional Support Services
Budget Request for: CDC Lead

Amendment #1

Budget Period: SPY 2019

1—gTO.gffT? TnTRSSSitjMBpprow!?
%  1,064.84 Nepoliated indirect Coal
5  Rate Agreement (NICRA)

— "for JSI Research and

Training Institute. Inc.
includes fringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support pro/eel ectJvitics
including occupancy.

$  equipment, general office
I  280.22 supplies.
"" ' " telecommunications and

other current expenses,

infonrnation systems,
accounting end peyroll.
human resources aryf staff

development, and general

administrative su^rt
costs. The approved basis

I  T"*for application of the
I  I NICRA is on eelary/wagos
—57555.61 only including holiday. aIcK
*  and vacation.

86:87

140.11

$  '210.15

"5^

T. total ̂ alary/Wagca'
Employee Benefits .2. 1  1,064.84

3. Consultants

J. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair
& Maintenance, Purchase &

Depreciation) 86.87

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy, Medical.
Office)
6, Travel

140.11

7. occupancy 260.22

8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage. Subscriptions. Audit
& Legal, Insurance, Board Expenses) 210.15

Software

10. h^arkeling/Communtcations
11. Slati Education and training 56.04

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Educational Outreach 3.900.01

Information Systems

^

Gon Admin

Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL

Tri'dlrect As A Percent of Direct

8,640.44

T

114.t

114.89

114.89

TTt55"
469.66

114.89

114.89

114.89

TOW

RFP-2018-DPHS-03-PUBLIC Contrsctor initials: -4
Page 1 of 1 Date: 1/22/18



Jeffrty.V. Mtytrs
- (liiiiimissionrt'

LiJi Morrij. MSSjW

Dirrctor

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

state of new HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

29HAZEiN DRIVE. CONCORD. NH 03301.6527
603-271.4.^01 l-gOO-852.3345 Eil.450i

h'fl.r 603.271-4827 TDD Acm5; 1-000-735.2964

• V*
Y j 4' niviMO.v
^ ̂  PiiKlic HpjiIiPublic Healt

or

h ScA'ices
rtfLor^ »ttt V

May 25. 2017

REQUESTED ACTION •

Authorize the Department ot Health and Human Services. Division of Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into an agreement with JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute. Vendor
#161611-6001. 501 South Street. 2"** Floor, Bow, NH 03304. In an amount not to exceed $1,565,580. to provide a
broad range of programmatic support services across a number of public health programs, effective July 1. 2017
or upon date of Goverrior and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30. 2019. Funds are 76%
Federal, 18% Other, and 6% General Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts In SPY 20l8 and SPY 2019,, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts
within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-90-902510-7545 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS'
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS 67% Federal. 33% General

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SPY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115,000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077410 115.000 •

Sub Total $230,000

05-95-90-902510-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS'
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL HOSPITAL
PREPAREDNESS 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Pro^ Svc 90077700 70.000
SPY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 70.000

Sub Total- $140,000



His ExceJlency, Governor Chrlslopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 . '

05-95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS'
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION PROGRAM
100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class/Account. Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFV 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 65.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90023320 65.000

Sub Total $130,000

05-95-90-902510.2229 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS DISEASE CONTROL. PHARMACEUTICAL
REBATES 100% Other

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 133,800
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90024600 113.800

Sub Tola! $247,600

05-95-90-901510-5390 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION FOOD PROTECTION 37%
General. 63% Other

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90000022 18 000
SFY 2019 102-500731 ■ Contracts for Proq Svc 90000022 18,000

Sub Total $36,000

05-95-90-9M510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF INFORMATICS. ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH TRACKING

100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90041000 50 000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90041000 50 000

Sub Total $100,000

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS-

Fede^a?*^ PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. LEAD PROTECTION" 100%

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 36 000

102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90038000 50 000
Sub Total SFY 2018 86 000

SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90003600 36 000
102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90033000 50 000

Sub Total SFY 2019 86 000
Sub Total $172,000



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T, Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3

05-95-90-902010-5896 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS'
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES. ACA HOME VISITING
X02 FORMULA GRANT 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221.990
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90083200 221.990

Sub Total $443,980

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES MATERNAL - CHILD
HEALTH 100% Federal

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 •  Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90080001 24,000

Sub Total , $48,000

05-95-90-9015010-5299 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS HHS"
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION. RADIOLOGICAL EMERGENCY
RESPONSE 100% Other

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Tola) Amount

SFY 2018 102-500731 . Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000
SFY 2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90030000 9.000

Sub Total $18,000
TOTAL $1,565,580

EXPLANATION

Funds tn this agreement will be used to provide a broad range of public he.alth professional support'
services including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs; developing evaluation plans;
conducting needs assessments; developing educational .materials; planning' for large statewide conferences-
providing technical assistance to local partners; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental
contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health praclilioners to
provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

The overarching purpose of this contract is to better coordinate a range of public health professional
support services on a statewide basis to assure that all New Hampshire residents are covered by initiatives to
protect and improve the health of the public. The Vendor will ensure successful outcomes across this range of,
services and program areas that include: transparent and informed'evaluation planning processes: high-quality
educational matenals. conferences and training programs; knowledge and skills-building among Department
contracted agencies: timely and efTicienl administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorabte Council

Page 4 , , • ,

T^e Department procured these services as it does not have the resources available to manage these
specific services in-house. Support services to be provided include;

1. Environmental Public Health Tracking activities;

2. Food Protection activities;

3. Lead Poisoning Prevention activities;

4. Immunization Promotion;

5. infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care activities;

6. Maternal and Child Health activities;

7. Public Health Emergency Preparedness activities

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall be provided after
June 30. 2017. and the .Department shall not be lialjle for any payments for services provided after June 30. 2017.
unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the slate legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennium.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this Request, there will be a reduced capacity to
provide training to a range of public health partners on multiple health topics; host large scale conferences;
develop plans to evaluate the effectiveness of services; develop and produce educational materials; and provide
technical assistance to local and stale partners.

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute was selected for this project
through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health and Human
Services' web site from March 'lO, 2017 through April 5, 2017. In addition, bidder's conference was held on March
20,2017.

The Department received one proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals
with program specific knowledge. The review Included a thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of
the proposals/applications. The Bid Summary is attached.

✓

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the
option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

The performance measures/objectives that will be used to measure the effectiveness of the agreement
are attached;

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds; 76% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, HPP &
PH6P Cooperative Agreements.- Immunization Cooperative Agreement. EPHT Program. NH'Reducisd'Lead
Poisoning of Children. US EPA Lead 404G Training and Certification, UH Health Resources & Services
Administration. Maternal . Infant & Early Childhood Home Visiting Grant. Maternal and Child Health Grant, 18%
Other Funds from HIV Pharmaceutical Rebates. Food Protection Agency Licensing Fees. Utility Assessment from
Safely, and 6% General Funds.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lisa Morris, MSSW
, Djreclor

kjpt-Approved by: ̂
frey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Dcpvrlnie/U of HeoUli and Hiiiuqii Services' Mission is to join coniiinmilics and fum tlics
in proniding opporuinilies for citizens to ochiece. health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Haien Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax; 60S-271.1516 TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/ doit

Deois Goulct

Commissioner

May 23,2017

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services '
State of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH.03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training lnstitute, Inc.,
d/b/a Community Health Institute, of Bow, NH, as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2018-
029.

This is a request To enter into a contract with JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., to
provide a broad range of programmatic support services across a number of public health
programs including, but not limited to; developing and implementing training programs;'
conducting needs assessments; developing educational materials; planning for large
statewide conferences; and making subject matter experts available to Departmental
contractors. These services increase the capacity of local, regional, and slate-level public
health practitioners to provide high-quality public health services to NH citizens.

The funding amount is not to exceed $1,565,580, and is effective July 1, 2017, or upon
the date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2019.

A copy of this letter should accompany the. Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Councii for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik

DoIT #2018-029

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Public Health Professional Support
Services •
RFP Name

Bidder Name

JSI dba Community Health Institute

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.
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Reviewer Names
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Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1. Performance Measures

1.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance outcomes and measures are annually

achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

1.2. Convene.[Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

1.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

1.2.1.1. At least 85% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either "excellent" or
"very good." in an evaluation survey.

1.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent' or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.2.3. Maternal. Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home Visiting Coordinating Council
meetings as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

.1.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs-

1.3.1. Food Protection Section

1.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or "very good"

1.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or •
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

1.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.

1.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.3.4. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/MalWnaI and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.3.4.1. Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

1.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

Performance Measures
Page 1 of 3



Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1.4. Provide Logistical Support for Cortferences

1.4.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation suryey.

1.4.2. Immunization Program

1.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning comrhlttee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

1.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, invesligation & Care Services Section

1.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.4.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate,the elements pertaining to
conference logistics Ss either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

1.4.5. Mate.rnal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

1.4.5.1. At least 85% of learning exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation sun/ey.

1.5. Provide Technical Assistance

1.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
1.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

1.5.2.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.
1 ;6. Develop and produce educational materials

1.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

1.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials;

1.6.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

Performance Measures
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Public Health Professional Support Services
Performance Measures

1.6.3. Immunization Program

i.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.' n

1.6.4, Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

1.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

1.7.. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

1.7.1. Environmental Public Health.Tracking Program

1.7!i.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.

1.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

1.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.

1.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

1.7.il. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
' Improvement Plan.

1.8.. Update Strategic Plans

1.8.1, Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (M1ECHV)/Maternal and

Child Health Section {MCH):

1.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic-
State Plan.

1.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

1.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program"

1.9.1.1, Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.

1.9.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Sen/ices Section

1.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention^supplies distributed to sites
. are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

1.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention'supply
/ distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the
distribution date..

1.9.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH);

1.9.3.1. Subcontract for increase in postpartum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

1.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

1.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by OPHS/ESU.

1.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.

1.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.
1.10, Annually, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for

any performance measure that was not achieved.

Performance Measures
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Subjeci; Public Health Professional Support Services RFP-20I8*DPHS^3-PUBLIC
FORM NUMBER P.37 (verilOD S/8/1S)

Notice: This agreemeot and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any iofonnatioo that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly ideniifled to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

tDENTCFICATlON.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services .

1.2 Stale Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSl Research Bind Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Communjty
Health Institute

1.4 Contractor Address

501 South Street, 2*^ Floor
Bow, NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-573-3300

1.6 Account Number
05.9S-90.102510.7S45,05-95-90-
902j i 0-2239. OJ-93-90-902510-5 Pt.
05-95-90-902510-2229, 05-93-90-
902510-5J90.05-95.90-902510.5P3.
OS-95.90-902510-7964. 05-95-90-

9020I0.5J96.05-95-90-902010-5190,
A 05-95-90-201510.5299

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30, 2019

1.6 Price Limitation

Sl.5,65.580 -

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jonathan V. Oallo, E^., loierim Director

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9246

1. 11 Contrac^Bj^

■ sfp
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jonathan Stewart, Director

1.13 Acknowldlkcir
i/ir^

On 2 3;'2
proven to be the pcrsc
indicated in block i.I

Qt: Slate of . .County of y

'Oi'^before the undersigned officer, pcrsonall
c whose name is signed in block l.l 1, and ac
2.

y appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
mowledged that s/be executed this docuraeol in the capacity

1.13.1 Signature of]

[Seal) (

^lotary Public or Justice of the Peace , ,

1.13.2 Namcai^tlAIcofNotaiy or Justice Df^cPca^rf: ■ ^'jaRAHE. MOECKEU Notary PuWc • ■
A^-Cbk-^l , -^s-CommijiionExpires Soptcmber 17. 2019

l.)dy->StayAgenc^Sifaknira i 1.15 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory
Lisa Morris, MSSW, Director

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

•  •: • . 1
By: Director, On:

1.17 Approvaiiiy-thc-Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By. ( / Krd|_/. 1^ iuiJ Ai/ On: ^1^1(1
1.18 Approval by thFCovcrfbr alid Executive Ccnncil (ifapplicable)

By: On;
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Haropshire, acting
througb'the agency identified io block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block,1.3 ("Contractor") to perfomj,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incoTJorated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrery, and subject to the approval of ibe Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
haeunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor

.  imd Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in.
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effiective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Slate Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date"),
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date/ ell Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, ail obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of paymeois hcreuoder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shairthe State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of.sucb available appropriated
funds. In the event of e reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have (be right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, ifeveri and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to trarisfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block ) .6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified end more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Stale
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contracior under (his Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80'.7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwitbstandiog any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Lunitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.^
6.1 In coonection with the performance of the Services, the
CoDtTocior shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal auihoriiies
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
taws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, bearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey

.  information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for ,'
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affumative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stat.es, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the '
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books; records and accounts for the puqjosc of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covcnanu, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perforrn the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of 4
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Agreenient. This provisioD shall survive terrninetion of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting omcer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcrcundcr

("Event of Default");
8.1.) failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.) .2 failure to submit any rq)ort required bereunder; and/or
6.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition'
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occunence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,'thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement. efTective two
(2) days after'giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that die portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from (he date of such notice until such tirrie as the State
determines that the Cootractor has cured the Event ofDefault
shall never be paid to (he Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event ofDefault; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether fmished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received fî im
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be recumed to the State upon dentand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be govcmed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing low. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early tcrmiijatton of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a repon ('Termioation Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the ̂ tc of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termioation
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBrT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all

-  respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compeosation
or other emoluments provided by (he State (o its employees.

12. ASSICNMENt/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor sball not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Stale. None of the Services sball be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. fNDEMNfFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and bold harmless the State, itis officers and .
employees, fioih and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
ContTBcior. Notwithsianding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance;

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against oil
claims ofbodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1 .OOO.OOOper occurrencc and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
M.1.2 special cause ofloss coverage form covering all
property subject to subporagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not"
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subporagraph 14:1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNcw
Hampshire.

0f4

' Contractor Initials

Date O



14.3 The Contraclor shall furnish to the CootrBCiIng OfTlcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all.insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
Identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certifica(e(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccrtifica(e(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incoTfiorated herein by reference. Each certificaie(5) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliaoce with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers'ComptruQtion").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, arid require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Condensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and aiiy
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, udiich shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
re^nsible for payment of any Workers' Compensatioo
premiums or for any other claim of benefil for Contraclor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, whicb might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in cotioection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. waiver of breach. No failure by tbc Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Stale to enforce each and alt of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice.by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Ofnce addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
•laws of the State of New Hampshire, and isbioding upon and
inures (o the beoeftt of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express ibeir mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do hot intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such bcnefii.

21. HEADINGS. The headings througbouc the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaauig of the
provisions of this Agrecmeot.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions sec
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated berein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccroem, whicb may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profeoalonel Support Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Seivices

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they

will provide to persons with llrnlted English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General, Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notvwthstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services shall
continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for
services provided after June 30.2017, unless and until an appropriation for these ser\^ces
has been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019
blennia.

2. Scope of Services
The Contractor shall:

2.1. Provide a broad range of public health professional support services including, but not
limited to; developing and Implementing training programs; conducting needs assessments;
developing educational materials; planning for large statewide conferences; and making
subject matter experts available to Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS).
Division of Public Health Services (DPHS) contractors.

2.2. Increase the capacity of local, regional, and state-level public health practitioners to provide
high-guality public health services to NH citizens and ensure successful outcomes across
this range of services and program areas that include: transparent and informed community'

■  planning processes; high-quality educational materials, conferences and training programs;
knowledge and skills-building among DPHS contracted agencies; timely and efficient
administrative processes; and effective evaluation of programs.

2.3. Convene. Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

2.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for ongoing
committees/planning groups as defined in Attachment F.

2.4. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.4.1. Provide logistical support to the New England Lead Coordinating Committee (NELCC).
This includes up to 12 regular meetings of the full NELCC and up to 2 of committee/
workgroup meetings per year. Information about the NELCC is available at:

http:/Avww.neweng(andI©ad.org/.

JSI ReseOfCh & Training Instiluie, inc. exWbii A Conlractor lniUali^7i
d/b/a Cofnmunity Health Institute —
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Now Hompshiro Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Public Health Profosalonal Support Servicoa

Exhibit A

2.5. Environmental Public Health Tracking

2.5.1. Provide logistical support to host up to 10 meetings >vith Regional Public Health
Networks to gather feedback on the EPHT Data Portal.

2.5.2. Provide logistical support for up to 5 focus groups to conduct user research of EPHT
data and projects.

2.6. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.6.1. Provide logistical support to the NH HIV Planning Group (HPG). This includes up to 6
regular meetings of the full HPG and up to 30 of committee/workgroup meetings per
year. More information about the HIV HPG is available at: nhhiv.org.

2.7. Matemal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and Child
Health Section (MCH):

2.7.1 Provide logistical support to quarterly conference calls for three, peer-based caucuses.
The caucuses will be role based (e.g. supervisors, home visitors, and quality
improvement stafO. '

2.7.2. Provide logistical support for the Home Visiting Coordinating Council at least quarterly.
This group serves as the MIECHV Advisory Group and Is made up of collaborating
partners and others In the slate with an interest and background in home visiting.

-2.0.' Develop and Implement Training Programs

2.8.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or implement training
programs based on adult learning theories that use various training modalities (i.e.
classroom, web-based, training of trainers, etc.) to maximize the reach of these
programs.

2.8.1.1. Food Protection Section (FPS):

2.8.1.1.1. In consultation with Food Protection Staff develop training cunioula for three
discrete audlences:

.2.8.1.1.1.1. DPHS FPS staff and Food Service Establishment (FSE) inspectors in
municipalities that regulate FSE. A list of these municipalities is
available at:

http.7/www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/fp/documenls/setfinspect.pdf

2.8.1.1.1.2. Staff from state agencies that conduct food safety inspections as one
component of a more comprehensive operational inspection. This
Includes Department of Environmental Services Yoiilh Camp inspection
staff, DHHS Health Facilities Licensing staff (which Inspects child care
centers, nursing homes and assisted living facilities).

2.8.1.1.1.3. Food Service Workers including, but not limited to workers in
restaurants, retail food stores,.schools, and caterers.

2.8.1.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness:

2.8.1.2.1. Develop and Implement training programs for two discrete audiences:

2.8.1.2.1.1. RPHN emergency preparedness coordinators

JSI Re$carch & Training InsUtute. Inc. e*hfbH A ContracSorInitials
d/b/fl Community Health Institute
RFp.20tS-OPHS-03-PU8LIC PaflB 2 0(10 Data 2MlJ



Now Hampshire Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support Services

Exhibit A

2.8.1.2.1.2. Local municipal officials, healthcare preparedness personnel.
volunteers and others engaged In regional PHEP planning and
response.

2.8.1.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program:

2.8.'1.3.1. Plan and Implement the 1-day Renovation, Repair and Painting Training
programs'ln New Hampshire's highest risk communities using the US
Environrnental Protection Agency curriculum.

2.8.1.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.8.1.4.1. In consultation with MIECHV/MCH staff, facilitate a training needs
assessment for the 11 MIECHV contracted home visiting sites.

2.8.1.4.2. Develop and implement an annual training plan (which will include site
speciftc training plans), Including evaluation, from the informatior) garnered
from the training needs assessment. At a minimum, ten (10) training '
accessible opportunities should be offered per MIECHV furided home visiting
site per year. An opportunity is defined as a pre-existing training, which the
contractor pays home visiting staff to attend (can be out of state) and
trainings which are provided by the contractor. These can be offered
electronically (webinars, etc.) or in-person.

2.9. Provide Logistical Support for Conferences

2.9.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, provide logistical support for

conferences as defined by the DPHS In the original Request for Proposal.

2.9.1.1. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

2.9.1.1,1. Provide logistical and planning support for the NELCC's annual conference
for up to 250 attendees. Provide logistical and planning support for four
regional dinner meetings for up to 120 attendees each.

2.9.1.2. Immunization Program

2.9.1.2.1. Provide logistical support for the annual Immunization Coriferenc© for
approximately 400 attendees.

2.9.1.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.9.1.3.1. Provide (ogistical and planning support for the annual NH Statewide
Preparedness conference for up to 800 attendees.

2.9.1.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.9.1.4.1. Provide logistical and planning support for the bi-annual NH STD. HIV,
Hepatitis, TB conference for up to 250 attendees. Planning support includes
provision of continuing education aedits.

2.9.1.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal
and Child Health Section

JSI Reeearch & Training Inetitulo, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.9.1.5.1. Provide loglsllcal and planning support, including evaluation, to semi-annual
cbnferences-learning-exchanges (fall and spring) for up to 55 staff at
MIECHV contracted sites. The spring 2018 training will focus on Healthy
Families America required content training for continued certification. The fall
training 2018 will be based on ftndings from the needs assessment.

2.9.1.5.2. Provide logistical and planning support for at least two half or full day in-
person statewide and/or regional trainings.

2.10. Provide Technical Assistance

2.10.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.1.1. In consultation with OPHS subject matter experts, provide technical assistance to
three discrete groups directed toward their meeting thepatipnal standards
described in the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's (CDC) Public
Heaith Preparedness Capabilities (March 2011) and subsequent editions;

2.10.1.1.1. DPHS/Emergency Services Unit (ESU) preparedness staff

2.10.1.1.2. Public health preparedness coordinators,at the T3 organizations funded by
DPHS to provide Regional Public Health Network services. TA will be

- available to both individuals and as a group.

2.10.1.1.3. Medical Reserve Corps units recognized by the registered with the U.S.
=•* Surgeon General, Office of the Civilian Volunteer Medical Reserve Corps, to

support recruitment, training and deployment of the MRC volunteers.

2.10.1.2. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts,'identify and coordinate the
availability of technical assistance providers to DPHS contractors and service
provider agencies.

2.10.1.3. Develop and produce educational materials

2.10.1.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop and/or produce
educational materials on topics determined by OPHS staff. All materials shall
be developed in accordance with CDC recommendations contained in Simply"
Put: Guide to Developing Easy-To-Understand Materials. CDC July 2010,
available at: https://www.cdc.gov/heallhliteracy/pdf/Simply_Put.pdf

2.10.1.4. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program (EPHT)

2.10.1.4.1. Develop educational materials targeted to public health professionals,
emergency preparedness officials, and local partners to increase knowledge
and understanding of the EPHT program' at the state and local levels.

2.10.1.5. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (HHLPPP)

2.10.1.5.1. Develop educational materials in collaboration with the HHLPPP to target to
clinicians, contractors, and families to increase knowledge and understanding
of best practices relative to Screening and Management Guidelines, lead-
safe work practices, and keeping children safe from lead hazards.

2.10.1.6. Immunization Program

2.10.1.6.1. Develop educational materials targeted towards iricreasing awareness
related to the Immunization Information System (IIS).
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2.10.1.6.2. Develop educational materials targeted towards increasing awareness
related to the benefits of immunizations across the lifespan.

2.10.1.7. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.1.7.1. In consultation with DPHS, maintain and update the NH HIV Planning Group
.  (HPG) website.

2.10.2. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

' 2.10.2.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, develop evaluation plans that
clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and performance
measures.

2.10.2.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.2.2.1. Develop and implement a plan to evaluate ongoing EPHT projects that meets
criteria outlined by CDC and fulfills federal requirements. This document will
facilitate programming planning, implementation, and evaluation.'

2.10.2.2.2. Develop and Implement a plan to evaluate previously funded HHLPPP
projects that addressed dissemination techniques and understanding of the
2015 Lead Surveillance Report and the Childhood lead Screening and
Management Guidelines. /

2.10.2.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program^MlECHVj/Matemal
"and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.2.3.1. Implement current MIECHV Continuous Quality Improvement Plan

2.10.3. Update Strategic Plans

2.10.3.1. In consultation with DPHS subject matter experts, update pre-existing strategic
plans that clearly outline goals, objectives, activities, outputs, outcomes, and
performance measures.

2.10.3.2. Matemal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal
and Child Health Section (MCH):

2.10.3.2.1. Update the 2010 MIECHV Strategic State Plan.

2.10.4. Serve as a Fiscal Agent

2.10.4.1. As directed by DPHS staff, serve as fiscal agent to maximize the efficient use of
resources as follovvs:

2.10.4.2. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

2.10.4.2.1. Enter into up to 3 mini-grants with vendors funded by DPHS to provide
Regional Public Health Networks services. A list of currently funded vendors
is available at: http;//www.dhhs.nh.gov/dphs/rphn/index.htm.

2.10.4.3. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

2.10.4.3.1. Reimburse costs incurred by approximately 5 public members of the HPG to
attend out-of-state conferences identified by the DPHS and mileage costs to
attend in-state meetings. The purpose is to increase the knowledge and
skills of the public members of the HPG.

2.10.4.3.2. Procure prevention supplies as determined by the IDPICSS.
I  .
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2.10.4.3.3. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to provide
consultation and technical assistance on the production of a digital
storytelling project, including coordination, development and implementation
of a digital-storytelling workshop; production of a digital storytelling electronic
file tor up to eight stories and training of participants In conducting an
engagement session with stakeholders.

2.10.4.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

2.10.4.4.1. Execute a subcontract with a vendor identified by the DPHS to procure E-
Studio. a web-based collaboration system currently in use at DPHS.

2.10.4.4.2. Enter Into mini-grants yvlth up to 13 Medical Reserve Corps units to build
capacity to staff emergency response facilities during public health
emergencies.

2.10.4.4.3. Enter into subcontracts with up to 4 individuals Identified by the DPHS to
participate in radiological emergency planning, training and exercises to build
staffing capacity to respond to radiological emergencies.

2.10.4.5. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program {MIECHV)/Malernal
and Child Health Section (MCH);

2.10.4.5.1. Support at least two MIECHV funded home visiting agency staff selected by
the DHHS to attend the annual MIECHV grantee conference.

2.10.4.5.2. Execute a subcontract with a vendor idenlrfied by the DPHS to research and
identify methods to increase utilization of postpartum visits by home visiting
families.

3. Staffing

The Contractor shall;

■ 3.1. Provide sufficient staff lo perform all tasks specified In this Contract and shall maintain a
level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of the functions, requirements, roles,
and duties In a timely fashion to meet the scope of work

3.2. Ensure staffing structure includes a contract administrator to administer all scopes of work
relative.to this Contract, as well as progress and finance reporting.

3.3-. Ensure that across all funded positions, in addition to subject matter expertise, there is a
combined level of expertise, skills and ability to understand data; use data for planning and
evaluation; community engagement and collaboration; group facilitation skills; and IT skills In
order to function as a team, ideally with complementary skill and abilities across these
foundational areas of expertise and abilities.

3.4. Ensure that personnel are available during normal business hours, at a minimum Monday
•  - through Friday. 8:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.

JSl Research & Training InsUtule, Inc. EiW&H A Contractor IniUds
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4. Outcomes I Perfomance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure lhat following performance outcomes and measures are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

4.2. Convene. Coordinate and Facilitate Community-Based Public Health Partners

4.2.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking

4.2.1.1. At least 85% of participants rate the Feedback Sessions as either 'excellent' or
"very good' In an evaluation survey.

4.2.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.2.2.1. At least 85% of participants rate the regular NELCC meetings as either
"excellent' or "very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.2.3. Maternal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.2.3.1. At least 85% of participants rale the quarterly caucus phone meetings as either
"excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.2.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the quarterly Home VIslUng Coordinating Council
meetings as either excellent" or "very good' In an evaluation survey.

.4.3. Develop and Implement Training Programs

4.3.1. Food Protection Section ^

4.3.1.1. The training modules are approved rand rated by the DHHS as either "excellent"
or 'very good"

4.3.1.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.3.2. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.3.2.1. The training modules are rated as either "excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
4.3.2.2. At least 85% of participants rale the training programs as either "excellent" or

"very good' in an evaluation survey.
4.3.3. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.3.3.1. The training module is rated as either 'excellent" or "very good" by DPHS.
4.3.3.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either 'excellent" or

"very good* in an evaluation survey.
4.3.4. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.3.4.1. ■ Needs assessment and training plan (overall and site specific) approved by
DPHS.

4.3.4.2. At least 85% of participants rate the training programs as either "excellent" or
"very good" in an evaluation survey.

JSI Re^fch & Training InsUtule, Inc. 6*WbliA (.
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4.4. Provide LogisUcal Support for Conferences

4.4.1. Healthy. Honfies and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.4.1.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.1.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2. Immunization Program

4.4.2.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or "very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.4.2.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.3. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.4.3.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rate the conference
planning support as. either "excellent" or "very good' In an evaluation survey.

'4.4.3.2. At least 85% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or 'very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.4.4.1. At least 85% of conference planning committee members rale the conference
planning support as either "excellent" or 'very good' in an evaluation survey.

4.4.4.2. At least 65% of conference participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" In an evaluation survey.

4.4.5. Matemal. Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

4.4.5.1'. At least 85% of leaming exchange participants rate the elements pertaining to
conference logistics as either "excellent" or "very good" in an evaluation survey.

4.5. Provide Technical Assistance

4.5.1. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.5.1.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met

4.5.2. Infectious Disease Prevention. Investigation & Care Services Section

4.5.2.1. At least 90% of high-priority technical assistance requests made are met.

4.6. Develop and produce educational materials

4.6.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

4.6.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.2." Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevenjion Program

4.6.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Sen/ices of developed educational
materials.

JSI Research & Treinlng Instltuto, Inc. EjdnbitA Contractor Iniu^s
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4.6.3. Immunization Program

4.6.3.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed educational
materials.

4.6.4. Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.6.4.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of the content and functionality
of the HPG website.

4.7. Develop and Implement Evaluation Plans

4.7.1. Environmental Public Health Tracking Program

■4.7.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.2. Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program

4.7.2.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of developed evaluation plan.
4.7.3. Maternal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHVyMaternal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.7.3.1. Implementation of at least 90% of the current MIECHV Continuous Quality
Improvement Plan.

4.8. Update Strategic Plans

4.8.1. Maternal, Infant and Earty Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Maternal and
Child Health Section (MCH):

.  4.8.1.1. Approval by the Division of Public Health Services of updated MIECHV Strategic
Slate Plan.

4.9. Serve as a Fiscal Agent -
4.9.1. Environmental Public Health Tracklng Program

4.9.1.1. Subcontracts with RPHNs executed as directed by DPHS.
'  4.9.2. Infectious Disease Preveritlon, Investigation & Care Services Section

4.9.2.1. Target: 95% of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supplies distributed to sites
are logged on the appropriate distribution log within one week of distribution.

4.9.2.2. Numerator- The number of HIV and HCV testing and prevention supply
distributions listed on the distribution log that were logged within one week of the

. distribution date.
4.9.3. Matemal, Infant and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program (MIECHV)/Matemal and

Child Health Section (MCH):

4.9.3.1. Subcontract for Increase In postpartum visit project executed as directed by
DPHS.

4.9.4. Public Health Emergency Preparedness

4.9.4.1. Subcontracts with Medical Reserve Corps executed as directed by DPHS/ESU.
.4.9.4.2. Subcontract for web-based collaboration system executed as directed by DPHS.
4.9.4.3. Subcontracts with up to four individuals executed as directed by DPHS.

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Eihibit A Contractor initials
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4.10. Annually, Ihe Contractor shall develop and submit to the DHHS, a corrective action plan for
any performance measure that was not achieved.

5. State and Federal Laws

The Contractor shall:

5.1. Be responsible for compliance vnth all relevant state and federal laws*. Special attention Is
called to the following statutory responsibilities:

5.2. Publications funded under this contract shall be responsible to adhere to the requirements in
Exhibit C Special Provisions, Paragraph 14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure equal access to quality health services and provide culturally
and linguistically appropriate services and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special
Provisions, Paragraph 16. Limited English Proficiency (LEP).

5.4. DHHS recognizes that Contractors may choose to use subcontractors with specific expertise
to perform certain services or functions for efficiency or convenience. However, the
Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s) for any
services required by this Contract that are provided. In whole or In part, by a subcontracted
agency or provider, and adhere to the requirements in Exhibit C Special Provisions.
Paragraph 19. Subcontractors of this Contract.

5.5. Adhere to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act requirements to maintain
the confidentiality of protected health Information provided by Individuals who contact the
poison control center In Exhibit I Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate

. 5.6. The Contractor shall ensure that followng performance Indicators are annually achieved and
monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

JSI Research & Training Inslilulo. IrK. Exhiblt A . Contractor Initia
d/b/a Community Health Instilulo
RFP.2018-OPHS^3-PU8UC Pago 10 of 10 Date )

r



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Public Health Professional Support iservices

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1) The Slate shall pay the contractor^ an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8. Price Limitation for the
services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

1.1. This contract Is funded with Funds from:

1.1.1. US Centers for DIseaM Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.069. Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) U U90TP000535.

1.1.2. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, TP12-1201 HPP and PHEP Cooperative
Agreements, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.889, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN) n U90TP000535,

1.1:3. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2013 Cooperative Agreement Application for the
,  Immunization, Vaccine for Children. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.539,
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) # 23IP000757.

1.1.4. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Environmental Public Health Tracking Program •
Network Implemontatibn, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA ff) 93.070, Federal
Award Identification Number (FAIN) U NU38EH000947.

1.'V5. US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, NH - Reduced Lead Poisoning of Children,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA U) 93.753, Federal Award Identification Numl>er
(FAIN)#NUE1EHp01271.

1.1.6. US Environmental Protection Agency, Lead 404(g) Training and Certification, Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 66.7.07, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)# 99151215.

1.1.7. US Department of Health and Hurrian Services, Health Resources and Services Administration,
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.870, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN)#X10MC29490.

1.1.8. US Department of Health and Human Services. Heal^ Resources and Services Administration, •
Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA #) 93.994, Federal Award Identification Number
(FAIN) # BO4MC30627.

I

1.1.9. Other Funds from' Pharmaceutical Rebates. Food Protection Fees and Radiological Health Fees

1.1.10. General Funds.

1.2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current
and/or future funding.

2) Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

2.1. Payment shall tw on a cost reimbursement basis for actual .expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of
this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved lino Item.

2.2. The Contractor will submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth working day of
*  each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior

month. The invoice must'be completed, signed, dated and relumed to the Department in order to
Initiate payment. The Contractor agrees to ke^ records of their activities related to Deparynenl
programs and services.

JSI Rosoarch & Training InsUtuto, Inc.
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2.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,

subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and If sufficient funds are available. Contractors wiD
keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS'-funded programs and services.

2.4. The final Invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contradt Form P-37,
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

2.5. In lieu of hard copies, all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
. DPHScontractblllinQ@dhhs.nh.oov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator • ■
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

2.6. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified In Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3) Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting amounts between
budget tine items, related Items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price limitation, arxi to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of tx>th parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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i  JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Services • Public Health Emergency

Budget Request for: Preparedness
(NsmeofRFP)

1

Budget Period: SFY 2018

1. Total Salary/Wages %  49,686.61 s $ 49,886.51 Tho fedoroltv ODoroved
2. Employee senems S  18.956.87 { 3 18,956.67 Negobatdd Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ 3 i  . Rate Agreement
A. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  1,546.48 $

(NICRA)for JSI

$  1,546.48 Rwearch and Training
5. Supplies; (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  2,700.88 $

liislilute, Inc. Includes

«  0 ynn dq ^"9^ benefits (38% ofe  ̂.ruu.od , .. ̂
6. Travel $  1,000.00 $ $  1,000.00 Qnd othoi
7. Occupancy $  4,988.65 t

-X—QOQ ce operat/ng costs

8. Current E)^nsas (Includes Telaphone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,'
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  3,741.48 $

ecUvltios including
occupancy, equipment.

9. Software 3 i $  • telecommunications and
10. Marketing/Communications $ $ $  • other current expenses.
11. Staff Education and Training $  997.73 $ 3  997.73 Information systems,'
12. Subcontracts/Agreements ; \"i 3 ^  - accounting and payroll,
13. Other (specific details mandatory): 5 i %  . numan resources and

Web-based Collaboration System $  13,000.00 $ 1 13,000.00 siafr oeveiopmem. ana
Preparedness Conference Support $  10,000.00 $ $ 10 000 00 tfonoral administrative

Information Systems 't $ 2,045.35 $  2 045 35 custs. The
■ HR S 2,045.35 |"5—g Ms oppiovod basis for

Gen Admin $ $ 2,045.35 i  2,045.35
Payroll and Accountinq i $ 2,045.35 $  2,045.35

$ S
- - ealaryfwages onfy

TOTAL $ 108,818.60 1 $ 8,1B1.4OH115.OOO.O0L,v.«,tinn

Contractor Initialsilials
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JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.. d/b/a
Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Services • Public Health Emergency

Budget Request for: Preparedness
(Nemo o1 RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

1. Total Salary/Wages S  49,687.59 % S 49,687.59 The fedemliy epproved
2. Employee Benems $  18.957.28 % i 16,9^7.^8 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants ' , $ $ S  - Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals. Repair
& Maintenance, Purchase & $  1,546.52 $

(NICRA) for JSI

$  1 546 52 end Training
S. Supplies: (Includes supplies for

Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, $  2.698.97 $

Inslllule, Inc. includes

«  -5 cQo at benefils (3BS of

6. Travel $  1.000.00 i i  1,000.00
7. Occupancy $  4,988.76 i ■* A r%oo oporoung cocio
0. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions, Audit
& Legal, tnsurance,.8oard Expenses) $  3.741.57 $

activlUes including
occupancy, equipment,

$  3,741.57 qonoral offtce suppJIos.
9. Software 5 J S  telecommunications and
1U. Marlteling/CommunicaUons t $ i  - other current expenses.
11. Staff Education and Training $  997.75 $ $  997.75 Information Bycloms,
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $  . accounting and payroll,
13. Other 1 specific details mandatory : $ J 3  Human resources and

Web-based Collaboration System $  13,000.00 $ i 13,000.00 staff <l0^olopmont, end
Preparedness Conference Support $  10,000.00. i i 10066 06 ®<fmlnlstretlve

Information Systems $ S  2.045.39 5  2*045 39 suppoiicosls. The
HR $ S  2,045.39 -s—TnjcT^appiovod basis for

Gen Admin $ S  2,045.39 J  2,045.39
Payroll end Accountinq i S  2.045:39 S  2,045.39 ^

$  1 $
TOTAL 5 106,816.44 Is 8,181.56 S115.000.C0 L.

Pago 1 of 1

Contrector Initials;

Pete: S



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sorvlcos

. JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,

Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for Services - Hospital Preparedness
(NameofRFP)

Budget Period; SPY 2018 ^

ljlno;K(im ifi-bicrementalu;.-
Indirect'.:/;

1. Total SalaryrWages i6.yse.yd % - f ifl.yse.yo The federoily approved

2. Employee Benems 4.102.75 % 4,102.75 Negotiated Indirect Cost

3. Consultants - i -
Rate Agreemont

4. Equipment (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) S 334.70 $ $ 334.70

■*(NICRA)ror JSl
Research and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for •
Education. Lab, Pharmacy. Medical, Offtce) $ 639.83 $ s 639.83

fringe benefits (38% of

6. Travel i 250.00 $ i 250.00
7. Occupancy _ 1,079.67 $ $ 1,079.67
8; Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriplions, Audit & Legal,
insurance. Board Expenses) $ 809.76 $ $ 809.76

activities Including
occupancy, oqulpmenL
general office supplies.

9. Software i -  . $ $ - telecommunications and
10. Marketing/Communications i $ i - other current expenses.
11. Staf( Education and Training 215.93 i i .215.93 information systems.
12. Subcontracts/Agreements i - $ $ - accounting and payroll.
13. Other (specific details mandatory): • .  - 5 i -

human resources srKf

Medical Reserve Corps Mini-Grants i 50.000.00 $ - $ 50 000 00 aeveiopmem. one
Information Systems •  - i 442.67 $ 442.67 general aaministrBiive

HR %  , $ 442.67 i 442.67
Gen Admin $ 442.67 442.67 -appllcatjon of the

Payroll and AccountinQ $ i 442.67 i 442.67

$ - $ - $ - salary/wages only
TOTAL % 11,770.66 1ViTdObliO |includlng holiday; sick

(ndiroct As A Percent or Ulrect ,  2.bV®

Contraclor IniUals:

Page 1 of 1 Ome: 't|;Z, ))7



-  Now Hampshire Dopartmont of'ke'alth and Muman Services

JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc., d/b/a

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services»Hospital Preparedness
(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019

'^^.vag7g
4,102.75 i 4.i6i.7S

Ini

Tho ̂odorally
' approved NogoUatod
' indirect Cost Rate
'Agreement (NICRA)
for JSl Research and

Training Institute, Inc.
-includes fringe
beneftts (38% of.
salary) and other
.general operating
.costs to support

^pro)ect activities
including occupancy,
equipment, general

oltlce supplies,
tolocommunications

and other current

expenses. Information
systome, accounting
and payroll, human

resources and staff

dovolopment, and
genorai administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the -

NICRA is on

,sal8ryfwagee only
holiday, sick

I Benents2. Employee Benefits
3. ConsultsItants T

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase A Depreciation) 334.70

5. Supplies: (Incfudes supplies for
Education, Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
d. Travel ^

639.83

250.00

7. Occupancy 1,079.67

6. Current Expenses (Includes Telephone.
Postage. Subschptions, Audit & Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses)
9. Software

809.76

10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training"
it. Subcontracts/Agreements

215.93

^ 5." Other (spedftc details mandatory):
Medical Reserve Corps Min^Srants

Infomietion Systems
$  50,000.00

HR

Gen Admin

Payroll end Accounting

I  44^
1  442.67
T
T

442.67

442.67

T

334.70

639.83

1  250.00
$  1.079.67

809.78

215.93

T

$ 50,000.00
442.67

1  442.67
1  442.67

442.67

T
TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct
68,229.34 | $ 1 ■770.66 j $ 70.000.00 linduding

Contractor Initialsitials;

Pago 1 of 1 Date: r=\UiLa



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSl Research & Training Institute, inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: dibit Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for; Services.* ImmunUatlon

{Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2016

r. .THre^
1 ihc^ifnerttal

(ndlrectr^

2. Employee Benefits EUKiissa
9

{  -
9 JU,2ie./6 The fodorallv aooravad

i 11^463.52 Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants 5 $  - Rate Agreement (NICRA)
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) $  936.62. $

for jsi Research and

$  936.82 Institute, Ina
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab. Pharmacy. Medical, Office) $  1,510.99 $

' ~ iiiUuJus fringe bonofits
$. 151099 and other

6. Travel S $
'— general operuU'ig costs

/. Occupancy $ 3,021.98 i
-T--:™—-to support project

a. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.

Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal.
Insuranco, Board Expenses) $ 2.266.47 $

occupancy, oquipment.
general office supplies.

d. Software % i  -
10. Marketing/Communications $ 5,000.00 "5 i  5^000.00 Information systems.
It. staff Education and Training $  604.40 i i  604.40 accounting and payroll.
12. buDconiracts/Aqreements $ i i  . . human resources and

uther (specific details mandatory): 2019
NHIP Conferonce .$ 5,000.00 $

sian development, and

$  5 000 00 edmlnlstraUve
Information Systems $ 51,239.01 i  1 239 01 the

MR

Gen Admin t
5 1,239.01
$ 1,239.01

$  1 239 01 ^sls for
1  239 01 gPPiicalio" of the NICRA

Payroll and Accountino

TOTAL

$
S
c an AAV no i

$ 1,239.01
%
TTTTCFinrri

5  i 'Mo'Si""'® salaryhyagos only-j '• : Including holiday, sick
*•"* vacation.

Indirect As A Percent of Direct
w  i a do.uuu.oo i

'  j

Page 1 of 1

Contraclor IniUals:

Date:



Now Hampshire Dopartmont of Hoalth and Human Sorvlcod

JSI Research & Training institute, inc.,

Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services - Immunization
(NBme of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019

Total SalaryAWagoary/Wap
2. ^mptoyee
3. Consultants

Benems

, - ̂ v»vi'•• •
(neremcntiU:

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation)

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6. Travel.

7. Occupancy :
5! Current Expenses (includes telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
insurance, Board Expenses)'
9. Softwa"^
to. Merketlng/Communications
1 ?. Staff Education and Trainl;^
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific aetails mandatory): 2019
NHIP Conference

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin

Payroll and Account!/^

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

% 11.483.52

938.82

$  1.510.99

$ 3.021.98

$ 2,266.47

TTOOO.OO
"5 604.40
T

$ 5,000.00
$ 1.239.01
$ 1.239.01
$1,239.01
$1,239.01

rmsm-
—m

T
30.219.78

938.82

1.510.99

3,021.98

2,286.47

5,000.00
604.40

5,000.00

1,239.01
1,239.01

T
T

1,239.01
1,239.01

—ewm"

The-fodorally dpprovod

'.Negotiated Indirect Cost
' Rate Agreemont
■(NICRA)for JSI
Research and Training

' Instltuto. inc. inctudes
fringe benefits (38% of

■ salary) end other general
■ operating costs to
. support project octMtios
including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,
telecommunications end
other current expenses,
inrormation systems,
accounting end payroll,
human resources and

staff development, and
-general administrative
-supportcosts. The
■ approved basis for
> application of the NICRA
■is on ealary/wagoe only
.including holiday, sick
larKi vocation.

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of t Date; 0 2^ 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human SorvlcM

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Profesalohsl Support
Budget Request for Services »Phamieceutlcal Rebates

Budget Period: SFY2018

1. Total Satary/Wac lesry/wagg
2. Employee Benefits
3. (!i!onsuitQnts

. S 37.607.84

% 14.290.98

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (indudes supplies for Education.
Lab, Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6. Travel

. Occupancy
Current Expenses {includes Telephone,

Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
insurance. Board Expenses) ,
I! Software
10. Marketing/Communications

Staff Education and training
12. Subcontracta/Agroements
13. Other (specific datalts mandatory):

mbuHPtj Member Retmt>ursement
Conference Support
Prevention Supplies

piflltaliStorytellinfl
Meeting ̂ ^nses

Website Maintenance

Irrcroriion^
tndirect

T

$  1,165.64

%  1.880.39

$  1,500.00
%  3,760.78

•$ 2,820.60

T
I  752.16

T
I  2,000.00
$  5,000.00
%  12,000.00
5 25.000.00
I  6.000.00

500.00

Subyription Services
other Protessional Suppori Services

Special Projects
Information Systems

HR

Gen Admin
Payroll and Account!}^

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

I  1,500.00
$ 10,000.00
5

T

$1,541.92
S 1,541.92
$ 1,541.92
$ 1,541.92

$

t
T

S  14.290.96
T

1,165.84

1,680.39

1,500.00

3,760.78

2,820.60

752.16

2,000.00

5,000.00

12,000.00
I  25,000.00
1  .6.000.00
T 500.00

1.500.00
%  io.ooa.oo

1,853.73

1,541.92

1,541.92.
1,541.92
1,541.92

Tho federally

opproved Negotiated
'indirect Cost Role
'Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research

"and Trelnlng
Institute,. Inc.

- includes fringe
-.benefits (38% of'
.salary) and other
genera) operating
costs to support

^project DcUvftJes
^Including occupancy,
equipment, genera)

'ofTice supplies,
" telecommunications

"end other curren)

"expenses,
•Inlbrmotion systems,
- accounting and
-payroll, human
- resources end staff

'development, end

.general

.admlnistrelivo

.supportcosts. The

.approved basis for

.application of tho
'nICRA is on
aelery/wages only
including holidoy,
sick and vacation.

Poge 1 of t

Contractor Inilials:

Date: ̂  I 7



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Heatth Professional Support
Budget Request for Services ♦ Pharmaceutical Rebates

(Nome ofRFP) •

Budget Period: SPY 2019

. direct-''•
'Ihcreml^i

. Indlractc
•' C./''

1'. Total Salary/Wages $ 38.&47.24 $ i 38,647.24 The fcderelty
2. Employee Benefits S 14.685.95 S i 14,685.95 Of^rovod Negotloted
3. Consultants ( - 5  - - Indirect Cost Rate

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $ 1,198.06 $ s 1,198.06

Agroemont (NICRA)
for JS( Research and

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education.
Lab. Pharmacy, Medical, Office) s 1,932.36 $ $ 1.932.36

-Training Institute.
Inc. Includes fringe

6. Travel , $ 1,500.00 i $ 1.500.00
7. Occupancy i 3,864.72 $ $ 3.854.72
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) $ 2,898.54 s s 2.898.54

costs to support
pfoiect actMUes
Including occupancy.

9. Software - $ equlpmont, general
10. Mofketing/CommunlcatJons i • t . ofTico supplies,
11. Staff Education and Training 772.94 5 772.94 telecommunications

12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ . % $ . end other current

1 j. other 1 spectttc details mandatory): $ . $ i . expenses.

HPG Member Reimbursements 2.000.00 i $ 2,000.00 (nformalion systems,

Conference Support i 5,000.00 i  - i ,  5,000.00'eccounllng and

Prevention Supplies % 12,000.00 % & 12,000.00 -payroll, humen

Meeting Expenses I 6.000.00 i  : ■■■ 6,000.00
-resources arid staff
> development, and

general

administrative

Website Maintenance 500.00 1 % 500.00
Subscription Sen/ices i 1.500.00 $ 1,500.00

.Other Professional Support Services i 10.000.00 t 10,000.00
Special Protects i S ■  5,154.71.

Information Systems I - S 1,536.37 r 1,536.37 epplicetion of the
NICRA Is onHR % S 1,536.37 s 1,536.37

Gen Admin $ 1.536.37 t 1.536.37 salaryfwagos only
including holiday. .
sick and vocation.

Poyroil and Accounlinq t $ 1.536.37 i 1,536.37
% - •

TOTAL S 107.654.S2 1 9 6,145.48 1 % 113,800.00

Contractor Initials

Pago 1 of 1 Date: r^ln



New Hampshfro bepartment of HoaKh and F^uman Sorvicos

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services »Food

(Nmo of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

^.Indirect'.<•'<

^rv;-Fb(o5dl'S
{Mfpcattoiri-Mletflod ;for:

1. Total Salary/Wafles s .9,577.03 li7y.63 Tho fodorolly epprbvod
2. Employee Mnents i 3,639.28 $ % 3,639.28 Negotiated IndiractCost
3. Consutants $ - 5 $ - Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $ 298.89 $ $ ' 296.89

'■(NlCRA)for JSI
Resoerch and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, lab, Phermecy, Medical, Office) $ 478.85 $ % 478.85

'Instiiuto, Inc. includes
fringe tranefils (36% of

6. Travel - i i -

7. Occupancy i 957.71 i 957.71
6. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $ 718.29 s $ 718.29

iricluding occupancy,
equipment, general offica
supplies.

9. Software - $ $ . telecommunicatrons and
10. Marketino/Communlcations - s - other current expenses,
11. Staff Education and.Traininq 191.54 5  . $ 191.54 Information systems,
12. Subcontracts/Agreements - $ $ - accounting and payroll,
13. Other (specific aetalls mandatory); i - $ . human resources arrd

Training Development 569.77 $ - 569.77 staff dovoiopmont. and
Informelion Systems - $ 392.66 i 392.66 general edministralivo

HR $ 4 392.66 i 392.66 support costs. The

1  Gen Admin $ S 392.66 « 392.66 approved basis for
application of the NICRA
is on ealaryTwagos only

•Including holiday, sick

Payroll end Accountinq 392.66 $ 392.66
% - - 5 -

TOTAL 1  1 $ 1,570.64 1 $
•  g.B%

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:
^ /

Date: j 2 6 / I 7



.  ' ' i^ew liampshlre beparlment of Mealih'an<i t^urna'n Services

JSi Rfisoarch & Training Institute. Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Namo: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Healtli Professional Support

Budget Request for Services • Food
(Name ofRFP) ~

Budget Period: SPY 2019

.  Yobl,;)^i{;;>-AI{ocdloniUeih^

Tola
Empio

% mw
S 3,340.48

■J f ■ Iwtav
3,340.4^)e

3. Consultants T
4. Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depredation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pbarmacy. Medical. Off>ce)

272.52

$  439.55
6. Travel
7. Occupancy

Current Expenses (Includes Telephone.
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Boarp Expenses)

879.10

659.34
9. ^ftwa^
io'. Marketing/CommunlcationF
11. Staff Education end Training'
12

T

. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatoryl:

ininoOeveloiTraining'Pevelop

$  175:82

m^ $ 2,000.00
Information Systems

HR
Gen Admin

Payroll and Account!^

T

272.52

439.55

879.10

659.34

T
175.82

T
T
$  2,000.00"
T$  360.43 360.43

$  360.43 360.43
S  360.43 380.43
5  360.43
T

T 360.43
T

TOTAL
Indirect As A Percent oi Direct

mjssw TTOTTm—16,085.00

Th^^odoISIlyNapprovSd
Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSi Research and
Training institute. Inc.
includes fringe benefits
(38% of salary) and other
general operating costs to
support project activities
including occupancy,
equlpmenL general office
supplies.
telecommunications and
other current expenses.
Information systems. •
accounting and payroll,
human resources and
staff developmont. and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
applicaUon of the NICRA
Is on sBiaryfwages ortiy
including holiday, sick
and vacation.

Page l ofl

Contraclor Initials:

■Dote: J



New Hampshlro Department of Health anc^Tiuma'n Services

JSI Reeoarch & Training Institute. Inc..
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services»EPHT

(Neme ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 201B

;lnwwwn4l|:-C:Fik^^^^^
TTTSm. Total ̂ aiary/Wag^ryr

3. Consukants
2. Employee Benefits

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair S
Maimenance. Purchase & Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6. Travel

7. Occupancy •
6. Current Expenses (includes Yelephone,
Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses)
5! Software
1g. Marketing/Communications
IV Staff Education and Training"
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):
Meeting Expenses
Materials Development

InformatJon Systems
MR

Gen Admin

Peyroll and Accountino

TOTAL

in<^lrect As A Percent of Direct

TTMSI2
1

200.98

324.16

"5 450.00
$  64^2

$  486.24

T

129.66

r30.000.00

$ 4.600.00
$ 3.-150.48

T
T
"i 265^
I  265!eT
1  26F8T
1  265.81

2.463.62

200.98

324.16

450.00

648.32

486.24

T 129.66

1  30.000.00
T

4.600.00
3.150.48
265.81

265.81

T 265JT
T 265.81

$  $

Tho federally cpprovod

Neootiatod Indlroct

Cost Rate Agreement
'(NICRA)forJSI
Research end Training
InsUtute. Inc. includes
fringe benefits (38% of
salary) and other
genorol operating costs
to suppon project
activities Including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,
tolocommunlcations

and other current .

expenses, informetion
systems, accounting
end payroll, human
resources end slefl

dovelopmenL and
general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for

application of the
NICRA is on

ealaryMages'onty
Including holiday, sick

aotUetttioa—
15.5%

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 1 Date:



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sorvlcos

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - EPHT

(Name ofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019

1  Toial Salary/Wac lesBfl<

.DIrt>ct;?ri>;vi-lndfr»cr,,. ,

•!"a:605.'SS T

Total(|:^,'.t-t'AUoci

S1  T.M
2. Employee wnents
3. Consultants

$ 3,651.63

Equipment; (includes Rentals, Repairs
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) 297.90

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Eduction. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6. Vravel

460.48

7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,

Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance. Board Expenses) .

$  96^

9. Softwa^
10.' Marketing/Communications

720.72

T

lT $tafr Educatjo'n and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):
M

%  192.16

$ 30,000.00

aterials Production

Information Systems
$ 2,510.64
1 ^

HR

Gen Admin r
PayroJl end Accounting \ $

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

%

$ 48.424M

$  393.99

$  393.99

S  393.99

i ~ 393.99
T

297.90

480.48

960.96

The federally approved
3,651.63 Negotiated Indirect Cost

Rale Agreement
(NICRA) for JSl
Research end Training
Institute, inc. includes

fringe benefits (36% of
salary) end other
ger>erat operating costs
to support project
ectlvltlos Including
occupancy, equipment,

$  720.72 ■ general office supplies,
$  •- telecommunications and
$  - other currant oicpenses,
$  192.16 Information systems,
i  30,000.00 occounling'and payroll,
^  I human resources and

f" 2 510'.64 slaff development, and
~  Qonoral administrative

support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the NlCRA
Is on aalaryfwagos only
including holiday, sick
and vacation.

393.99

393.99

393.99

393.99

T  It
f 1,57^^96 I y ' "50,000.011

Pago 1 of 1

Contrector Initials:

Pate: 5?^)n



New Hampehiro Department of Heaitt) and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
BIddeWContractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services • COG Load

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018

1. Total Salarv/Wages $ 11.208.79 $ 6  11|208.79 The fedomiry Qoorovad
Employee Benetits $ 4.259.34 5 $  4.259.5T' Nogotialod Indirect Cost

3. Consultants $ $ i  . Rate Agrooment
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  347.47 $

(NICRA)forJSI
j  347 47 Research and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $  560.44 $ ■

' (iisUtute. Inc. includes

S  ' 560 44 ''^"9® 0^
6. Travel $ $ '  ■ —salary)endotlier

7. Occupancy S  1,120.68 $ -* gonofol operating costs

a. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage. Subscriptiohs. Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) 5  840.66 $

activities including
occupancy, equipment,

$  840.66 aeneral office supplies
^o^are J i 5  • telecommuniceUons

1U. MarKeting/Communications J J  ■- t  - ar>d other current
11. Staff Education end Training S  224.18 $ %  ̂4.18 expenses, infonrratjon
v^. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $ $  . systems, accounting
13. Other (Specific details mandatory): $ $ $  . and payroll, human

Educational Outreach $ 15.600.00 I J  15,605.00 ofW storr
development, end

Information Systems t $  459.56 $  459 56' 9®"®'®' adtnlttislreUve
HR $ S  459.56 $  ■ " 459 55 support costs. The

Gen Admin i $  459.56 -* .g- approved basis for .
Pavroli end Accountinq s $ 459.56 i  459.56

■
$ $ $  salary/wages only

TOTAL S 34,161.76 1 6 1,838.24 | f. 36;000.00 I'nctudtng rtoliday, sick

'

Pago 1 of 1

Contractor Initials: /
•  ( •

Date: 0 7^ I7



New Hampshire Department of Hoalth and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support

Budget Request for: Services > CDC Lead
(Neme of RFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2019

Uinp_'itom

??.;f;]Dlpp:Ct. :• ji^-fndlroct-y

i. Total SalaryM/aaoa S 11,200.79 $ $  11.208.79 TTie federally

2. Employee Benems S 4,259.34 $ $  4,^59!^ approved Negotiated
3. Consutants $ i $  indirect Cost Rate
4. Equipment: (Includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance. Purchase &
Oepreciation) $  347.47 $

Agreement (NICKA)

for JSI Research and

$  347 47 Institute, Inc.
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical,
Office) $  560.44 $

benefits (38% of -

6. Travel i J *  " rn«5t* fo «9i»pprtrt
7. Occupancy $ 1,120.88 $ $  1,120.88 profect Bctlvftles
8. Current Expenses (Includes
Telephone. Postage, Subscriptions.
Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses) $  840.66 $

including occupancy,
equipment, general
office supplies,

$  840.66 telecommunlcetjons
9. Software $ $ (  . and^other current
10. Marketing/Communications $ $

j  ej^iises. Informalloh

11. Staff Education and Training $  224.18 $ h  224"i 8
ii. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $
13. Other i speciric details mandatory): $ $

Educational Outreach $15,600.00 $ € " 1 K"enr^ rin ■

lnfon7)atlon Systems
HR $ S  459.56

Gen Admin $ $ 459.68 $  459.56 ftf the
Payroll end Accountinp t $ 459.56 $  459.56 NICRAisori

$ $ 459.56 $  459.56 ealaryfwagea only
TOTAL $34,161.76 $ 1,838.24 $  aS.dbb.dO -[""Judiny huliUay. sick

irtdlrect As A Percent of Direct 5.4%

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials:

D.t»:_572lin



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support
Budget Request for: Services - EPA Lead

(Name of RFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2018

■■■ ■P'rpcti^;i_/.-lndIrect;a^i>'^/To}ol«^
1. Total Salary/Waees $23,461.54 $ $  23,461.54 The fodomUy cporovod
2. Employee Benefits $ 8,915.38 $ S  S.^TSTSS Negoliatod Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ 4 $  - Rale Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  727.3l' $

(NICRA) for JSI
$  727.31 end Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab. Pharmacy. Medical, OfTice) $ 1.173.08 $

" InsUiutu. Inc. Includes

c  ii7'anp fringe benefits (38% of
6.. Travel $ 4
7. Occupancy $ 2,346.15 4  -

-I general operating costs

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone.
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal,
insurerrce. Board Expenses) $ 1,759.62 $

acUviUes including
occupancy, equipment,

$  1,759.62 General office suoplioa
9. Software $ 4 $  teleoommunfcatJbns and
10. MerketinB/Communlcatlons $ 4 $  - other cunent expenses.
11. btatl tducatlon and Training S  469.23 s 4. 489.23 information systems.
12. Subcontracts/Agreements 5 4 $  . accounting and payrotl.
13. uther (speclflc details mandatory): S $ $  . numen resources and

NELCC Meetings $ 6,750.01 4  6,750.01 staff aevcfopment. end
Educational Outreach $ • 550.00 4 4  550.00 yeneral odminlstrollvo
Information Systems $ $ 961.92 4  961 92 ^tjppuil costs. Tiie

HR $ S 961.92 '-r—-ssT-Rs-eppiuved basis for
Gen Admin i $ 961.92 -X— " ' m' application of the NICRA

Payroll end A ccountinq $ $  961.92 1  srr^lsooealary/wagee
$ 4 X ' —— — only lncludir>g holiday.

TOTAL $46,152.32 I 3.84r.-8g- 1 ' 58,6b6:'<^1

Contractor Initials:

Pago 1 of 1 Dato: Zhlil



New HBmpshIro Departmont of Health and Human Sorvices

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a

Bidder/Contractor Name: Community Health Institute

Public Health Professional Support Services

Budget Request for: • EPA Lead
(Name ofRFP)

Budget Perfod: SFY 2019

lndiroct7^^!~

I  51S^S

VIlocatloniMothod.ror

Unpi-.ttom; '■
.5V

1

•" .vas'n^r'

y
S  8.445.60

1. TolelSala
T.\. Employee
I. Consulte

aaes

 Benefits
tents

 8,445.60

4. Equipment; (includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance. Purchase &
Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab. Pharmacy. Medical.
Office)

688.98

8. Travel
7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses (includes
Telephone, Postage, Subscriptions,
Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board
Expenses)-

1,111.26

2,222.53

9. Software"
10. Mafketing/Communlcations

1,666.69

11. Staff Education and Training'
■12. feubcontracts/Agreemenis
13. Other (specific details mandatory):,

444.51

NELCC Meetings 9,000.00
Educational Outreach 550.00
Information Systems

HR
Gen Admin

Payro/I and Accounting

TOTAL
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

K—46,3^5.64

T
T
1  911.24
%  911.24

911.24
1  911.24

3,644.96
TM

T

688.98

■$ 1,111.26

$  2.222.53

$  1.666.89

1  -444.51

$  9.000.00
1  550.00
1  911.24
1  911.24

911.24
1  911.24

the fedorelly approved
'Negotiated Indirect
'Cost Rate Agreement
•(NICRA)for JSI ,
Research end Training
Institute. Inc. includes

- fringe benefits (38% of
salary) end other
general operating costs
jo support project
.octivlties Including
occupancy, equipment,
general office supplies,
telecommunications
and other current
expenses, Information

' systems, accounting
end payroll, human
resources and staff

■development, and
-gonerol edministralive
■supportcosts. The
.approved basis for
.epplicotion of the
NICRA is on

.salary/wages only

.including holiday, sick
end vacslion.

I 50,000.00

Pago 1 of 1

Oontrector Initiais:

Date:



New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Regional Public Health Network Services •
Budget Request for; Home Visiting

(NsmeofRFPJ

Budget Period;'SFY 2018

:c. ;; mdlrpct^ Mo4Jiod;.*or

1. Total Saldry/Waoes % 91.203.33 5- S  91,203.33 The foderallv BDorovod
2. Employee oenents i 34.657.25 $• S  34.6SY2§' Negotiated Indirect Cost
3. Consultants. $- J ^  - Rate Agreement
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance. Purchase & Depreciation) 2,627.30 $-

(NICRA)forJSI

$  2 827 30 Rososrch and Training
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy. Medical, Office) $  4,560.16 $-

'Id&lilule, Inc. IrKludes

$  4 560 16 of
6. Travel S  .5,000.00 $. i  5.000.00 "I:;,!;':':'''"'
7. Occupancy S  9.120.33 $. -X oToh'W operating costs

U. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,

Postage. Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  6,640.24 $-

activftlos Including
occupancy, equipment.

$  6,840.24 penaral office supplies
9. Software J. $- 5  - lolecommunications
10. Marketinfl/Communlcations $• i- $  - and other currant
11. Staff Education arKf Training S  1.824.07 i- $  1,624.0*7 er^nsos, Information
12. Sut}Conlracts/Agreements $  5,000.00 i- i  ̂000.00 syslorns, accounting
13. Other (specific details-mandatory); ■$- i 1  . ana payroll, human
Learning ^changes S  5.000.00 t- / J  5.000.00 resources ano suitt
Scholarships $  6,000.00 i  6.000.00 tlovelopmeni, and
HFA Training & Supports $ 35,000.00 $- 1  ' 35^000 00 90"®re> adrnlnislraUvo

Informetion Systems $ 3.739.33 i  3.739"3"3 Tlie
HR $ 3.739.33 4" ^'s-an I'i approved baste for

Gen Admin 5 3.739.33 t' 3.739.33
Reyroll end Accounting $ 3.739.33 S  3,739.33 aalaiYfwaaes only '

TOTAL $ 207.032.66 1 14,957.32

Page 1 oJ 1

Contractor Initials

Date:: 5lzi ln



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.,
Bidder/Contractor Name: d/b/a Community Health Institute

Regional Public Health Network Services -

Budget Request for: Home Vialtinfl
(Name ofRFP)

BudgetPeriod: SPY 2019

-.-tilndlroct;.-.

1. Total Salary/Wages S 91.203.33 $. $  91.203.33 The fodoraily ODOrovod

2. Employee Benefits S 34,657.25 $• $  34.657.25 Nogotiatod Indirect Cost
3. Consultants $ i- $  - Rate Agreement (NICRA)
4. Equipment: (includes Rentals,
Repair & Maintenance, Purchase & $  2,827.30 $-

tor JSI Kesearch end

$  2 827 30 InsUlute, Inc.
5. Supplies: (Includes supplies for
Education, Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, $  4,560.16 $-

'indudes fringe benefits

$  4 560 16 salary) end other
6. Travel $  5,000.00 $. i."" cnrmnn 9onorol Operating cosls to
7. Occupancy $  9,120.33 $. i' ' Q i on P'Ojoa ccuvinos .

8. Current Expenses (includes

Telephone, Postage, Subschptlons,
Audit & Legal, Insurance, Board $  6,640.24 $-

equipment! general office
supplies,

$  6.840.24 telecommunications and
9. Software $. $- $  • ■ other current expenses.
10. Marketing/Communications $. $- $  • information systems.
11. Staff Education and Yraining %  1,824.07 $- i  1.624.07 accounting and payroll.
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $  5,000.00 $. $  5,000.00 human resources end staff
13. Other specific details mandatory): $- $. $  . aeveupmeni, and general
Learning bxchanges $  5,000.00 $- i  6,000.00 aomlnlsiraove suppon
Scholarships $  6,000.00 $. i  6,000.00 'heapproved
HFA Training & Supports $ 35,000.00 $- $  35 boo CO upplicallon of the

Information Systams $ 3.739.33 $  3,739 33 f^'CRAUv..
HR $ 3.739.33 5  173§.33 «"'>

Gen Admin $ 3,739.33 ■■j "^"739'33~
Payroll end Accountinq $ 3,739.33 $  3.739.33
TOTAL $207,032.68 $ 14,957.32 $  221,990.00 1

Indirect As A Porcent of Direct 7.2%

Contractor Initials:

Pege 1 of 1 Date:



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name; Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network
Budget Request for: Services • Maternal & Child Health

(NameofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 201B

1. lota! Salary/Wages % $  - $  - The fodoraDv ooorovori
2. bmployee Benefits- $ $  - $  - Negotiated Indirect
3. Consultants $ i - $  - Cost Rate Agreement
4. bquipment: (includes Rentals, Repair &

Maintenance, Purchase &-Oepreciation) $ $  -

(NtCRA) for JSI
5  . Research and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education,
Lab, Pharmacy. Medical. Office) ' ' s $  -

Institute, Inc. Includos
^  fringe benefits (36% of

6. Travel $ i  -
salary) and other

f. Occupancy $ $  -
B. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions; Audit & Legal, Insurance,
Board Expenses)

-

5 $

project actlvitlos

including occupancy.
$  - eoulomenl oeneral

9. Software i $  - 4  - office suDDlles.
10. MarkoUnfl/CommunlcaUons $  . $  - $  - tetecommunlcalions
n. btatt hducalion and Training $ i. - 4  - and other current
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $24,000,00 $  ■ $  24,000.00 expenses, Information
13. Other (specific details mandatory': $ i J ■ . systems, accounting

{ 5 .  and payroll, human

$  . . i ^  , lesources and staff

' J 4  - j  - - development, and
' $ 4  . '-j ^ general administrative

$ 4
support costs. The

$ 4
^  ■■ ■ ■ approved basis for

$ $  - .
^  NICRAison

TOTAL 5  -
-- ^salary/wanes only

Page f of 1'

ConUactor Initials;

Date: 5



New Hampshire Oopartment of HeaKh and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name; Inc., d/b/a Community Health

•

Regional Public Health Network

Budget Request for: Services • Matemal & Child Health
(Name ofRFP)

1  Budget Period: SPY 2019
•  ̂Dlrpct': ■Indlrdel

incidental
1. Total Salary/Wafles 1 s  • "V . The fedomlly opprovoc
2. Employee Benefits $ s  • T' . "NegoUatod Indirect
3. Consutants s $  , J . "Cost Rale Agreement
4. Equlpment:.(>nciudes Rentals, Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $ $  - $

"(NlCRA)forJSI
Research and Training

5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education.
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical, Office) $ $  - $

-Institute, Inc. Inctudes
fringe benefits (38% of

6. Travel i  - 1" .

7. Occupancy $ i  - ( .

8. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,
Postage, Subscriptions, Audit & Legal. Insurance.
Board.Expenses) $ $  - $

project aclivitles
Induding occupancy,
equipment, general

9. Software $ i  - T . office supplies.
10. Markeling/Comniunications $ i 1" . telecommunications
11. Staff Education and Training i i r . 'end other cuhrent
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ 24.000.00 i  - T 24.000.00 "expenses. Information
13. Other (specific details mandatory): t  - T - systems, accounting

$ J T .
and payroll, human

s $  - $■ .
resources ar>d staff

$ t  - 1" ■  •
development, and

$ J  - T- - •

general administrative
support costs. The
approved basis for
application of the
NiCRAis on

j $  - T"
$ 5 lE _

$ $  - s ;  .

TOTAL 124,000.00 1 $ - 1 $ 24,000.00
tsaJary/waBoe only

Contractor Initialsillals;

Page 1 of 1 Dalo:_5/2ili2



^ 'Coet •■ ■fU.
j.'-i'

2. Emplo i  itiM 187^ene

3. Consultants

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

JSI Research & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Network
Budget Request for: Services • Radiological Emergency

(Neme ofRFP)

Budget Period: SPY 2018 .

4. Equipment: (includes Rentals/Repair &
Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation)
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for
Education. Lab. Pharmacy. Medical. Office)
6:'''l'ravel
'■ Occupanc^

8. Cunrent Expenses (includes Telephone, .
Postage. Subscriptions. Audlt-& Legal.
Insurance. Board Expenses)
9. Software
10. Marketing/Communications
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracts/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):

Radiotofllcal Emergencies Subcontracts

Information Systems
HR

Gen Admin
Payroll and Accounting

TOTAL
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

15.33

$  24.73

1  49^5

37.08

9.69
T

$ 8.100.00

T
% 8,918.90

T
$ 20.28
$20.28
$ 20.28
$ 20.28
T

$81.10

15.33

24.73

49.45

37.08

9.89

VOrhe fedarally approved
Negotiated Indirect Cost
Rate Agreement (NICRA)
for JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.
includes fringe {benefits
(38% of salary) end other
general operating costs to
support project activities
including occupancy,
equipment, general office
supplies.
telecommunicotions end
other current expenses,
information systems,
accounting and payrol),
human resources and staff
development, end general

20.28

8 1(!)0 00 administrative support
costs. The approved

'basis for application of the
'NICRA is on
'aalary/wages only
•Including holiday, sick and
■vacation.

20.28
20.28
20.28

9,000.00

Contractor Initialslitials:

Page 1 of 1 Date: Q1221n



JSI Roaoarch & Training Institute,
Bidder/Contractor Name: Inc., d/b/a Community Health

Regional Public Health Networtt
Budget Request for: Services • Radiological Emergency

(NamoofRFP)

Budget Period: SFY 2019

v.lndlrect

^  -
2. Employee Benefits $  187.91 t  -

>  4S#4.bl ITio fcdoroltv aoorovnrt

$  167.91 Negotioted Indirect
3. Consultants * s  - $  . Cost Rate Agreemenl

, tquipment: (includes Rentals. Repair &

Maintenance, Purchase & Depreciation) $  15.33 $  -

(NICRA) for JSI

$  15.33 Hesoarch and Training
5. Supplies: (includes supplies for Education.
Lab, Pharmacy, Medical. Office) $  24.73 $  -

InsUlule, lr>c. indudas

$  24 73 benefits (36% of
6. travel S $  .

salary) and other

Occupancy $  49.45 t -X — ' Qenoral operating costs

d. Current Expenses (includes Telephone,

Postage, Subscriptions. Audit & Legal,
Insurance, Board Expenses) $  37.08 $  -

ectJvlUes Including
occupancy, equlpmonL

9. Software. .$ i  •
ib. Marketlnfl/Communlcations $ T $  - and other current
n. Stan Education and Tralnlnq $  9.89 $  . $  9.89 expenses. Information
}2. Subcontracts/Agreements $ $  - $  . systems, occountJng
1 j. other (specific details mandatory): 1 $  - $  . and payroll, human

Radiological Emergencies Subcontracts $ 8,100.00 $  . 1  b.lBo.bO resources ana Starr
$ $  . 1  . Ouvelopment; and

Information Systems 5 S 20.28 i  20 26 tl^'^erel udministralivo
HR i S 20.28 i  "20 28 7he

Gen Admin i $ 20.28 L  onto epp'ovod basis for
Payroll and Accountina i S 20.28 $  20.26

S  -
■ A— ' ■■ NICRA Is on

$ t
-j !-~»aIaryfwago» onfy

TOTAL

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

t 8,918.90 $81.10

Pago 1 of 1

Contractor Initiabitiala:

Oate: ̂ /7^|/7



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Conlreclors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and '
agrees as follows:

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such ellglblljly determinallon shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies end procedures.

1.

2. Time and Manner of Dotormlnatlon: Eligibility determinations shall,be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shell t>e made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentetlon: In addition to the determination forms required by Uie Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shal) Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests: The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
. regarding eligiblilty determinations that (he Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hear1ng8:-The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuals dodarod Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to ftll out
an application form and that each applicant or re-appficant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If It Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties

.  hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible-for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to tha contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall delermina that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals .
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor (he amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

Eitfii&fl C - Spadsl Proviskina Contractor

ow"u Pago 1 of 5 ' Dalo iZilLl



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to Uie Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any lime during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants end agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, sakt records to to
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures end practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect alt such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, lat>or time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical,, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
.  services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and

eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services. • '

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
. Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
Ihey pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review; During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Departnient. the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; In addition to and not in any way in limitation of oUigations of the Contract, it is
understood end agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the .
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been'disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All infonmation, reports, end records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
rasped to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his .
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provision* ContrBCtor Inilii ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding an/thing to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shail survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descdplion of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
Justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such FInandai Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Servlcee: Disallowance of Costs; Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shail terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractpr as
costs hereunder the Department shail retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include the follov^ng
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds prosrided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and ail original materials
produced, induding, but not limited to, brot^ures, resource directories, protiocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facllitloa: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shail comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect lb the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performence of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said Dcense or permit, and will al all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, arid requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, end shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportuni^ Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more, if the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it wilt maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It Is not required to subrnit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical end educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR.to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoi/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to.
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrlmlnetion Includes discrimination on Ihe basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure

, complianco with the Omnibus Chme Control and Safe Streets Act of 1d68 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful eccess to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstleblower Protections: The
' following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR2.101(currentfy. $150,000) .

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLGBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
Whistleqlower Rights {SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whlstleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractoremployee whistlebtower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
1-12-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform its employees in writing, In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whlstleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) the Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
-  subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contrector may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountablilty for the functjon(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor complianco
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the follovring:
19.1. Eveluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that speciHes activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
periormance Is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Spodai Provisions Contractor Ir^lials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identifying ali subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identifted, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINmONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have theyfoilowing meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean, those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
aiiowabie and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and.orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the financaal
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds. '

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each.service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws; regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall bo deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time. |

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541.A, for the purpose of implementing Stale of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

£xhibll C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, alt obligations of the State hereunder.
including without limKation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent.changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the. right
to withhold payment until such' funds become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required ,to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State.

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising Its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early tenmination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but rwt
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed Information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan end shall provide ortgoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but f)ol limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitloned ,to having serwces delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Govemor and
Executive Coundl.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to General Provisions Contreclor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630. Tille.V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foUosvIng Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT.OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690. Title V. SubtiUe D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January.31
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certificaUon by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a State
may elect to make orie ceftificalion to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below (s a
material representation of fact upon v/hlch reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificaUon or violation of the ceftificalion shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or dobarmenl. Contractors using this form should
send It to: , - a

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grentd'e certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a stalemeni notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's '
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violaUon of such
prohibition:

' 1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-frob awareness program to Infomri employees abwt
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabllltetion. and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. • The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant t>e

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);,
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condlUon of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and '
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her convicUon for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ton calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagreph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position tlUe, to ©very grant
officer on whoso grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

EjW&ilD-CerttricoOonregafdinoOfugFro« - Conlradof InltL
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Talcing one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehebllitatibn Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of.paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the 8ite(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

^  . u JSl RtsraVdh 'Tv'au>uTciContractor Name: , . . . i i, i,

Date Name: JpM-Wan
Title: I 0, ; vc
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Workplace Requirements
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of '
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Idenlirted in Sectiorls 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTFtACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): '
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under'Tille IV-A
■'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Prograni under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a'Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, granL loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
infiuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer oremployoe of Congress, or an.employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbj^ng, In accordance with Its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this trarisaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. OSi (?e.soaf(:h i'raiAw'iCA

ComractorName'

illln
Date

Title:
Name: IC
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSiON

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
' Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certiftcaUon set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certincatlon required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be s
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective phmary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In'
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
prirhary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govemment. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submiRed if at any time the prospective primary participant learns'
that its certification was erroneous when submiRed or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this dause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
aUached definitions. . . '

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by subriiitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded ■
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partldpant further agrees by submlRIng this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibilily and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covorod Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ell lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless It knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establlshment'of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knovrtedge and

ExMUl F - Certiricetjon RogonJing Debarrn«nt. Suspension Contractor tmiials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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Information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

11.2.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, thai It end its
prindpals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debamient, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been ctmvlcted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antiUust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and
have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

11.3.

11.4.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, su^ proispective partidpanl shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowtedgo arid belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or ■

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. whore the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (coritract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibillty, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all soiicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

■JSi
inc-j d/b/a tcinnTiun 1 Ka

siiiJii
Date Name:

Title; ia
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TQ
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contraclor IdenliHed In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply. with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
redplenla of federal funding under this statute from discrfminaling, either In employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligallons of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in emptoyment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefrts, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. Stale and local
government services, public accommodations, "commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1603, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and WhisUeWower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112^239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhistlebTower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate sot out below is a material representation of fact upon wh'fch reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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New Hampehire Department of Heatth and Human Servicea
Exhibit G

In (he event a Fedora) or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discriminaUon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within .the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

iJSi a.-'Vi ■X'fO\r\\ntx
Contractor Name: Inc.,

Date "Vt e\^o. r-v
p

Name
Title

•/77/I4

FU«. 10/31/14
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New Hempshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-ChikJren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provlsiori of health", day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 10. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcald funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SlOOO per day and/or the Imiposition of an administrative complianco order on the responsible entity. '

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identtfied in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: d/hlc< CornmonM y\ecMi^

Name:

Title:

Date

CU®HMS/i«07iJ

Exhibll H - CQitincstlon Roparding
Environmental Tobocco ̂ oke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Senrices.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45; Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d- 'Pesionated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aaqrecation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

"Health Care Qoerations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TItleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privflcv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health "and Human Services.

"Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Exhibit I ContTBClor InHio
Health Inaurancfl Portsblltty Act
Businesa AssoUala Agreement ^
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Now Hampshiro Dopartmont of Hoalth and Human Sorvices

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law* shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 1S4.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Sen/Ices or
his/her designee.

n. "Securltv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that Is noj
secured by a'technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH '

Act, , "

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information <PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI .to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the. PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the dlsclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit» ConlmctOf Initiab
Health Insurance Portability Act
Quslneas Assodale Aoreemeni
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New Hampshire Department of HeaKf) and Human Services

Exhibit I

e.

(3)

a.

b.

c.

d.

Associate shall refrain from C

remedies.

isclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all

If the Covered Entity notifies
be bound by additional restrl^
safeguards of PHI pursuant
shall, be bound by such addit
such additional restrictions a

:he Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
tions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

onal restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of

lid shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

to

Obligations and Activities Df Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information

protected health information
md/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
)f the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate sha

aware of any of the above si
limited to: .

immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
itjjations. The risk assessment shaH lnclude, but not be

The nature and exten

types of identifiers and
The unauthorized per
disclosure was made;
Whether the protected
The extent to which tf

mitigated.

The Business Associate shal

breach and immediately repo^
Covered Entity.

c

The Business Associate shal
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall.mal;

and records relating to the use
received by the Business As^
purposes of determining Cov^
Security Rule.

e

access to PHI under the Agre
restrictions and conditions on

the duty to return or destroy t

agreements with Contractor's

oftfie protected health information involved, including the
the likelihood of re-identification;

>on used the protected health Information or to whom the
I

health information was actually acquired or viewed'
e risk to the protected health information has been

omplete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the

comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and

 available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or

ociate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
red Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

e. Business'Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
emenl, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
le PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity

shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractors business associate
i

3/2014 Exhibit I
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New Hampshire Department of Heait() and Human Services

Exhibit I

k.

3/2014

pursuant to this Agreement,
business associates who sh

contract provisions (P-37) of
protected health information.

vith rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
Jill be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of

Within five (5) business days
Business Associate shall ma
records, books, agreements,
of PHI to the Covered Entity,
Business Associate's compli

of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
ke available during normal business hours at its offices all
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine

; ince with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business day
Business Associate shall pro
Covered Entity, or as directe
requirements under 46 CFR

> of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
/ide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
I by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
Section 164.524.

id

Within ten (10) business day^
amendment of PHI or a reco

Set, the Business Associate
amendment arid incorporate
obligations under 45 CFR S(

of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
about an individual contained in a Designated Record

hall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
ction 164.526.

Business Associate shall dodu
such disclosures as would b€

Individual for an accounting of
164.528.

Within ten (10) business day:
request for an accounting of
to Covered Entity such Inforrr
to provide an accounting of d
Section 164.528.

t('

In the event any individual re
directly from the Business As
business days fooivard such
responsibility of responding
individual's request to Covere
Associate to violate HIPAA a
shall instead respond to the i
Covered Entity of such respoiji

q

Within ten (10) business days
Business Associate shall retu

received from, or created or r
Agreement, and shall not reta
destruction is not feasible, or
the Agreement.'Business As
Agreement, to such PHI and
purposes that make the returr

men! such disclosures of PHI and information related to

required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section

of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available ^
ation as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
sclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR

uests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
>ociate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
d Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

r|idividuars request as required by such law and notify
ise as soon as practicable.

rpd

of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
m or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
oceived by the Business Associate in connection with the
in any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If.retum or
he disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
ciate shall continue to extend the protections of the
mit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business /

Exhibh I Coniractof InltlalT'^^C.jr
MeeJth Insurenca Portability Act
I lusineaa Assoc'iate Agreement
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Now Hampshire Dopartmont of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

(4)

a.

b.

c.

c.

d.

Associate maintains such Ph
Business Associate destroy
Covered Entity that the PHI h

If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
as been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered En Ity

Covered Entity shall notify Bt
Notice of Privacy Practices p
164.520, to the extent that su
use or disclosure of PHi.

siness Associate of any changes or limiiatlon(s) in its
ovided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
oh change or limitation may affect Business Associate's

Covered Entity shairpromptly
of permission provided to Coy
disclosed by Business Assoc
164.506 of 45 CFR Section 1

notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
ered Entity by individuals whose PH) may be used or
ate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
B4.508.

Covered entity shall promptly
disclosure of PHI that Covereh
to the extent that such reslric
PHI. .

notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
i Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
ion' may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 o
Agreement the Covered Entitj'
Entity's knowledge of a breaclli
Agreement setTorth herein as
terminate the Agreement or p
alleged breach within a timefr^
determines that neither termin
violation to the Secretary.

the standard terms and conditions (P-37J of this
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Exhibit I, The Covered Eritity may either immediately

ijovide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
ime specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
ation nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv Re
shall have the same meaning
from time to time. A reference
a Section in the Privacy and S
amended.

erences. AH terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
}s those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to"
jcurily Rule means the Section as in effect or as

Amendment Covered Entity a
necessary to amend the Agree
Entity to comply with the chanj i
Security Rule, and applicable f

nd Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
ment, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
IBS in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
^deral and state law.

Data Ownership TheBusinesi
with respect to the PHI provides

Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014

fnterpretfltion. The parties agr4
to permit Covered Entity to comply

e that any,ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved'
with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule. ^

'  Cofttmclor IhitiBis /
alth Insurance Portability Ad j
sinast Auociato Agreament ^ | J
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Now Hampshire Oepartmont of Health md Human Services

Exhibit I

Seareoation. If any term or cc
person(s) or circumstance Is h
conditions which can be given
terms and conditions of this Ex

ndition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
eld invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
effect without the irivalid term or condition; to this end the
hibit I are declared severable.

ExuSurvival. Provisions in this

destruction of PHI, extensions
defense and indemnification p
standard terms and conditions

ibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
revisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the •
(P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties

Department of Health and Human Service

The Sta

hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

t)Sl RejCatxh
d/b/A I In -hj-f
Name of the Cbhtrtfotor

inc.,

Signature of Authorized Representatiye

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Signature lofiAuthcki^ Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

VlrFch^r
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/20)4 Exhibit I
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New Hampehlro Dopartmont of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $ 25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation tmd associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subse^ent grant modiricalions result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFA|TA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation InformaUon) the
Department of Health and Human Servides (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to th|0 FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program numlw for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose
7. location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identirier of the entity (DUNS

of the funding action

#)
10. Total compensation and names of tht) top five executives if:

10.1. f^ore than. 80% of annual groa revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25 Vf annually end

1 ot already available through reporting to the SEC.10.2. Compensationlnformation Is n

Prime grant recipients must submit FFAT
the award or award amendment is made
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 o
The F^era! Funding Accountability and
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting SubawarJ
to have the Contractor's representative, (
execute the foltowing Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to p
Department of Health and Human Servic
Financial Accountability and Transparency

o

^

the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
■ "ransparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
3 and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
8 Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

vlde needed information as outlined atMve to the NH

end to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Act.

Trct'inii-ya InsVihj+e^f/ic
Contractor Name: dIhiOi (.'omnnUiiitTj Wfiairin InihTvte-

5l?h\n
Date

CU/DHHS/110713

ExNUt J-

Accouniabtllty
C

 required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

PuJcW
S+CIaIA/H

<ni:ificeilon Regsfding th« F«<idfel Funding
^nd Tntnspsrency Act (FFATA) CompllBoce

. Pago 1 of 2

ConUactor INHats

Date



New Hampshire Department of Healtt^ and Human Services
Exhibit J

As the Contractor Identined in Section 1

below listed questions are true and accu

1. The DUNS number for your entity Is

FORMA

3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
rate.

2. In your business'br organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive {1)80 percent or more of yo jr annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or co iperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO X

If the answer to U2 above is NO, sto} here

If the answer to ff2 above is YES. pi )ase ansv/er the following;

3. Does the public have access to infor nation about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through pe iodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
.1986?

NO 1

If the answer to ff3 above is YES. slop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. pie ise answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

£)^ibn j - c

Accountability
CiPOHHS/nOTD

YES

YES

five most highly compensated officers In your business or

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

' Amount:

Amount:

onificotion RegBrbing the Federal Funding
And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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